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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERFHREE

Annual Profit

The audited profit attributable to the owners of Welling Holding Limited (the
“Company”) and earnings per share of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2011 (the “Year”)
amounted to approximately HK$607,563,000 (2010: approximately
HK$532,338,000) and HK21.56 cents (2010: HK19.12 cents) respectively,
representing a profit growth of 14.1% as compared to the results of last
year. Our gross profit margin for year 2011 decreased to approximately
11.5% (2010: approximately 13.0%).

Overview

Year 2011, which marked the first year of the 12th Five Year Plan period,
was also an extremely complicated year for business operations of
enterprises. The business environment has been dealt a heavy blow by the
slowdown in global economy, which had been impacted by the sovereign
debt crisis in Europe and the debt crisis in the U.S.. High inflation in the
PRC, restrained investments in the property sector (with which the home
appliance industry was closely associated) under government measures to
control excessive growth and those favourable national policies for the
home appliance industry coming to a conclusion, such as the “Subsidy for
Energy Efficient Appliances”, the “Home Appliances Replacement Subsidy”
and the “Home Appliances Subsidy for Rural Areas” (for the first pilot zones
including the provinces of Shandong, Henan, Sichuan and the city of
Qingdao) combined to result in significantly contracted demand for home
appliances during the second half of the year. The previous boom of the
industry dramatically reversed with overall inventory level reaching a
historical high, which indicated the onset of a major correction period for
the industry. The market for intermediate components of home appliances
also underwent a significant turn.

To address such challenging conditions, we took resolute actions and

commenced preemptive planning for strategic transformation based on our
unambiguous judgment of the situation.

4 Welling Holding Limited Annual Report 2011

2FMH

BEZERERAF(ARAR D) RENBAR(EHE
[AEENDBE_T——F+_A=T—RHIEFE
([ARFE DEEZARDBHEE NELFEALEE
607,563,000 /(=& —ZF4 : £)8% 532,338,000
T0)  REBREFA21.56BII(ZF—FF : 19.12
B - FIEREFER141% c KAEE T ——F
ZEFETRERELN11.5% (ZZT—FF : 4913.0%) °

FISHIES

—E—FI[t A KRB ZE hREER
BEITHIREEMN —F - BUE - XEBENIER
ROBERZE  EREENIMNIRBEXIBEETE -
NBRSE  EXREEXABHOEHETEER
FHRBE T REFIAEA - hz[EiRemRL |~ [
Ead I RIHXETHI(2FLUR - AF  OIIES
EEEHHAME D) SHEERNEL - EHHKET
EFRETHFELRRABRER - LATTESRAE
BHRYE  BREBFAELHS  TRERFA
HERY -  ERELHERBLENTHRERBE
BT e e gL -

HEHBERNERTE AEERBEE  REHE -
RIS LM DR R AL T {E -



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERFHREE

In product mix adjustment, we have continued to strengthen the
management of strategic products (including direct current motors,
commercial motors, servo motors and motors for small home appliances
etc) with increased investment inputs, with an intention to make these
strategic products becoming the key driver for our business transformation.
While the weight of strategic products in terms of sales revenue
contribution steadily increased in recent years, we have continued to
consolidate our cooperation with some internationally renowned
companies, such as our collaboration in servo motors with Sanyo Denki
Co., Ltd. of Japan, an expert in servo motors that owns advanced
manufacturing technologies in related areas, which would be conducive to
our Group’s proprietary development and manufacture of servo motors;
and our collaboration in pump products and high-efficiency motors with
Sanso Electric Co., Ltd., a Japanese company primarily engaged in the
research, development and manufacturing of pumps and high-efficiency
motor products and in possession of sophisticated technologies in these
areas. Coupled with the Group’s strengths in market development, such
cooperation helped achieve the strategic goal of allowing both parties to
“complement each other and pursue development in a manner mutually

|u

beneficial”. Moreover, we have also enhanced the cooperation and
exchange with some other Japanese companies in connection with vehicle

motors, and overall progress has been noted.

For the customer development, we have continued to enhance our efforts
in expanding our outside customer bases. We expedited market
development for commercial air-conditioning motors in the American
markets and secured major breakthroughs in increasing businesses with
key customers. Small-volume orders were received for garage door motors,
while the customer base structure for direct current motors was further
enriched. We have also started commercial supply of certain small home
appliances motors to some internationally renowned home appliance
makers.

From the perspective of technology innovation, we have continued to
advance the construction of facilities of Shanghai R & D Centre. As at the
date of this report, 20 research specialists have been deployed at the
Centre, one of whom is a Ph.D. degree holder and the remaining nineteen
specialists are Master’s degree holders. The Centre concentrates its
resources for the development of new high energy efficient products,
mainly for the development of products including direct current brushless
refrigerator compressor motors, EPS (Electric Power Steering) motors,
servo motors and rotary converters etc, and substantive progress has been
made. The Centre has filed the applications for registration of patent rights
for six items and has been invited to participate in the 14th International
Conference on Electrical Machines and Systems.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERFHREE

With regard to the enhancement of product quality, we have strengthened the
building of our quality management system by implementing the total quality
management model. Through the annual survey of customer satisfaction, a
customer feedback mechanism has been built to obtain timely knowledge of
customers’ needs. We have built a strong reputation in the industry for the
quality of our products, underpinned by persistent improvements over the
years.

Under our investment management, we exercised stringent control over
our investment scale and slowed down the pace of investments in line with
the current conditions of economic development. Investment focus will be
put on the development of high-value-added products and the
technological upgrade and efficiency improvement of principal products.
With the completion of the acquisition of &M oAtEERF BB R A A
(Changzhou Honglu Huate Electric Co., Ltd.), a manufacturer specialised in
the production of commercial air-conditioning motors, during the year, we
could enhance our development strengths and cost control advantage in
commercial motors, and optimise the layout of our product lines as well
while taking full advantage of resources integration.

All'in all, the Group reported stable growth in business scale and profit in 2011
through the implementation of a series of measures. Our position in the
industry and market share for principal products have been effectively fortified
and a firmer foundation has been laid for future transformation and growth.

Outlook

2012 will be an important year in the 12th Five Year Plan period to carry on
what have been started and prepare for those in the pipeline. It is also a crucial
year for the Group’s endeavour to advance its strategic transformation and
improve its profitability in all respects. For the time being and in the near future,
economic conditions in the PRC and elsewhere remains uncertain, and the
economy is likely to be subject to the downside risks. The government policy
to regulate the property market will be continuous, which may affect the home
appliance industry and other related sectors. However, we should in all
sobemess realise that opportunities are still there despite certain risks exist in
the course of development. The government’s current principles in economic
development are promoting structural adjustments and transformation, merger
and restructuring within the industry are also strongly encouraged. As a leading
enterprise, the Group will keep closely with the development direction of the
industry, carry on in-depth study on the development trend of the industry,
expand actively in new products beyond the existing scope of home appliance
motors, such as commercial motors and servo motors etc. Besides, we will
expedite the integration of external resources and further enhance our market
position and competitiveness in the industry for our principal products.
Meanwhile, the Group will keep an eye on any subsequent policies of the
government may be announced to drive consumption of home appliance so
as to make forward-looking plans.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERFHREE

For 2012, the Group will continue to advance product mix adjustments.
The weight of strategic products in terms of revenue contribution will
increase substantially and create a positive effect on our overall profit
structure. We are going to enhance the development of outside customers
to address the problem of dependence on a single large customer for
certain products. For some large customers with whom we have had good
cooperative relationships for certain existing products, we on the one hand
strengthen our relationships with them and at the same time introduce
some more other products offered for them in order to mitigate the risks
associated with our existing customers profile. We will continue to step up
with the construction of facilities of Shanghai R & D Centre and speed up
the recruitment of high-calibre, specialised researchers to ensure the
proper conduct of research and development of high-value-added
products. It is intended to quickly build up reputation in the market and
further enhance the core competitiveness of our products. Efforts will be
made to improve the distribution of our existing production bases so as to
enhance operating efficiency of investment and exercise stringent control
over investment risks. Ongoing improvements towards quality management
will be sought to ensure high quality products.

Looking ahead, slowdown of global economy is expected to continue and
the prospects of developed economy entities is still uncertain, however,
there are still great opportunities for business development in emerging
economy markets, the Group will adjust its strategies in a timely manner in
line with the structure of market demand and strengthen its forward-looking
research according to the industry’s technological development trends so
as to maintain its leading edge amongst peers with an aim at becoming
one of the world’s excellent suppliers of home appliance motors, energy
efficient motors and their related solutions, providing sustainable returns to
our shareholders and creating career development opportunities for our
staff and greater value for the community.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EE T mEA T

Business Review

The Group’s profit attributable to the owners of the Company and earnings
per share for the year ended 31 December 2011 amounted to
approximately HK$607,563,000 (2010: approximately HK$532,338,000)
and HK21.56 cents (2010: HK19.12 cents) respectively, representing a
profit growth of 14.1% as compared to the same period last year.

The Group’s turnover from continuing operations for the year ended 31
December 2011 amounted to approximately HK$10,490,373,000 (2010:
HK$7,235,360,000), representing an increase of approximately 45.0% as
compared to the same period last year. The Group’s gross profit margin
was approximately 11.5% (2010: 13.0%). Net asset value per share of the
Group as at 31 December 2011 was HK88.5 cents (2010: HKB8.2 cents).

Analysis of Major Business Operations

In 2011, there were profound changes in the economic situations both in
the PRC and abroad. Global economic growth slowed down mainly as a
result of the turmoil in major developed economies because of the
sovereign debt crisis in Europe as well as the U.S. debt crisis. While
emerging economies managed to sustain growth, the foundation for such
growth was not strong enough, as evidenced by generally shrinking exports
in the fourth quarter which had a material impact on business. Inflation and
quarter-on-quarter decline in the GDP growth rate prevented domestic
consumption from growing at full speed. Moreover, the nation had shifted
the focus of its development strategy from extensive growth to intensive
growth. This strategy was implemented with full force and investment in the
property sector slowed down under the policy. Coupled with the expiry of
the policies of “Home Appliances Subsidy for Rural Areas” (for certain
provinces and cities), “Home Appliances Replacement Subsidy” and
“Subsidy for Energy Efficient Appliances”, these factors rendered corporate
development a challenging task. They also sounded the alarm for related
industries which had relied much on such development model in the past,
indicating that a period of significant correction has loomed.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE R

In such severe environment, industries relating to the Group’s existing
products also underwent significant changes in the year. Annual sales
growth of the household air-conditioner sector slowed down to 15.1%,
while annual sales growth of the commercial air-conditioner sector slowed
down to 23.8%, reflecting the impact of a weakened real estate industry.
The washing machine sector reported annual sales growth of 10.6% with
the highest ownership rate among all related home appliances, as it
entered a stage of slower growth compared to previous years when sales
were supported by excessive credit spending driven by policy incentives.
The refrigerator sector, subject to production overcapacity and decreasing
demand, was also undergoing a low-growth period with an annual growth
rate of 13.3%. The output value of the small home appliance sector grew
at a steady pace of approximately 10%, despite its larger market capacity.
Other products have also been affected to various extents. (Source of the
aforesaid figures: www.chinalOL.com).

1. Micro Motors Business

The household air-conditioner sector fared strongly during the first
six months in 2011 with a 30.9% growth in aggregate sales
compared to the same period last year. Market demand fell in the
second half of the year after the expiry of the policy of “Subsidy for
Energy Efficient Appliances” which coincided with an adverse turn in
the general economic conditions. Production capacity of the industry
as a whole was excessive while substantial declines were noted in
both domestic sales and export sales. As at the end of December,
annual domestic sales and export sales of household air-
conditioners increased by 17.5% and 12.3%, respectively, as
compared to the same period last year. (Source of the aforesaid
figures: www.chinalOL.com).

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group’s micro motors
business recorded approximately 93,565,000 units of domestic
sales and 11,414,000 units of export sales of micro motors. The
aggregate sales volume increased by 34.8% as compared to the
same period last year, which continued to outperform the industry
average. The micro motors business recorded a turnover of
HK$7,049,296,000 for 2011, which represented an increase of
approximately 60.4% as compared to HK$4,395,039,000 for the
same period in 2010. The increase was mainly attributable to the rise
in overall selling prices driven by higher raw material prices and the
high-priced high-end products accounted for a greater percentage
in overall sales as a result of the adjustments to product sales mix.
Profit of the micro motors business for 2011 amounted to
HK$430,534,000, which was approximately 25.7% higher as
compared to HK$342,555,000 recorded for the same period in
2010.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE R

The Micro Motor Division has continued its business operation
towards the direction set by the 12th Five Year Plan during the year,
and changed its development strategy step by step from a scale-
oriented approach to a profit-oriented approach by starting a
significant advance in strategic transformation of the division since
the latter half of the year. In terms of product development, we
further strengthened the development of our strategic products.
Through the acquisition of ¥ JH A #kFER A FR /A 7 (Changzhou
Honglu Huate Electric Co., Ltd.), we accelerated the development of
commercial air-conditioner motors and the sales of such products
increased by 66% as compared to the same period of 2010, which
growth rate was significantly higher than the average rate in the
industry. Besides, we actively expanded our customer base to local
outside customers and foreign customers who have established their
production factories in the PRC. Sales of our direct current motors
increased by 129% compared to the same period of 2010. With the
rapid development of variable frequency air-conditioners, our
production scale expanded swiftly to put us in a strong market
position currently second only to Japanese manufacturers & E 2 i
and Panasonic. Through cooperation with Sanyo Denki Co., Ltd. of
Japan, our development was accelerated and sizeable production
scale was formed for servo motors. Our production scale for
refrigerator compressor motors is currently at the forefront among
industry peers. In lean manufacturing, after adopting measures to
upgrade equipment automation and implement total quality
management, there have been steady improvements in our
production efficiency and product quality which underpinned the
shorter lead-time for delivery and notable decrease in quality loss. In
research and development, through the Shanghai R & D Centre we
recruited more high-caliber personnel. Substantive progress has
been made for certain energy efficient and high value-added
products, such as direct current refrigerator compressor motors.
Progress in product research has been achieved by the Shanghai
R & D Centre in 2011 for certain products including servo motor and
rotary converter having passed the relevant tests. All in all, our efforts
over the past year enabled the Micro Motors Division to achieve
business growth against the odds of the adverse environment to the
whole industry. We managed to maintain the top ranking position for
our core products in certain sub-segments and continued to register
a stable growth.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE R

Washing Motors Business

As affected by the high ownership rate of washing machines and
excessive credit spending in the past, the growth in the washing
machine sector as a whole slowed down. Future growth of the
sector will continue to be mainly driven by replacement demand.
With an annual sales growth of 10.7%, roll washing machines are
expected to sustain rapid growth owing to the spending structure
and consumers’ preference for high-end products. It has recorded
an annual sales growth of 9.2% for wave-wheel washing machines,
which will remain a mainstream product although overall growth will
be modest. (Source of the aforesaid figures: www.chinalOL.com).
Sales growth of intermediate components was in tandem with their
corresponding end products. Annual sales of wave-wheel motors
increased by 9.3% as compared to the same period last year.
(Source of the aforesaid figures: National Bureau of Statistics and
relevant authorities).

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group recorded
approximately 20,655,000 units of domestic sales and
approximately 11,992,000 units of export sales for its washing
motors. Total sales volume grew by 11.1% as compared to the
same period last year, which was in tandem with the industry
average. The aggregate turnover of the washing motors business for
2011 increased by approximately 23.5% (HK$2,711,566,000 for the
same period in 2010) to HK$3,349,382,000. Profit of the washing
motors business for 2011 amounted to HK$177,724,000, decreased
by approximately 5.2% as compared to HK$187,535,000 recorded
for the same period in 2010. The decline in profit was mainly
attributable to the amortisation of expenses relating to the newly
constructed manufacturing plant in Hefei and the increase in fixed
costs incurred by this plant after commencing operations.
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During the year, the Washing Motor Division has continued its
business with focus on its existing traditional products while
enhancing the development of strategic products by resorting to
project management. The lean production management model was
thoroughly implemented, while specialised programmes in resources
conservation and cost reduction were conducted. The overall
operating efficiency of the division was improved on a year-on-year
basis, with notable results achieved in cost control. Pursuit of scale
in production remained a primary objective, although we also sought
to enhance our profitability. Development of new products was
advanced with an intention to optimising our existing product
structure. Through the organisational reforms to adopt the operating
mode to run by new product companies, the capacity utilisation
rates of various production bases increased as a result. In order to
accelerate the improvement in our existing customer regime, we
revamped our customer development strategy and sought to expand
the customer base for the same product as well as expand the
scope of products offered for the same customer in order to mitigate
the risk associated with customer concentration. An increasing
proportion of our traditional and strategic products were being
supplied to external customers other than Midea Group companies
to achieve the development of a balanced supply to customers.
Meanwhile, certain motors for small home appliances were also
being supplied to large customers who had been stable buyers of
series motors. Besides, progress in product research and
development has been achieved by the Shanghai R & D Centre in
2011 for the EPS (Electric Power Steering) motor having passed the
relevant tests. Over the year, the Washing Motors Division has
achieved a stable growth in overall business scale outperforming the
development pace of certain peers in the industry. The market
position of its principal products remains secure and is backed by a
well established product development pipeline and a well-defined
roadmap for development. Driver for sustainable growth will remain
in the future and gradual improvement in profitability will be seen
following the growth in business of high-value-added strategic
products.
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Business of Associate

Shanxi Huaxiang Group Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Shanxi
Huaxiang Investment Co., Ltd.) (“Huaxiang”, an associate owned as
to 49% by the Group) further enhanced its organisational reforms,
reinforced its division-based management approach, advanced the
development of its precision production division and improved the
organisational structure of its mechanical engineering division.
Decentralisation was enhanced with the delegation of authority to
lower levels of management. Preparations were actively underway
for the establishment of a machine processing division to facilitate
resources integration. Further define the direction for product
development and accelerate the structural adjustments to advance
strategic transformation. Business operations performed well during
the year with ongoing improvements in management quality, while
sales volume and profit doubled to provide a solid foundation for
rapid growth. The first phase of the new industrial park has been put
into operation with sound effect, the construction of the second
phase is in progress on schedule and expected to be completed in
the first half of 2012.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, Huaxiang’s turnover
amounted to approximately HK$1,328,124,000 (2010: approximately
HK$709,400,000) and the Group’s share of profit from Huaxiang
amounted to HK$19,204,000 (2010: approximately HK$9,269,000).

Financial Review

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group has maintained a healthy financial and liquidity position with a
current ratio of 128% as at 31 December 2011 (2010: 119%).

As at 31 December 2011, the Group was in a net cash position of
HK$717,174,000 (2010: HK$577,269,000), representing cash and cash
equivalents and pledged bank deposits of approximately
HK$1,050,690,000 less total bank borrowings of approximately
HK$333,516,000 (comprising approximately HK$239,121,000 would be
due within one year and approximately HK$94,395,000 would be due over
one year).
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Financial Ratios

The following are certain financial ratios of the Group as at the consolidated

statement of financial position date:

AtE5EE 3

TEBIIR ARG MR E D AEEN S TFot
Bt :

2011 2010

—f——F —T-TF

(Restated)

(E31))

Inventories turnover (Note 1) HFE R (FE) 50 daysH 77 daysH

Trade receivables turnover (Note 2) H 5 IR A E A (Fi:E2) 46 daysH 50 daysH

Trade payables turnover (Note 3) E SRR R HA (M5ES) 69 daysH 99 daysH

Current ratio (Note 4) BN L (PisE4) 1.28 timesf& 1.19 timesf&
Notes: Bt sE

Inventories turnover is calculated based on the average of the opening
inventories and closing inventories divided by the cost of goods sold for
continuing operations of the year, and multiplied by the total number of days
of the year.

Trade receivables turnover is calculated based on the average of the opening
and closing of trade receivables of third parties and related companies,
divided by the turnover for continuing operations of the year, and multiplied
by the total number of days of the year.

Trade payables turnover is calculated based on the average of the opening
and closing of trade payables of third parties and related companies, divided
by the cost of goods sold for continuing operations of the year, and
multiplied by the total number of days of the year.

Current ratio is calculated based on the year-end current assets divided by
the year-end current liabilities.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2011, short-term borrowings of the Group were

secured by certain property with net book value of approximately
HK$43,253,000 (2010: approximately HK$97,891,000) and certain
leasehold land and land use rights with net book value of approximately
HK$46,102,000 (2010: approximately HK$60,429,000) of the Group.

14
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Contingent Liabilities

Save as the financial guarantees as disclosed below, as at 31 December
2011 and 2010, the Group and the Company did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

Financial Guarantees

As at 31 December 2011, the Group has given guarantee to banks in
respect of the banking facilities extended to the associates of the Group of
approximately HK$528,556,000 (2010: approximately HK$532,965,000).
As at 31 December 2011, bank loans of approximately HK$470,581,000
(2010: approximately HK$304,971,000) being guaranteed by the Group to
associates have been drawn down.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the capital expenditure of the
Group was approximately HK$410,503,000 (2010: approximately
HK$270,966,000) related to the purchase of property, plant and
equipment, leasehold land and land use rights.

Derivative Financial Instruments

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s outstanding derivative financial
instrument assets and liabilities under various copper and aluminium futures
contracts and foreign exchange forward contracts amounted to
approximately HK$16,792,000 and HK$240,000 respectively (2010:
derivative financial instrument assets of approximately HK$25,922,000).

Exposure to Exchange Rate Fluctuations

During the Year, approximately 22% of the Group’s turnover was derived
from export trading settled in Euro and US dollars. In the meantime, the
Group has also imported raw materials from the suppliers which were paid
in Euro and US dollars for settlement. As a result, foreign exchange risks
associated with these currencies were partially offset. On the other hand,
the Group has made arrangements to purchase foreign exchange forward
contracts to hedge against foreign exchange exposure arising from export
trading. The Group has strengthened its control over the risk of exchange
rate fluctuation, and will review from time to time the sufficiency and
appropriateness of the financial instruments which were currently used to
hedge significant foreign currency risks.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2011, the Group has contracted capital commitments
in respect of the purchase of property, plant and equipment and leasehold
land and land use rights amounting to approximately HK$89,776,000
(2010: approximately HK$139,757,000).

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had approximately 12,510 full time
employees in Hong Kong and in the PRC. While the Group was supported
by a team of young and competent staff, it does not ignore the importance
of the development, management and future planning of its human
resources. With the use of open recruitment, job rotation, internal
promotion and professional training for the recruitment, deployment and
nurture of employees, it is intended to ensure the selection and deployment
of employees to be carried out in an open, fair and equitable manner.
Besides, it could also provide staff with a platform for their further
promotion and development. Through the implementation of
comprehensive human resources management, it is aimed at achieving the
objectives of enhancing employees contributions to the Group and shaping
the Group’s strategic advantages in human resources.

The Group has adopted a share option scheme for employees as an
incentive to motivate employees by linking their interests to the future
development and expansion of the Group. The Group currently provides
staff with competitive remuneration packages (comprising salary, bonus
and benefits in kind), adequate insurance cover (including pension, medical
insurance, unemployment compensation insurance, work injury
compensation insurance and maternity insurance) and housing provident
fund. In addition, the Group also provides its staff with other benefits
including on-the-job academic education, meal subsidy, housing subsidy,
cooperative medical scheme services, support fund and recreational
activities etc.

Welling Holding Limited Annual Report 2011
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Business Prospects

Looking ahead to 2012, it will be a challenging year for our overall sales as
the home appliance industry and related sectors will be affected by the
expected decline in China’s GDP, various contingencies in foreign
economic environments, government’s further regulation on the property
market and the expiry of the policies of “Home Appliances Subsidy for
Rural Areas” (for certain provinces and cities), “Home Appliances
Replacement Subsidy” and “Subsidy for Energy Efficient Appliances”.
Notwithstanding, growth prospects for air-conditioning products remain
positive in the long run, especially for variable frequency air-conditioners,
the sales of which are expected to embark on a track of rapid growth. The
ownership rate of air-conditioner in rural areas is still at a very low level,
while the replacement demand in urban cities remains substantial. In the
sectors of washing machine and refrigerator, industry reshuffle is expected
and mergers and restructuring will be the trend which will benefit those
leading enterprises. The Group will grasp opportunities amid the
challenging situation and, as a leader of sub-segments in the home
appliance motor sector, the Group will strive to expedite resources
integration within the sector and further strengthen its leading position in
the market. Meanwhile, we will continue to actively develop high value-
added and energy efficient motor products other than the home appliance
motors, such as servo motors.

For the micro motor business, we will continue to enhance the operations
in household air-conditioner motor as our traditional product, further
increase our market share, explore potentials to increase production
efficiency, accelerate the advance in equipment automation and refine the
detailed production procedures so as to firm up the support for the
development of our business division. It is intended to further increase the
profitability of refrigerator compressor motors which will become the core
product of our division in a gradual manner. We will leverage on the
strengths of our Changzhou base and our Shunde base for the production
of commercial air-conditioner motors. Through the increase in investment,
it is intended to expand domestic sales as a base and further develop
overseas markets with full force so as to improve overall gross profit
margin. For the direct current motors, we will continue to increase
investment in order to speed up the pace of customer development,
shorten new products development cycle to enjoy first-mover advantage.
Cooperation with Sanyo Denki of Japan in servo motors will further be
strengthened to achieve mass production quickly. Furthermore, we will
continue to optimise our internal organisation structure and recruit more
high-calibre personnel for core strategy in tandem with the expansion of
the division. We will continue to seek cooperation with foreign parties to
enhance market recognition. Strategic transformation of the division will be
ongoing with an aim to improve our overall profitability.
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The Group has adjusted its development strategy in a timely manner in line
with the market development and changed its development mode from the
pursuit of scale to the increase in overall profitability. By optimising our
product mix and streamlining our investment structure in all respect, our
investment focus will gradually be shifted to high-value-added products
and enhancement of production efficiency. We will strengthen cooperation
with leading worldwide brand customers in our existing businesses to
cement our relationships and bolster mutual confidence. Meanwhile, we will
also seek to advance our cooperation with certain large companies with
which we have started to develop partnerships on certain products. We
intend to hasten development and achieve swift breakthroughs in sales so
that our current product mix will be further modified and the weight of high-
value-added strategic products will increase in terms of revenue
contribution, as part of our efforts to step up with transformation.

For our washing motors business, we will go deeper to understand the
needs of our major customers so that we could plan ahead and advance
strategic cooperation with these major customers. This could enable us to
secure our existing market share for our traditional products such as series
motors and wave-wheel motors and further strengthen our market position.
We will also continue our investment in strategic products, seeking to
enlarge the customer base for small home appliance motors and vehicle
motors to achieve mass production quickly. With the support of the
Shanghai R & D Centre, we are able to shorten the new product
development cycle and procure a quick market launch of new products.
Moreover, we will further implement the lean production management
approach with an aim at improving our production efficiency. Company-
based operation in respect of our existing products will be further
enhanced. The scope of management delegation will be extended to
reduce hidden costs. Cost reduction measures will be adopted on a
continuous basis and improvements in profitability will be sought in all
areas. While pursuing expansion in scale, we will seek to advance the
strategic transformation of the division.
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Huaxiang will leverage on the favourable policies announced by the State
and various local governments and the development plan relevant to the
industry under the 12th Five Year Plan to continue its operation with a
focus on its casting products including compressor casting parts and
airborne balance weight casting parts while step up with its development of
vehicle parts, high-speed rail parts and valve parts based on the in-depth
research on the market capacities. Product mix adjustment will be
expedited so that the strategic focus will be shifted from low-margin
general products to high-end and high-margin products. The company will
continue to optimise its customer profile and expand the customer base of
its existing products to reduce the risk of reliance on any one customer.
The overall quality of its operation was improved with steady pace and
thorough strategic transformation was implemented. Moreover, the
streamlining of internal structures will continue to drive reforms. Divisional
management will be strengthened. Systems of funding, operations,
financial, internal control and IT will be further enhanced. More efforts will
be exerted to operating the first phase of the new industrial park to swiftly
deliver the advantages in production capacities. Construction of the second
phase of the industrial park is scheduled for completion in the first half of
2012.

In summary, the prospect for global economic recovery remains uncertain.
China’s economy is also starting to feel the pressure of slowdown in
economic growth after sustaining years of rapid growth, bringing
uncertainties to the Company’s business. Nevertheless, the PRC
Government has adopted appropriate measures to enhance the
sustainability of economic growth, and the Group will also adjust its
development strategy in a timely manner in tandem with national policies
and planning, seizing various opportunities for development while
continuing to fortify its strengths on the back of its existing advantages to
address future challenges.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEELHRE

The Company has always endeavoured to achieve a high standard of
corporate governance so as to enhance the transparency and
accountability to the shareholders of the Company. The board of directors
of the Company (the “Board”) believes that good corporate governance will
contribute to maximise the corporate value of the Company to its
shareholders.

The Company has adopted the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) as its own code of corporate governance practices.

The Company has fully compiled with all the code provisions set out in the
CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2011.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code”) as its code of conduct of the Company for Directors’
securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry with each of the
Directors, all of the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2011.

The Board

The Board is responsible for laying down the Group’s future development
direction, overall strategies and policies, the evaluation of the performance
of the Group and the management and approval of matters that are of
material and substantial in nature. Senior management of the Company
was delegated with the authority and responsibility by the Board for the
day-to-day management, administration and operations of the Group.
Senior management of each division is responsible for different businesses
and functions of the Group in accordance with its particular area of
expertise. The Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the
Board committees. Details of these Board committees are set out below in
this report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Board held six meetings.
The attendance records of each Director at the Board meetings held during
the year ended 31 December 2011 are as follows:

BE T F+_A=t—HILFE EFgC
BIORNREHE BEENBE_T——F+_-H=

T HLFELREFEER ZEM T

Number of

meetings

attended/held

HEEHRRE

Directors B BITERRE

Executive Directors PITES

Mr. Cai Qiwu BHNESE 6/6

Mr. Jiang Deging Z=EEEE 6/6

Mr. Qu Fei BRI E 6/6

Mr. Chen Jianhong PRZAL o 6/6

Ms. Yuan Liqun BBt 6/6

Mr. Li Jianwei RiEEEE 6/6

Mr. Zheng Weikang B RS- 6/6
Independent non-executive Directors BIEMITES

Mr. Tan Jinsong RIS 6/6

Mr. Lam Ming Yung MBEAB A 5/6

Ms. Chen Chunhua BREIEL L 6/6

For each of the regular Board meetings held during the year ended 31
December 2011, each Director had been consulted before hand and
served with prior notice to enable him/her to include matters in the agenda
of the forthcoming Board meeting.

The Board will hold four regular meetings every year. The Company
generally gives at least 14 days notice in advance for regular Board
meetings and gives reasonable notice for all other Board meetings in order
to give all Directors opportunity to attend the meetings. During the year
ended 31 December 2011, the Company had complied with the said notice
requirements for Board meetings by giving all Directors adequate time to
plan their schedules to attend.

All Directors could have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary to ensure that Board procedures are complied with the
applicable laws, rules and regulations and corporate governance code.
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The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of Board
meetings which shall record in sufficient detail the matters considered and
decisions reached, including any concerns raised by Directors or dissenting
views expressed at the meetings. For each of the Board meetings held
during the year ended 31 December 2011, draft and final versions of the
minutes of Board meetings were sent to all Directors within reasonable time
(generally within 14 days for both cases) after the Board meeting had been
held for their comments and records respectively. All Board minutes are
available for inspection by all Directors.

The Company’s corporate governance guidelines give all Directors the
rights, upon reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, and in such
circumstances, the Board shall resolve to provide separate independent
professional advice to the Directors to assist the relevant Directors to
discharge their duties.

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the
Board which the Board has determined to be material, the matter will be
dealt with by a physical Board meeting but not a written resolution. Subject
to the exceptions set out in the Listing Rules, a Director shall not vote on
any Board resolution approving any contract or arrangement or any other
proposal in which he or any of his associates has a material interest nor
shall he be counted in the quorum present at the relevant Board meeting.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors was arranged.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
are performed by separate individuals so as to enhance the division of
responsibilities between them and to ensure a balance of power and
authority. The positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
held by Mr. Cai Qiwu and Mr. Jiang Deqing respectively. The Chairman is
responsible for taking the lead of the Board in determining the strategic
direction of the Group, ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed on
business contemplated at Board meetings and receive timely, adequate,
complete and reliable information. The Chief Executive Officer of the
Company with the support of other executive Directors is responsible for
strategic planning of different business functions and day-to-day
management and operations of the Group.
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Board Composition

The Board currently comprises ten Directors, including seven executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Cai Qiwu (Chairman), Mr. Jiang Deqging (Chief
Executive Officer), Mr. Qu Fei, Mr. Chen Jianhong (appointed on 15 March
2011), Ms. Yuan Liqun, Mr. Li Jianwei and Mr. Zheng Weikang and three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Tan Jinsong, Mr. Lam
Ming Yung and Ms. Chen Chunhua, in order to maintain a balanced
composition with a strong independent element on the Board.

Mr. Gao Fazhong resigned as an executive Director with effect from 15
March 2011.

The biographies of each of the current Directors are set out in pages 36 to
39 in this annual report, which demonstrate a diversity of skills, expertise,
experience and qualifications appropriate for the requirements of the
business of the Company.

The Directors, including the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, have
no financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationships with
each other.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
each of the three independent non-executive Directors in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their independence
and concluded that all the independent non-executive Directors are
independent within the definitions of the Listing Rules.

Appointments, Re-Election and Removal of
Directors

The articles of association of the Company (“Articles of Association”) require
that (i) every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and (i) the
managing Director of the Company (if any) shall whilst holding office as
such be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
and shall be taken into account in determining the number of Directors to
retire by rotation in each year.
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The Articles of Association provide that at every annual general meeting of
the Company, and notwithstanding any contractual or other terms on
which a Director may be appointed or engaged, one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation,
provided that, notwithstanding anything therein, every Director (including
those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. The Board is of the view that such
mechanism helps to ensure orderly succession to the appointments to the
Board and that changes to its composition can be managed without undue
disruption.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company had entered into
letters of appointment with Mr. Tan Jinsong, Mr. Lam Ming Yung and Ms.
Chen Chunhua, each an independent non-executive Director for a term
commencing on 26 May 2011 and ending on the date of the Company’s
next annual general meeting, as their respective then existing letters of
appointment expired on 26 May 2011. All these letters of appointment shall
be terminable by either party upon one month’s written notice to the other
party or the payment to other party of a sum equal to the relevant Director’s
monthly remuneration.

The Board established a nomination committee on 9 March 2012 and its
details are set out below in this report. Prior to the establishment of the
nomination committee, the Board as a whole was responsible for the
appointment of new Directors. According to the Articles of Association, the
Board has the power from time to time and at any time to appoint any
person as a Director either to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the
Board. Any Director so appointed by the Board shall hold office only until
the next following annual general meeting and shall be eligible for re-
election but shall not be taken into account in determining the number of
Directors to retire by rotation at such meeting. In connection with the
appointment of new Directors, the Board has taken into consideration the
nominee’s qualifications, experience and ability relevant to the requirements
of the Company’s business. For the year ended 31 December 2011, the
Board has examined the terms of appointment of Directors, and also
reviewed and assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.
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Responsibilities of Directors

To ensure that every newly appointed Director has a proper understanding
of the operations and business of the Group and that he/she is fully aware
of his/her responsibilities as a Director of the Company under statue and
common law, each of the newly appointed Director will receive a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction and also the orientation
package containing the information with regard to the duties and
responsibilities of Directors under the Listing Rules, related ordinances and
relevant regulatory requirements and the business and corporate
governance policies of the Company. Subsequently, updated information
and continuous professional development training will also be provided to
all the Directors when necessary to keep them abreast of the latest
changes and development in legal, regulatory and corporate governance
requirements and develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.

The independent non-executive Directors are active in participating in
Board meetings to bring an independent judgement to bear on issues of
strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key appointments
and standards of conduct. They will take the lead where potential conflicts
of interests of other Directors arise. They serve as members of various
Board committees and will scrutinise the performance of the Group in
achieving agreed corporate goals and objectives and monitor performance
reporting.

Supply of and Access to Information

In connection with the convening of regular Board meetings and any
meeting of the Board committees, agenda of the meeting accompanying
with the relevant documents will be sent to all Directors or members of the
Board committee at least three days before the date of the Board meeting
or Board committee meeting.

Management has an obligation to supply the Board and the Board
committees with adequate information in a timely manner to enable
members of the Board and the Board committees to make informed
decisions. Where any Director requires more information than is volunteered
by management, each Director may contact senior management through
individual and independent channel to make further enquiries if necessary
and such enquiries will be responded to by management within a
reasonable time with sufficient details. Furthermore, minutes of Board
meetings or meetings of Board committees are open for inspection by
Directors at any reasonable time on reasonable notice given.
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Board Committees

The Board has established four Board committees with defined scope of
duties in written form. These Board committees are the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee, the Executive Committee and the
Nomination Committee.

The written terms of reference of each of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Executive Committee and the Nomination
Committee, explaining the role and the authority delegated to these Board
committees by the Board, are available on the website of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited at www.hkexnews.hk and the website of
the Company at http://www.welling.com.cn.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Board on 22
September 2005. Chairman and majority of the members of the
Remuneration Committee are independent non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Ms. Chen Chunhua (chairman of Remuneration
Committee), Mr. Tan Jinsong and Mr. Lam Ming Yung and two executive
Directors, namely Mr. Cai Qiwu and Mr. Zheng Weikang.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include the followings:

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration; and

(i) to review and determine, with delegated responsibilities, the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors.
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The Remuneration Committee held a meeting during the year ended 31 HE-T——F+_-A=+—HILFE  HFPEZE
December 2011. The attendance record of each member at the ®8T7—XE€# - SZBeKEHETFHZES
Remuneration Committee meeting is set out as follows: R LIOHEAT
Number of
meetings
attended/held
HEEHRRE
Members of Remuneration Committee FNESERE BITERRE
Ms. Chen Chunhua (chairman of BREEZ T (FHWEESE/E)

Remuneration Committee) 11
Mr. Tan Jinsong EELYN e 1/1
Mr. Lam Ming Yung MBEASB AL 1/1
Mr. Cai Qiwu SEHREE 1/1
Mr. Zheng Weikang BMERREE 1/1
During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Remuneration Committee #HZE—-_ZT——F+-_A=1+—HILFE ' HMWEE

had performed the following works:

(i) reviewed and approved the remuneration packages of executive
Directors (except the Chairman and Mr. Zheng Weikang) and senior
management after consultations with the Chairman;

(ii) reviewed and approved the remuneration packages of the Chairman
and Mr. Zheng Weikang in a committee meeting at which the
Chairman and Mr. Zheng Weikang abstained from voting in respect
of the resolutions approving their own remuneration packages; and

(i) reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the

remuneration and terms of appointment of independent non-

executive Directors.

The Company’s remuneration policy for the Directors and senior management
are set on the basis that the remuneration level of the Directors and senior
management will be linked with their responsibilities and their contributions to
the achievement of corporate performance target of the Company as resolved
by the Board from time to time. For the purpose of determining the level of
remuneration of Directors and senior management, appraisal of the work
performance of Directors and senior management had been conducted during
the year ended 31 December 2011. Such work performance of Directors and
senior management was judged by the extent to which the Company’s budget
target was met and the financial performance of the Company in terms of sales
revenue and net profits as disclosed in the audited financial statements was
achieved. No Director or any of his/her associates is involved in deciding his/
her own remuneration.
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Details of the Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2011
are set out in Note 25(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties including the obtaining of independent professional
advice at the expense of the Company if it considers necessary.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established by the Board on 5 August 1999. All
members of the Audit Committee are independent non-executive Directors,
one of whom has possessed professional qualifications and accounting
and financial management related expertise.

The Audit Committee comprises all three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Tan Jinsong (chairman of Audit Committee), Mr.
Lam Ming Yung and Ms. Chen Chunhua.

The Audit Committee is responsible for, among other things, reviewing and
monitoring the integrity of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group, reviewing the effectiveness of the systems of internal control and
risk management of the Group, reviewing the findings from the works
carried out by internal audit department and monitoring the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal audit function. The Audit Committee is also responsible
for making recommendation to the Board on the appointment of the
external auditor and approving the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditor. Before commencement of annual audit, the Audlit
Committee will discuss with the external auditor the nature and scope of
audit, the significant risk analysis and the impact of the change in
accounting policies on the financial statements of the Group. The Audit
Committee is required to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards.
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The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31
December 2011. The attendance record of each member at the Audit

ERmE

Committee meetings is set out as follows:

Members of Audit Committee

BERES

BE_F——F_ASt AR BRER
YERT=AEH - EERENALEELEAS
B ZRRGT

Number of
meetings
attended/held
HEEHRRE
BITEHRRY

Mr. Tan Jinsong (chairman of Audit Committee)
Mr. Lam Ming Yung
Ms. Chen Chunhua

Minutes of Audit Committee meetings are kept by the Company Secretary
who also serves as secretary of the Audit Committee. Draft and final
versions of the minutes of Audit Committee meetings are sent to all
members of the Committee for their comments and records within a
reasonable time after the meeting (usually within 14 days after the meeting).
During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Audit Committee had

performed the following works:

(i)

(iii)

v)

(vi)

(vil)

reviewed the Company’s 2010 annual report and the preliminary

announcement of final results;

reviewed the Company’s 2011 interim report and the preliminary

announcement of interim results;

approved the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external

auditor for 2011 audit and other matters;

reviewed the 2011 internal control report prepared by the internal
audit department and reviewed the effectiveness of the internal

control system and risk management of the Group;

reviewed the connected and continuing connected transactions

entered into by the Group during the Year;

reviewed and monitored the external auditor’s independence and
the non-audit services provided by the external auditor; and

advised on significant events of the Company and highlighted the

related risks to the management.
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The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
duties including the obtaining of independent professional advice at the
expense of the Company if it considers necessary.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s 2011 consolidated financial
statements, including the accounting principles and policies adopted by the
Group, in conjunction with the Company’s external auditor and
recommended to the Board for approval of the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2011. The annual report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2011 has been reviewed by the
Audit Committee.

The Board agreed with the Audit Committee’s proposal for the re-
appointment of Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s
external auditor for the year 2012. The recommendation will be put forward
for shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the remuneration paid to the
Company’s external Hong Kong auditor, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers,
is set out as follows:
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Fee paid/payable
Eft EHER
HK$'000
PSS T
Audit services, taxation services and review of ZHRY - BERE &
continuing connected transactions EHFERERS 3,009

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established by the Board on 18 April 2006.
[t comprises all seven executive Directors. Mr. Cai Qiwu was appointed as
the chairman of the Executive Committee by the Board on 9 March 2012.
Under its term of reference, the Executive Committee shall be responsible
for the determination on the matters relating to the Group’s day-to-day
operations, management and administration.
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In addition to the daily management and administration functions, as

approved by the Board at the Board meeting held on 9 March 2012, the

Executive Committee was delegated with the duties and responsibilities to

monitor and oversee the corporate governance functions of the Group by

incorporating the following functions into its terms of reference:

(i)

(i)

(v)

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Nomination Committee

As approved by the Board on 9 March 2012, the Company established the

Nomination Committee with majority of its members being independent

non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee shall be responsible

for the following duties:

(i

(i)

to formulate nomination policy for the Board’s consideration and
implement the Board’s approved nomination policy;

to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge, experience) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of, individuals nominated for appointment as Director of the
Company;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors
and review the annual confirmation made by independent non-
executive Directors on their independence; and
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(v) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors in

particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

The Nomination Committee comprises five members including two
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Cai Qiwu (chairman of Nomination
Committee) and Mr. Zheng Weikang and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Tan Jinsong, Mr. Lam Ming Yung and Ms. Chen
Chunhua.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary, namely, Ms. Tang Wai Ying, Tracy, is also the
Company’s financial controller of Hong Kong office. Ms. Tang is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

The Company Secretary plays an important role in supporting the Board by
ensuring good information flow within the Board and that Board policy and
procedures are followed, and also acts as the secretary of Board
committees to ensure that all records of meeting proceedings, discussion
and decision of Board committees are properly kept. The Company
Secretary reports to the Chairman of the Board and is responsible for
facilitating the induction to be provided to newly appointed Directors and
continuous professional development training to be provided to existing
Directors and advising the Board through the Chairman on corporate
governance matters.

All Directors could have access to the advice and services of the Company

Secretary to ensure that Board procedures, and all applicable laws, rules
and regulations are followed.
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Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Company which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group on a going concern basis in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The statements of the Directors and the Auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 59 to
60 of this annual report.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate and effective internal
control system in the Company and reviewing its effectiveness through the
Audit Committee. The internal control system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement,
fraud or loss and to manage, but not to eliminate, risks of failure in
achieving the Company’s objective.

The internal control system, which includes a defined management
structure with specified limits of authority, is designed to (a) help the
achievement of business objectives, and safeguard the Company’s assets;
(b) ensure proper maintenance of accounting records; and (c) ensure
compliance with relevant legislation and regulations.

Management and internal audit department regularly review the Group’s
internal control system which covers financial, operational and compliance
controls as well as risk management functions to ensure that it remains
efficient and effective.

The Company has a full set of Internal Control System Manual (“Manual”)
which was approved by the Board. This Manual contains a comprehensive
overview and description of the objectives, content, methods and duties of
the internal control system, and facilitates the ongoing examination and
evaluation of the Company’s compliance with existing rules and regulations
and of the effectiveness of internal controls. During the year ended 31
December 2011 and up to the date of this annual report, the Company
consistently applied the full set of Manual which covers the control of high-
risk areas of operations, suppliers, sales, finance and personnel
management. The Board has, through the Audit Committee, carried out
ongoing examination and monitoring of the Group’s internal control system.
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During the Year, the Group based on the internal audit findings and
improvement plans submitted by the internal audit department to the Audit
Committee continued to enhance and improve the internal control system
of the Group.

The Board has reviewed and is satisfied with the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control system and believes that, such system is sufficient
to provide reasonable assurances that the Group’s assets are safeguarded
against loss from unauthorised use or disposition, transactions are properly
authorised and proper accounting records are maintained. The Board has
reviewed and considered that the resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function are adequate.

Communication with Shareholders

The Board believes that general meeting can provide an open forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders of the Company.
Sufficient notice for annual general meeting and other general meetings will
be given to the shareholders in compliance with the requirements of the
Articles of Association of the Company, Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32
of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Listing Rules. Shareholders are
encouraged to attend the general meetings of the Company. The Chairman
of the Board will attend annual general meeting and invite the chairman of
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
other Board Committees, in their absence, other members of these
Committees, to attend annual general meeting. They will be available to
answer questions raised by shareholders at annual general meeting. The
chairman or other members of the independent board committee (if any)
will be available to answer questions at any general meeting to approve
connected transaction or any other transaction that requires independent
shareholders’ approval.

To facilitate enforcement of shareholders’ rights, substantially different
issues are dealt with under separate resolutions at general meetings of the
Company.

Annual and interim reports and any significant events of the Company fall
to be disclosed in accordance with the disclosure requirements under the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements will be published
in a timely manner through the Company’s website so as to safeguard the
shareholders’ rights of information.
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The Company’s website at www.welling.com.cn provides timely and
updated information on investor relations, corporate governance and other
latest news of the Company to enable shareholders and investors to have
timely access to information about the Group.

The investor relations department of the Company is responsible for
handling the communications with our investors, it will regularly organise
road shows and one-on-one meetings with institutional investors and
financial analyst to promote better understanding of the Company to and
keep continuous dialogues with professional investors.

The Company has established the shareholders communication policy
which together with the information regarding the procedures for
shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director and other
shareholders’ rights are available on the website of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. CAI Qiwu, aged 48, was appointed as a non-executive Director and
the Chairman of the Company on 31 March 2008 and re-designated as
executive Director and the Chairman on 1 January 2009. Mr. Cai is a
member of the Remuneration Committee and the chairman of the
Nomination Committee and the Executive Committee of the Company. He
joined the Midea Group in 1992 and has held various senior management
positions in the Midea Group. He has considerable experience in strategic
management, risk management and research and development activities.
Mr. Cai is the chief executive officer of a member group of Midea Group.
He was a director of GD Midea Holding Co., Ltd. (“GD Midea”), a company
controlled by Midea and the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Cai holds a Master of Technology Mechanical Manufacturing
Degree from the Huazhong University of Science and Technology.

Mr. JIANG Deqing, aged 42, was appointed as an executive director and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 31 August 2008. Mr. Jiang
is @ member of the Executive Committee of the Company. He joined the
Group in May 1995. He has been the General Manager of washing motor
division of the Group since January 2005 and responsible for overall
management of washing motor division. He has held various senior
management positions in the Group and has over 16 years of experience in
the washing motor industry and years of managerial experience. Mr. Jiang
serves as a vice-chairman in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Jiang
holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration (Industrial Trade)
from Chongqging University and an Executive Master of Business
Administration Degree (EMBA) from the Guanghua School of Management
of Peking University.

Mr. QU Fei, aged 38, was appointed as an executive director and the
Chief Operating Officer of the Company on 31 March 2008. Mr. Qu is a
member of the Executive Committee of the Company. He joined the Midea
Group in 1998. He has held various senior management positions in the
Midea Group and has considerable experience in operations and strategic
management, information technology, and purchasing activities. Mr. Qu is
the chief operation officer of a member group of the Midea Group. Mr. Qu
is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Qu holds a
Bachelor Degree in Economics from Zhongnan University of Finance and
Economics and an Executive Master of Business Administration Degree
(EMBA) from the Guanghua School of Management of Peking University.
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Mr. CHEN Jianhong, aged 42, was appointed as an executive Director,
the Chief Financial Officer and a member of the Executive Committee of the
Company on 15 March 2011. Mr. Chen joined the Midea Group in 1993.
He has held various senior positions of financial management in Midea
Group and has considerable experience in financial management. Mr. Chen
is the chief financial officer of a member group of Midea Group. Mr. Chen
holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics awarded by the Jiangxi University
of Finance and Economics and a Master’s Degree in Administration
awarded by the Fuzhou University. He is an accountant accredited by the
Ministry of Finance People’s Republic of China.

Ms. YUAN Liqun, aged 42, was appointed as a hon-executive Director of
the Company on 17 November 2004 and re-designated as an executive
Director of the Company on 4 January 2007. Ms. Yuan is a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company. She joined the Midea Group in
1992. She has held various senior management positions in the Midea
Group and has considerable experience in finance, audit and overall
management. Ms. Yuan is a director and vice-president of Midea Group
Co., Ltd. and the chief financial officer of Midea Group. She is a director of
GD Midea. Ms. Yuan is the chairman of Midea Group Finance Co., Ltd. She
previously was a supervisor of GD Midea. She is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Yuan holds a Master of International
Management Degree from The Australian National University.

Mr. LI Jianwei, aged 45, was appointed as a non-executive director of the
Company on 17 November 2004 and re-designated as an executive
director of the Company on 14 June 2005. Mr. Li is a member of the
Executive Committee of the Company. He joined the Midea Group in 1994
and has held various senior management positions in the Midea Group. Mr.
Li has considerable experience in strategic development activities. Mr. Li is
a director and vice president of Midea Group Co., Ltd. He is also the vice
chairman of GD Midea. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Li holds a Master of Business Administration Degree from
Fudan University.

Mr. ZHENG Weikang, aged 43, was appointed as an executive director and
the Chief Director of the International Offices of the Company on 31 March
2008. Mr. Zheng is @ member of the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Executive Committee of the Company. He joined the
Midea Group in 1986. He has held various senior management positions in the
Midea Group and has considerable experience in financial and overall
management. Mr. Zheng is currently a director of Midea International
Corporation Company Limited and certain non-listed subsidiaries of the Midea
Group. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zheng
holds a Master of International Management Degree from The Australian
National University.
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Mr. TAN Jinsong, aged 47, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 1 August 2009. Mr. Tan is the
chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Tan is a non-practicing
member of the Guangdong Provincial Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He was approved as a PRC registered accountant in June
1995 and has become a non-practicing member of the Guangdong
Provincial Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January 2003. He
possesses over 26 years of experience in the profession of accounting and
financial management. Mr. Tan is currently a professor of the School of
Management of Sun Yat-sen University and was the Head of Department
of the Faculty of Accountancy and the Vice Dean of the School of
Management of Sun Yat-sen University.

Mr. Tan is an independent director of Sundiro Holding Co., Ltd., Yihua Real
Estate Co., Ltd. (both companies are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange), Grandhope Biotech Co., Ltd. (@ company listed on the ChiNext
of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange) and Cosco Shipping Co., Ltd (a
company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange). He was an independent
director of a number of PRC listed companies, including Huafa Industrial
Share Co., Ltd. and Guangdong Guanhao High-Tech Co., Ltd., both
companies are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, and GD Midea
Holding Co., Ltd. and Guangdong Ronsen Super Mirco-Wire Co., Ltd.,
both companies are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Mr. LAM Ming Yung, aged 48, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 1 December 1999. Mr. Lam is a
member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. He graduated from the School of
Law of Shanghai Eastern Chinese College of Politics and Jurisprudence
with a Bachelor of Law Degree in 1986. Mr. Lam started practicing law in
1987 in the province of Fujian in the PRC, and moved to Hong Kong in
mid-1998. He was registered as a foreign lawyer with The Law Society of
Hong Kong in July 1995, and is now practicing as Chief PRC Consultant,
Corporate Finance, and Foreign Legal Consultant (PRC), in the Hong Kong
office of Sidley Austin LLP. Mr. Lam was an independent non-executive
director of China Agrotech Holdings Limited and a non-executive director
of China Mining Resources Group Limited, both companies are listed on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. Mr. Lam was also an independent non-
executive director of China Lifestyle Food & Beverages Group Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange of Singapore.
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Ms. CHEN Chunhua, aged 48, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 22 December 2004. Ms. Chen is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Ms. Chen
holds a Postdoctorate Degree in Business Administration from Nanjing
University. She was a professor, tutor of doctoral candidates and Vice
Dean of the Faculty of Business Administration of South China University of
Technology. She was a visiting professor for the Asia-Pacific EMBA
Program of The National University of Singapore and is a part-time
professor of Nanjing University. Ms. Chen’s research speciality was
enterprise management, particularly enterprise organisation and operational
management. Ms. Chen was a president and a director of Shandong Liuhe
Company Limited and has considerable experience in enterprise
operational management. Ms. Chen is presently an independent director of
China Merchants Fund Management Co. Ltd. and Foshan Shunde Rural
Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. and the independent non-executive director of
SPT Energy Group Inc., a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong (appointed in December 2011).

Biographical Details of Senior Management

Mr. ZHOU Xiangyang, aged 39, joined the Group in July 1996. Mr. Zhou
is the general manager of the micro motors division of the Group. He has
held various senior management positions in the Group and has
considerable experience in sales, marketing and management of the
business operations of the Group. Mr. Zhou holds a Bachelor’s Degree in
Electrical Engineering from Harbin Institute of Technology and an Executive
Master of Business Administration Degree (EMBA) from the Guanghua
School of Management of Peking University.

Mr. ZENG Yong, aged 40, joined the Group in June 1999. Mr. Zeng is the
general manager of the commercial motor company of the Group. He has
held various senior management positions in the Group and has
considerable experience in sales, marketing and management of the
business operations of the Group. Mr. Zeng holds a Bachelor Degree in
Electrical Engineering from Zhejiang University.
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The Directors hereby present this report of the Directors and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2011.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis
of Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by business and
geographical segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Final Results

The final results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on pages 65 to 66.

Dividend

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK4 cents
per share for the Year (2010: HKO.8 cent per share before the five-to-one
share consolidation) to the shareholders of the Company whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 7 June 2012.
Subject to the approval from shareholders of the Company at the annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on 31 May 2012 (“AGM”), the
proposed final dividend will be paid on 15 June 2012.

Closure of Register of Members

For the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ rights of attending and voting
at the AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
28 May 2012 to 31 May 2012, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares shall be effected. In order to be entitled to attend and
vote at the AGM, shareholders should ensure that all transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
share registrars of the Company, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 25
May 2012.
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For the purpose of determining the identity of shareholders who are entitled
to the final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from 6 June 2012 to 7 June 2012, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares shall be effected. In order to qualify for the proposed
final dividend, shareholders should ensure that all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the share registrars
of the Company, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at
Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 5 June 2012.

Reserves

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the Group during
the Year are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Company
and the Group during the Year are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the Year
are set out in Note 16(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2011, the Company had distributable reserves
amounting to HK$121,531,000 (2010: HK$124,940,000).

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years, restated and reclassified as appropriate, is set
out on page 184. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities
The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the Year. Neither

the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the
Company’s shares during the Year.
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Share Option Scheme AR REST 21
Details of the share option scheme of the Company adopted on 27 June ZAABR-ZTZT=4,NH - ++ BEM 2 BRRET

2003 (the “Share Option Scheme”) are disclosed in Note 16(b) to the 2| ([BERHET 2 |) 2 5B A IS RE M 16(0)
consolidated financial statements. 7" o

Directors EE

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report were:  RAFEREHEAFRBABETZESWOT ¢

Executive Directors WITES

Mr. CAl Qiwu (Chairman) sBHREE(EE)

Mr. JIANG Dedqjing (Chief Executive Officer) EEFEE(EEHTE)

Mr. QU Fei BREE

Mr. CHEN Jianhong (appointed on 15 March 2011) BREBAAE(R=_E——F=ATHRAEZE)
Ms. YUAN Ligqun RAEFL L

Mr. LI Jianwei ERESLE

Mr. ZHENG Weikang MR RS

Mr. GAO Fazhong (resigned on 15 March 2011) HBEAREE(RZTE——F= A+ R HET)
Independent non-executive Directors BILERITES

Mr. TAN Jinsong ESPIAEE

Mr. LAM Ming Yung MEAE St 4

Ms. CHEN Chunhua BREELZ L

In accordance with Article 91 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr.  IRIEAR QAR Z SR AMANFE o115 - BREAE =
Qu Fei, Ms. Yuan Liqun, Mr. Zheng Weikang and Mr. Lam Ming Yung will ~ FIB¥Zz 4 « BB(2 e 4 M ARBA B Se A A R Al &
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will  [ERRBEF A SRS @ WHFAEERBBERAR R A
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting. EERRAF AT FEEET -

Directors’ Service Contracts EERBEY

On 26 May 2011, the Company entered into the letters of appointment with R =-ZT——FH A —+/NH » AA R EH=FIE I
three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Tan Jinsong, Mr.  SITTESEDNELE MABEEERRELEL TS
Lam Ming Yung and Ms. Chen Chunhua for a term commencing on 26 HiVZFE  AHH-"FT——FHRA=-1+/~BH
May 2011 and ending on the date of the Company’s next annual general IAEARAR TERERBEFASHP I AFEELH
meeting as their respective letters of appointment had expired on 26 May ZZEIEZEN-_ZT——FRA -t/ HEM °

2011.
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The above-mentioned letters of appointment provide that the remuneration
of the Directors shall be determined in accordance with the remuneration
policy as approved by the Board from time to time. Such letters of
appointment are terminable by either party upon one month’s written notice
to the other party or the payment to the other party of a sum equal to the
relevant Director’s monthly remuneration. These letters of appointment are
exempt from the shareholders’ approval requirement under Rule 13.68 of
the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the Directors proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without the payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Independence of Independent Non-Executive
Directors

The Company had received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his/her independence and considered
that each of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent
based on the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of the Group is set on the principles that the
remuneration packages of employees should be determined based on the
job duties, responsibilities, work performance, qualifications and
competence of each individual employee, performance of the Group and
the prevailing market and economic conditions in order to attract and retain
high-calibre employees needed to run the Company successfully.

The remuneration packages of executive Directors and senior management
of the Company are reviewed annually and determined by the
Remuneration Committee based on the duties, responsibilities of each
individual executive Director and senior management, performance of the
Group and the remuneration packages paid by comparable companies in
the same industry. No Director or any of his associates will be involved in
deciding his own remuneration. Remuneration of independent non-
executive Directors will be reviewed annually and recommended by the
Remuneration Committee to the Board for final approval.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives to stimulate the Directors of the Company and eligible
employees of the Group.
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Pension Schemes

Details of the pension schemes operated by the Group are set out in Note
25(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements, no
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company was a party and in
which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the
Year.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 36 to 39.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Equity or Debt Securities

As at 31 December 2011, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”),
Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong), as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or which have to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
any such Director or chief executive was taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) and the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) contained in the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”), were as follows:
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Interests in share options of the Company (long position)

RAAB ZEBREER(IFR)

5 A

During the Year, the movement of the share options granted to the ~ WAAREE - RIFEIRES 2R TEE 2 BRES
Directors under the Share Option Scheme were as follows: PO
Options Options Options Options Adjusted Closing price
held at Adjustment  exercised lapsed held at exercise immediately
1 January made during  during the  during the 31 December price per Exercisable before the
Name Date of grant 2011 the year year year 2011 option period date of grant
RIg——% R-g——%
—A—B REEER REEER REEER TZAZ+-B  ERESH RERLAY
i REBY HEZHERE (EHZEE TRZBRE KR2BERE RE2BRE BRETEE AR RRGEHE
HKS HKS
(Note b) (Note b)
(FiizED) (Fiztb)
Directors =
Mr. Cai Qiwu BEHREE 09/01/2009 68,000,000  (54,400,000) — — 13,600,000 0.785 01/04/2010- 0.151
31/03/2017
(Note a)
(Kzta)
Mr. Jiang Deging ZEEEE 09/01/2009 36,000,000  (28,800,000) - - 7,200,000 0.785 01/04/2010- 0.151
31/03/2017
(Note a)
(FizEa)
Mr. Qu Fei ERLE 09/01/2009 22,000,000  (17,600,000) = = 4,400,000 0.785 01/04/2010- 0.151
31/03/2017
(Note a)
(HizEa)
Mr. Lam Ming Yung ~ #EAB %A 30/07/2007 2,000,000  (1,600,000) — — 400,000 3.900 30/07/2007- 0.77
29/07/2017
09/01/2009 5,000,000  (4,000,000) - — 1,000,000 0.785 01/04/2010- 0.151
31/03/2017
(Note a)
GE)
Ms. Chen Chunhua BEELT 30/07/2007 2,000,000  (1,600,000) = = 400,000 3.900 30/07/2007- 0.77
29/07/2017
09/01/2009 5,000,000  (4,000,000) - — 1,000,000 0.785 01/04/2010- 0.151
31/03/2017
(Note a)
(FiizEa)
Mr. Gao Fazhong HEBELE 09/01/2009 25,000,000  (20,000,000)  (2,500,000)  (2,500,000) = 0.785 01/04/2010- 0.151
(Note o) (Btkc) 31/03/2017
(Note a)
(Fiiz¥a)
BEZERERAT —ZE——FFH
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Notes:

BERE

The consideration for each of the grants above was HK$1. The options
granted on 9 January 2009 shall be exercisable during the option period
subject to a vesting scale in four tranches of 25% each and the achievement
of the performance target of the net profit attributable to the owners of the
Company of the relevant period as set out below:

1. the first 256% of the options granted to each grantee shall be
exercisable within seven years after 31 March 2010 provided that the
net profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the financial
year ended 31 December 2009 as disclosed in the final results

announcement of the Company is not less than 100% of the net

profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the financial year
ended 31 December 2008 (excluding the results from discontinued

business) (“Net Profit of 2008”);

2. the second 25% of the options granted to each grantee shall be
exercisable within six years after 31 March 2011 provided that the net
profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the financial year
ended 31 2010 as disclosed
announcement of the Company is not less than 150% of the Net
Profit of 2008;

December in the final results

3. the third 25% of the options granted to each grantee shall be
exercisable within five years after 31 March 2012 provided that the
net profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the financial
year ended 31 December 2011
announcement of the Company is not less than 200% of the Net
Profit of 2008; and

as disclosed in the final results

4. the remaining 25% of the options granted to each grantee shall be
exercisable within four years after 31 March 2013 provided that the
net profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the financial
year ended 31 December 2012 as disclosed in the final results
announcement of the Company is not less than 280% of the Net
Profit of 2008.

Adjustments were made to the number of outstanding share options and the
exercise price upon the five-to-one share consolidation becoming effective on
27 May 2011. Details of the share consolidation and the adjustments to the
share options were set out in the Company’s circular dated 11 May 2011
and announcement dated 26 May 2011.

Mr. Gao Fazhong resigned as an executive Director of the Company on 15
March 2011. 2,500,000 share options of Mr. Gao were lapsed on 30
September 2011.

Details of the Share Option Scheme are disclosed in Note 16(b) to the

consolidated financial statements.
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Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 31 December
2011 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or associated
corporations (within the meaning of the SFO), its fellow subsidiaries or its
holding company, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or
the chief executive of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of the shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of the SFO), or had exercised
any such rights during the Year.

Other than those interests disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none
of the Directors and the chief executive of the Company and their
respective associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the SFO) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he/she was taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which were recorded in the register kept by the Company under section
352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Businesses
As at 31 December 2011, none of the Directors was interested in any

business apart from the business of the Group, which competes or is likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with that of the Group.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests

As at 31 December 2011, the following persons, other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company, had an interest or short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

FERRED

BIRE 5 M S 50 F 33616 AN A T BF B 2 B
Br R Z——F+-_A=+—8  THAL(E
B AR REEITEA BBRIN REAR R Z %5 &8
R P A ERIAR

Approximate
Number of percentage of

Name of shareholder Nature of Interest shares held shareholding

RS R E

FARHBE HERBOESE

Midea Holding (Cayman Islands) Limited Long position Beneficial interest 1,901,204,779 67.38%

(“Midea (Cayman Islands)”) (Note 1)
EnER(A2ES)ARAA Sy EmiEm
(= (REES)DFE)

E\

Midea Investment Holding (BVI) Limited Long position Interest in a controlled 1,901,204,779 67.38%
(“Midea Holding”) (Note 2) corporation
EOERBVVER AT ErZER D (MIE2) R b NE L
Midea Group Co., Ltd. (“Midea”) (Note 3) Long position Interest in controlled 1,909,696,779 67.68%
corporations
EREBEER AR ER D (HFES) e b NE L
Foshan Shunde Midea Investment Holding Long position Interest in controlled 1,909,696,779 67.68%
Co., Ltd. (“Shunde Midea”) (Note 4) corporations
BRIl IRfERENREERAR AR R S NE L o

(MefEser (M EE4)

Mr. He Xiangjian (Note 5) Long position Interest in controlled 1,909,696,779 67.68%
corporations

fa] = {2 5t A (Fff3E5) e B s

Ms. Liang Fengchai (Note 6) Long position Interest of spouse 1,909,696,779 67.68%

2B (Fi3E6) A [

Notes: MisE -

1. These 1,901,204,779 shares of the Company were registered in the name of 1. EN(RAEHS)NAEEERLY RS HAXF

and beneficially owned by Midea (Cayman Islands).
2. Midea Holding was deemed to be interested in the 1,901,204,779 shares of

the Company in which Midea (Cayman Islands) was interested by virtue of its
holding 100% equity interest in Midea (Cayman Islands).
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3 There were 8,492,000 shares of the Company registered in the name of and
beneficially owned by Midea International Corporation Company Limited (“Midea
International”) which is a company 100%-owned by Midea. Midea Holding is
also a 100%-owned company of Midea. Accordingly, Midea was deemed to
be interested in the aggregate of 1,909,696,779 shares of the Company
including 8,492,000 shares in which Midea International was interested and
1,901,204,779 shares in which Midea Holding was deemed to be interested
by virtue of its holding 100% equity interest in both Midea International and
Midea Holding.

4. The registered capital of Midea is owned as to 65.15% by Shunde Midea.
Accordingly, Shunde Midea was deemed to be interested in the aggregate
number of 1,909,696,779 shares of the Company in which Midea was
deemed to be interested by virtue of its holding 65.15% equity interest in
Midea.

5. The registered capital of Shunde Midea is owned as to 94.55% by Mr. He
Xiangjian. Accordingly, Mr. He Xiangjian was deemed to be interested in the
aggregate number of 1,909,696,779 shares of the Company in which Shunde
Midea was deemed to be interested by virtue of his holding 94.55% equity
interest in Shunde Midea.

6. Ms. Liang Fengchai is the spouse of Mr. He Xiangjian and is therefore
deemed to be interested in the aggregate number of 1,909,696,779 shares
of the Company in which Mr. He Xiangjian was deemed to be interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, the Company was not
aware of any other person (other than the Directors or chief executive of
the Company) who had an interest or a short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which was required to be notified to the
Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and have
been recorded in the register kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the Year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers together accounted for 38.6%
of the Group’s total sales during the Year. The five largest customers are
set out below:

1. 16.4% from GD Midea Air-Conditioning Equipment Co., Ltd. of
which is a company controlled by Midea.

2. 7.1% from Guangdong Midea Group Wuhu Air-conditioning
Equipment Co., Ltd. of which a Director of the Company is director
and it is controlled by Midea.
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6.2% from Midea Group Wuhan Refrigeration Equipment Co., Ltd. of
which is a company controlled by Midea.

4.9% from Wuxi Little Swan Co., Ltd. of which a Director of the
Company is director and it is controlled by Midea.

The remaining largest customer accounted for 4.0% of the total
sales during the Year and none of the Directors, their associates or
any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had an interest in
the said major customers.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers together accounted for

less than 30% of the Group’s total purchase during the Year.

Connected Transactions and Continuing
Connected Transactions

During the Year, the Group had the following connected and continuing

connected transactions which were disclosed by published

announcements:

Connected Transactions

(1)

On 15 April 2011 Foshan Welling Electronic and Electric Co., Ltd.
(“Welling Electronic and Electric”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) entered into the assets transfer agreement (“Assets
Transfer Agreement”) with Guangdong Midea Microwave Electrical
Appliances Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (“Midea Microwave”) which is a
fellow subsidiary of Midea Group Co., Ltd. (“Midea”, the controlling
shareholder of the Company), pursuant to which, Welling Electronic
and Electric agreed to dispose of the machinery equipment and
moulds, testing equipment and office equipment (collectively the
“Assets”) to Midea Microwave at a cash consideration of
RMB22,078,100. Upon completion of the disposal of the Assets, the
Group ceased the business of manufacturing transformer and
shaded pole motor.

The Assets Transfer Agreement and the disposal of the Assets were
approved by independent shareholders of the Company at an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 26 May 2011
(“2011 EGM”).
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On 18 November 2011, Guangdong Welling Motor Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. (“Guangdong Welling”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) entered into a capital increase agreement (“Capital
Increase Agreement”) with Midea and GD Midea Holding Co., Ltd.
(“GD Midea”, a company controlled by Midea), pursuant to which,
each of Guangdong Welling, Midea and GD Midea agreed to
increase its capital contribution to Midea Group Finance Co., Ltd.
(“Finance Company”) In an aggregate amount of RMB1,000 million
in proportion to each of their respective equity interests in the
Finance Company by way of cash (“Capital Increase”). According to
the 5% equity interest of Guangdong Welling in the Finance
Company, RMB50 million in cash should be made by Guangdong
Welling to the Finance Company. The Capital Increase in the Finance
Company was approved by the China Banking Regulatory
Commission (“CBRC”) on 30 December 2011 and the payment of
capital contribution by each of Guangdong Welling, Midea and GD
Midea was completed on the same date. Upon completion of the
Capital Increase, the registered capital of the Finance Company
increased from RMB500 million to RMB1,500 million while the
respective equity interests of Guangdong Welling, Midea and GD
Midea in the Finance Company remained at 5%, 55% and 40%
respectively.

The entering into of the Capital Increase Agreement and the Capital
Increase contemplated thereunder were only subject to reporting
and announcement requirements and exempted from independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Continuing Connected Transactions

(1)

On 13 April 2010, the Company entered into the renewed Midea
framework agreement with Midea (“Renewed Midea Framework
Agreement”) for renewal of the Midea Framework Agreement dated
22 February 2008 and set out the new annual caps in respect of ()
the sale of motors and electronic and electric components for
electrical household appliances and raw materials by the Group to
Midea Group; and (i) the purchase of raw materials and processed
raw materials and motor samples by the Group from Midea Group
(together the “Sales and Purchases CCTs”) for three years ending 31
December 2012. The Renewed Midea Framework Agreement and
the transactions contemplated thereunder were approved by
independent shareholders of the Company at an extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 18 May 2010 (“2010
EGM”).
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In consideration that the annual caps of Sales and Purchases CCTs
for 2011 and 2012 set out in the Renewed Midea Framework
Agreement would not be sufficient to satisfy the business
requirements of the Group, on 15 April 2011, the Company and
Midea entered into a new Midea framework agreement (“New Midea
Framework Agreement”) to supercede the Renewed Midea
Framework Agreement and to set the revised annual caps of Sales
and Purchases CCTs for 2011 and 2012 and the new annual caps
of Sales and Purchases CCTs for 2013. Except for the term of the
agreement being extended for one year until 31 December 2013 and
the setting of annual caps for the three years ending 31 December
2013, other terms and conditions of the New Midea Framework
Agreement are the same as those of the Renewed Midea Framework
Agreement. The New Midea Framework Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder were approved by

independent shareholders of the Company at the 2011 EGM.

(2)  On 13 April 2010, the Company entered into the Wellkey framework
agreement (“Wellkey Framework Agreement”) with Foshan City
Wellkey Electrical Material Co., Ltd. (“Wellkey”, a company controlled
by Mr. He Jianfeng who is the son of Mr. He Xiangjian, the controlling
shareholder of Midea) which set out the basis for the purchase of
raw materials by the Group from Wellkey and the annual caps of
transaction amount for the three years ending 31 December 2012.
The Wellkey Framework Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder were approved by independent
shareholders of the Company at the 2010 EGM. No purchases of
raw materials were made by the Group from Wellkey during the year

ended 31 December 2011.

) On 13 April 2010, the Company entered into the renewed logistic
service agreement (“Renewed Logistic Service Agreement”) with
Wuhu Annto Logistics Co., Ltd. (“Annto”, a subsidiary of Midea) for
renewal of the logistic service agreement, which was entered into
between the Company and Annto on 17 April 2009 and expired on
31 December 2010, in order to continue the provision of logistic
services by Annto or its subsidiaries to the Group and set out the
annual caps of logistic service fees payable for the three years
ending 31 December 2012. The Renewed Logistic Service
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder were
exempt from the requirement of independent shareholders’ approval
pursuant to the Listing Rules. No logistic service fees were paid by

the Group to Annto during the year ended 31 December 2011.
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On 13 April 2010, Guangdong Welling entered into the financial
services framework agreement (“Financial Services Framework
Agreement”) with the Finance Company in respect of the provision of
certain core financial services, including deposit, loan, bills
discounting, foreign exchange and guarantee services and other
financial services by the Finance Company to Guangdong Welling
and its subsidiaries for a term commencing on 18 May 2010 (the
date of approval on the Financial Services Framework Agreement by
the independent shareholders of the Company at the 2010 EGM)
and ending on 31 December 2012.

The Financial Services Framework Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder were approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the 2010 EGM.

The Finance Company was granted approval to commence business
by the CBRC in June 2010 and it has commenced its business since
November 2010.
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The following table sets out the transaction amount of each of the aforesaid ~ F&R&E7| il AEBFRZIFEBELFHNL 558
continuing connected transactions of the Group during the Year and the R -ZT— —FHEBEEHNFE LR :
relevant approved annual caps for 2011:

Transaction amount

for the year ended Annual caps
Transactions 31 December 2011 for 2011
BE-¥——F
+=RA=+—8H —F——fF
x5 IFEENRSE SEEER
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
(AREBFIT) (AR®BFT)
Sale of motors and electronic and electric MEREEHEREEHRE 5,016,186 5,796,000
components for electrical household TEREMKEREME
appliances and raw materials to Midea
Group
Purchase of raw materials and processed raw  [A13 )£ B HEREE R AR K 48 hn 224,529 374,000
materials and motors samples from Midea TREMA R B
Group
Financial services provided by the Finance BT RITR L0 BT 75 AR 75
Company
— Deposit (daily maximum outstanding balance — fFzk (B IR FI B K% F & 301,459 512,000
including accrued interest and handling BNEHSESER)
fees)
— Loan (daily maximum outstanding balance ~ — B (BEREANERFE — 911,000
including accrued interest and handling ENBHARREH)
fees)
— Bills discounting (face value of the bills — ZRMBR (KR NREE 384,831 1,939,000
discounted) &)
— Guarantee — R — 500,000
— Foreign exchange (US$’000) — SNE(FZETT) — 200,000

Details of the significant related party transactions entered into by certain ~ KN&EEEFRKE ARIRE FtthZRNEE T ——
members of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2011 pursuant &+ = 8=+—H It FE:] L2 EA@E H X 5 (%
to the agreements mentioned above, which constituted connected %2z SR1E FMRAIE 14AZFEKEER H S -
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, are disclosed in Note 4R 4 B FSIRFMIFER7IHER ©

37 to the consolidated financial statements.
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions of the Group during the Year and confirmed that
the continuing connected transactions have been entered into:

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

()
on normal commercial terms; and

in accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Board of Directors engaged PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of
the Company, to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to the Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions of the Group disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.38
of the Listing Rules. The auditor has confirmed to the Company that
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe the
continuing connected transactions of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2011 as disclosed above:

(1) have not received the approval of the Board of Directors of the
Company;

2 were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policy of the Company;

) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing such transactions; and
4) have exceeded the amounts of annual caps as disclosed in the

previous announcements made by the Company on 13 April 2010
and 15 April 2011 in respect of each of the disclosed continuing
connected transactions.
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A copy of the auditor’s letter on continuing connected transactions of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange. The Company confirmed that it has
complied with the disclosure requirements with respect to the above-
mentioned continuing connected transactions of the Group in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.22 of The Listing
Rules

As at 31 December 2011, the aggregate amount of guarantees given for
the loan facilities granted to the associates by the Group amounted to
HK$529 million which exceeded 8% of the assets ratio as defined in Rule
14.07(1) of the Listing Rules. A pro-forma combined statement of financial
position of the associates, in which the Group has a 49% equity interest, as
at 31 December 2011 is presented below:

AARBHAEEEE—_T—F+=_A=1+—H
I FERERER S H MR BN & & Ak 25
AT o AR RIFERE LA 2 AL B ER
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Wi R RIS 13.221R 1 L 1 5

RZB——F+ZA=+—H ' AEERHLAA]
ESEXREMRBREZERELBEARAR
529,000,000 7T - i@ _E R AIZE 14.07(1) fRFTARTE
BELERZ8% WN_FT——FF+ZA=+—H &%
BAASEES 49% RIENHE AR 2 HEZE 0K
ARRK 2PN -

Pro-forma

combined statement Group’s attributable

of financial position interest (49%)

BESHMBRAR FREEHEIE9%)

HK$’000 HK$’'000

BT T BT T

Non-current assets FEMENEEE 772,765 378,655
Current assets MENEE 814,711 399,208
Current liabilities mEaE (625,502) (306,496)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (442,888) (217,015)
Net assets BEFE 519,086 254,352

Consolidation of Shares of the Company

On 15 April 2011, the Company announced the proposed share
consolidation on the basis that every five issued and unissued shares of
HK$0.1 each in the share capital of the Company would be consolidated
into one consolidated share of HK$0.5 each (the “Share Consolidation”).
The ordinary resolution approving the Share Consolidation was duly passed
by the shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting
held on 26 May 2011 and the Share Consolidation became effective on 27
May 2011. Details of the Share Consolidation were set out in the
Company’s circular dated 11 May 2011.
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Non-Competition Deed

On 22 February 2008, Midea entered into a non-competition deed in favour
of the Company (“Non-Competition Deed”) to undertake that Midea and
other members of Midea Group (except the Group) will not engage in any
business of the manufacturing and distribution of motors and electronic
and electric components for all electrical household appliances and any
business activities carried on or proposed to be carried on by the Group
which would directly or indirectly compete with the business of the Group.

In compliance with the requirement of the Non-Competition Deed, Midea
has submitted to the Company the annual declaration confirming that
Midea and its associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) have complied
with all the provisions of the Non-Competition Deed throughout the year
ended 31 December 2011 (“Declaration”). The independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the Declaration and are satisfied with the
compliance by Midea and its associates with the provisions of the Non-
competition Deed and the enforcement of the Non-competition Deed
during the year ended 31 December 2011.

Compliance With the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors and the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices

Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report set out on pages 20 to
35 for the compliance with the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors and the Code on Corporate Governance Practices.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirmed that the
Company has maintained, during the Year, sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules.
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Auditor EEED

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by ZEERAGESHAMEEHIDEZGEAMEERE - Z
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves X EEITImEE » WA LK BFEES BEIEET - —
for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of JBEEZEEF KESTAISEETANEBZELN 2
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Group is to be proposed at the REBEZEGHEEREBEAS HIEL -

forthcoming Annual General Mesting.

On behalf of the Board REXESS

Welling Holding Limited EERFRAT

CAl Qiwu *E

Chairman ZHE

Hong Kong, 9 March 2012 BB ZE——F=ANH
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To The Shareholders of Welling Holding Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Welling Holding
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out
on pages 61 to 183, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2011, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B RET R &

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011
R=F——F+=A=+—H

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2011, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 9 March 2012
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FEMBRAR

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011
R=Z——F+=-A=+—H

As at 31 December

W+=A=+—H
2011 2010
—T——%5 —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT IT BT
Note (Restated)
BaE (&%)
ASSETS &E
Non-current assets EREEE
Leasehold land and land use rights FHE L N T 6 171,367 125,509
Property, plant and equipment Wz - BB RiEtE 7 1,137,570 883,435
Intangible assets mEE 8 65,017 23,188
Investments in associates B N R E 10 254,352 223,651
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISTHEE 22 38,853 32,254
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESmERE 11 97,307 29,381
Prepayment for property, plant and equipment  JBH#1% - BiE R & R0E 13 11,981 18,335
1,776,447 1,335,753
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 12 613,051 1,943,750
Trade and other receivables B 5 RH MR 13 1,635,114 1,720,623
Due from related companies FEUS FE RS A R FOE 37(c) 1,070,358 382,549
Derivative financial instruments PTAETmIA 21 16,792 25,922
Pledged bank deposits with maturity =&AL LRE 2 B
period over 3 months RITIERN 14 77,767 118,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRSFED 15 972,923 805,079
4,386,005 4,995,923
Total assets B E 6,162,452 6,331,676
EQUITY W
Capital and reserves attributable to EATHRE ANELBREREE
the owners of the Company
Share capital A& A 16 1,410,806 1,409,056
Other reserves H b 17 700,121 583,999
Retained earnings/(Accumulated losses) RBAEF,(REHER)
— Proposed final dividend — EEAARE 30 112,865 112,725
— Others — HAh 272,022 (184,780)
2,495,814 1,921,000
Non-controlling interests FEIE R LS 56,360 54,304
Total equity ELSUER 2,552,174 1,975,304
REZRERAT —E——F5H§ o1



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mEMBIRRR

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011
RZZF——F+=-HA=1+—H

As at 31 December

w+=A=+—H
2011 2010
—ET——F —ZE-TF
HK$°000 HK$’000
HBETFT BT
Note (Restated)
BRE (&%)
LIABILITIES =1
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Borrowings [EE 18 94,395 104,364
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFSTHEE 22 73,549 50,773
Deferred government grant IR BT AL 19 23,282 —
191,226 155,137
Current liabilities RENEE
Trade and other payables B 5 RHEMPER R 20 3,012,053 3,421,344
Due to related companies FE T EBHS A RIRR 37(c) 130,376 481,476
Derivative financial instruments PTESRT A 21 240 —
Current income tax liabilities BIHAFr S atE 37,262 56,969
Borrowings &R 18 239,121 241,446
3,419,052 4,201,235
Total liabilities P = 3,610,278 4,356,372
Total equity and liabilities EnRAEEE 6,162,452 6,331,676
Net current assets MENEERE 966,953 794,688
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRHERE 2,743,400 2,130,441

The Notes on pages 72 to 183 are an integral part of these consolidated 5 72 & 183 B Z M AltiG AP HBHRERZ — 6
financial statements.
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Director Director
EE BE
CAIl Qiwu CHEN Jianhong
EHK PREBAL
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AR R

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011
R=Z——F+=-A=+—H

As at 31 December

®+=—A=+—H
2011 2010
—E——%F —E-TF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BaE HBETIT BT
ASSETS &E
Non-current assets EFREFEE
Property, plant and equipment Wz - W RiEtE 7 15 23
Investments in subsidiaries WEARHIE 9 5,377,520 5,106,440
Loan to a subsidiary ERT—KMBAR 9 - 100,940
5,377,535 5,207,403
Current assets REBEE
Loan to a subsidiary BARF—RMEBAF 9 60,143 —
Prepayments and other receivables TR R H R U 13 485 1,302
Dividend receivable RIS 145,000 120,000
Cash and cash equivalents Be MIREEEY 15 13,457 1,560
219,085 122,862
Total assets HEE 5,596,620 5,330,265
EQUITY W
Capital and reserves attributable to EATHE AFEL
the owners of the Company AR A
Share capital A% A 16 1,410,806 1,409,056
Other reserves HAb B 17 4,061,692 3,794,085
Retained profits REBFE
Proposed final dividend BEEARHRE 30 112,865 112,725
Others HAth 8,666 12,215
Total equity B 5,594,029 5,328,081
RELRERAT —F——F5%H
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AR R

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011
R=F——F+=A=+—H

As at 31 December

®+=A=+—H
2011 2010
—ET——%F —E-EF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BaE HBETIT BT T
LIABILITIES =1

Current liabilities HREasE
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A R E MR 20 2,591 2,184
Total liabilities PO =T 2,591 2,184
Total equity and liabilities LR EEEE 5,596,620 5,330,265
Net current assets REEEFHE 216,494 120,678
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRHEE 5,594,029 5,328,081

The Notes on pages 72 to 183 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 61 to 183 were approved

by the board of Directors on 9 March 2012 and were signed on its behalf.

Director

EZE

CAIl Qiwu

EHE
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

mEWmR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
BE_ZT——FT-A=1T—HIFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+—HLEE

2011 2010
—T——%5 —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BETT RET T
Note (Restated)
PiEE (E7))
Continuing operations BEEEER
Revenue WA 5 10,490,373 7,235,360
Cost of goods sold SHE S mAAR (9,287,892) (6,294,454)
Gross profit EH 1,202,481 940,906
Other gains — net Hftlhzs — 558 23 14,809 27,294
Selling and marketing costs SHE RIS HE A (140,736) (100,702)
Administrative expenses TR (306,078) (215,782)
Operating profit FEFE 770,476 651,716
Finance costs BMEKK 26 (61,589) (30,442)
Finance income AME WA 26 10,047 4,460
Finance costs — net BERA — F58 26 (51,542) (25,982)
Share of profit of associates {hEs N J) F) 10 19,204 9,269
Profit before income tax B FR S BRI R 738,138 635,003
Income tax expense FTiSHif S 27 (146,130) (122,624)
Profit for the year from FEEEERS
continuing operations ZEEFE 592,008 512,379
Discontinued operations CRIEEEEFE
Profit from discontinued operations IR PR TS 2 T 36 12,583 20,692
Profit for the year FEEFHE 604,591 533,071
Profit attributable to: AT A LREMEFIE -
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE SN 607,563 532,338
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR M A (2,972) 733
604,591 533,071
REZRERAT —T-—F5H# 65



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
relmR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
BHE_T——FTA=T—HItFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+—HLLEE

2011 2010
—T——%5 —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BETT EEET T
Note (Restated)
PiEE (E71))
Profit attributable to the owners of the EATHEEA
Company arises from: FEAEFIE -
— Continuing operations — RERFEEEES 594,980 511,646
— Discontinued operations — REKRIEEEER 12,583 20,692
607,563 532,338
Earnings per share from continuing and EATHE AEGIFE
discontinued operations attributable to EEEBERBRIE
the owners of the Company, expressed WEEBZERER
in HK cents per share LIS EW SR
Basic earnings per share BEREEXEF
From continuing operations REFELCEER 29 21.11 18.38
From discontinued operations RERIELEER 29 0.45 0.74
21.56 19.12
Diluted earnings per share SkiEERT
From continuing operations REFELEED 29 20.95 18.17
From discontinued operations DEEIR i 29 0.44 0.74
21.39 18.91

Details of proposed final dividend payable to the owners of the Company — JEfIARAE A AERALRE 2 51 HRKIFES0 ©
are set out in Note 30.

The Notes on pages 72 to 183 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ MRE72E 1838 Z Mzt BUtirE BTz —25 °
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FEEEKER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
BE_ZT——FT-A=1T—HIFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+—HLEE

2011 2010
—F——% —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
(Restated)
(&E751))
Profit for the year EENE 604,591 533,071
Other comprehensive income: Hih2miss :
Currency translation differences EHEN =R 104,738 60,478
Change in value of available-for-sale financial assets AN ECREEBEED 4,694 —
Other comprehensive income for the year FEEMEEKE 109,432 60,478
Total comprehensive income for the year FEE2EKELEEE 714,023 593,549
Total comprehensive income for the year LTALEGEEEZT
attributable to: W E548EE -
Owners of the Company VNN 2SN 716,716 592,816
Non-controlling interests FEIEIR RS (2,693) 733
714,023 593,549
Total comprehensive income attributable to the owners AT #H AFE(E
of the Company arises from: 2mEl IR -
Continuing operations REFELEET 704,133 572,124
Discontinued operations TR 4R AR TS 12,583 20,692
716,716 592,816

The Notes on pages 72 to 183 are an integral part of these consolidated #5572 = 183 B Z i st BlUt4R A B gk &k 2 — 3

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEEREHR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
HE_Z——&F+_A=1—HILFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

RRREE AE(
Retained
earnings/
(accumulated Non-controlling
Share capital  Other reserves losses) Total interests Total equity
REBF/
e Hinkth (R5tE18) At R R Bngs
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Balance at 1 January 2010, R-F-F5-A—-H
as restated 28R (EF) 1,347,931 278,519 (485,660) 1,140,790 58,363 1,199,153
Comprehensive income: 2
Profit for the year EEFE - - 532,338 532,338 733 533,071
Other comprehensive income: Hib 2w :
Currency translation differences BRELZR - 60,478 - 60,478 - 60,478
Total comprehensive income 2EKRESH - 60,478 532,338 592,816 733 593,549
Transactions with owners: HEBEHARTHRS :
Transfer to statutory reserves BRELATRE - 48,311 (48,311) - - -
Issue of ordinary shares LBk
— proceeds from shares issued — BIIRMAEHE 60,000 192,000 - 252,000 - 252,000
— share issuance expenses — BIROHAY - (6,557) - (6,557) - (6,557)
Employee share option scheme EEREARE 2
— value of services provided — iR 2 BE - 5,841 - 5,841 - 5,841
— proceeds from shares issued — BORMMGETE 1,125 641 - 1,766 - 1,766
— share issuance expenses — BIABIREY - (26) - (26) - (26)
Deemed contribution from ultimate holding RIERAF]
company arising from its acquisition of non- W IR ER
controlling interests FIEEMRIERR - 4,792 - 4,792 (4,792) -
Dividend relating to 2009 ZETNFERE - - (70,422) (70,422) - (70,422)
Total transactions with owners HRAAETZRHEE 61,125 245,002 (118,733 187,394 (4,792) 182,602
Balance at 31 December 2010, R-E-FF+-A=+-H
as restated ZE8(E)) 1,400,056 583,099 (72,055) 1,921,000 54,304 1,075,304

Welling Holding Limited Annual Report 2011



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FEEmERR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
 ZE=E——F+-A=+—BIFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

RO NELS
Retained
earnings/ Non-
Other (accumulated controlling
Share capital reserves losses) Total interests  Total equity
REEF/
L2 Hib ikt (RitR) &7 iR BREE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETR BRI BETR BETT BETT BRI
Balance at 1 January 2011, R=%——%—-H-H
as restated ZEERR(ET) 1,409,056 583,999 (72,055) 1,921,000 54,304 1,975,304
Comprehensive income: 2
Profit for the year ERFIE = = 607,563 607,563 2,972) 604,501
Other comprehensive income: Hin 2w -
Change in value of available-for-sale e eREE
financial assets BEEZ - 4,694 - 4,694 - 4,694
Currency translation differences ERERER - 104,459 - 104,459 279 104,738
Total comprehensive income DEMEEE - 109,153 607,563 716,716 (2,693) 714,023
Transactions with owners: HEFAETHRS
Transfer to statutory reserves BEZEERE - 37,896 (37,896) = = =
Employee share option scheme EERBRELE
— value of services provided — iRt RIS 2 EE - 2,499 - 2,499 - 2,499
— proceeds from shares issued — BRIDBITFTEIE 1,750 998 - 2,748 - 2,748
— share issuance expenses — BHEIMEY - (34) = (34) = (34)
Consideration paid for merger of a subsidiary A6 FEIZH T 2HBAE]
under common control BRRE - (88,694) - (88,694) - (88,694)
Deemed contribution from ultimate holding SRERA BRI RS
company arising from its acquisition of non- FESRRIEER
controlling interests - 54,304 - 54,304 (54,304) -
Non-controlling interest arising on business EBRAREEERES
combination - - - - 59,053 59,053
Dividend relating to 2010 —E-TEERE - - (112,725) (112,725) - (112,725)
Total transactions with owners HEEANETZRSEE 1,750 6,969 (150,621) (141,902) 4,749 (137,153)
Balance at 31 December 2011 R=B8——%+=A=+-H
A 1,410,806 700,121 384,887 2,495,814 56,360 2,552,174

The Notes on pages 72 to 183 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
w3 Eﬁﬁ”lbg

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
BE_T——Ft-A=1+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+—HLEE

2011 2010
—T——5 —TF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
BT BT T
Note (Restated)
PEE (E71))
Cash flows from operating activities REFBZBELSRE
Cash generated from operations WEEEZRS 31(a) 882,084 674,448
Interest paid BFE (49,370) (30,895)
Interest received BB 10,181 4,471
Income tax paid B ATISH (159,789) (87,559)
Net cash generated from operating activites & & EBEL 2 IRE FEE 683,106 560,465
Cash flows from investing activities BEEHZHERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEWE BB L&E (260,976) (148,010)
Increase in construction-in-progress EREITIREM (117,918) (122,956)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayment for AU - BB KRB
property, plant and equipment IR A (3E0) 6,354 (14,519)
Proceeds from sale of property, HEWE  BELRE
plant and equipment ﬁﬁﬁ%’( 31(b) 57,720 13,796
Proceeds from disposals of property, HERIMHEEEEZ2WE K
plant and equipment for %&ﬂfﬁﬁﬁﬁ#\
discontinued operations 27,180 —
Purchases of leasehold land and BEHE TR AR
land use rights 6 (31,609) —
Development cost FI B A 8 (5,608) —
Proceed from deferred government grant EIETR AT AL FT1S 1A 19 23,757 -
Consideration paid for merger of a ABHERZEH T ZHBA
subsidiary under common control FRE (88,694) —
Acquisition of a subsidiary U BB M A ) 35 20,564 -
Increase in available-for-sale financial assets B E SR EEL N 11 (60,394) -
Net cash used in investing activities BEESMAZEESFE (429,624) (271,689

70 Welling Holding Limited Annual Report 2011



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FEHERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2011
BE—_Z——Ft-A=1+—BLFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+—HLLEE

2011 2010
g% —T-TF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Note (Restated)
P EE (E71))
Cash flows from financing activities AIEESZEERE
Proceeds from borrowings CEGIECEeE 401,735 285,423
Repayments of borrowings EEER (448,343) (152,133)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged “EANREREZ
bank deposits with maturity period BEIFRITERORD
over 3 months (1) 40,233 (68,919)
Dividends paid BT % (112,725) (70,422)
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares BT B ATSHUA 2,748 253,766
Shares issuance expenses BIIRHFAZ (34) (6,583)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEE(FTA) EEXZ
financing activities R& 358 (116,386) 241,132
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents IR&RIRSZEYEINELE 137,096 529,908
Cash and cash equivalents at the FUzRE R
beginning of the year REEEY 805,079 267,607
Effect on exchange difference ERERETE 30,748 7,564
Cash and cash equivalents at the FRZEERIEEEY
end of the year 15 972,923 805,079
The Notes on pages 72 to 183 are an integral part of these consolidated W% 72 & 183 B Z i Atz A P B HER 2 — 6

financial statements.
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(2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBRRMEE

2.1

General Information

Welling Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) manufacture, distribute and sell motors and
electronic and electric components for electrical household
appliances and trade raw materials in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) and overseas.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong
Kong. The address of its registered office is at Suite 3904, 39/F,
Tower 6, The Gateway, Harbour City, 9 Canton Road, Tsim Sha
Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the board of Directors
on 9 March 2012.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (the “HKFRSs”). The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets and
derivatives financial instruments.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

Welling Holding Limited Annual Report 2011
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Merger accounting and discontinued operations

In December 2010, Foshan Welling Washer Motor Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. (“Welling Washer”, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) entered into the equity transfer agreement with 85
INRIEHEBR AT (“Wuxi Little Swan Co., Ltd.”), a related
company, for the acquisition of 100% equity interest in %85/ KX#§
ENEZREGRAA (Wuxi Little Swan Huayin Electrical Appliances
Co., Ltd.) (“Huayin”) at a cash consideration of RMB75 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$88.7 million) (the “Acquisition”). The
Acquisition was completed in January 2011. Given that the
Company and Wuxi Little Swan Co., Ltd. are both under common
control of Midea Group Co., Ltd. (“Midea”) before and after the
Acquisition, the Company applied the principles of merger
accounting, as prescribed in Hong Kong Accounting Guideline 5
“Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations” (‘HKAG 57)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA”) in preparing the financial statement of the Group.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared using
the principles of merger accounting, as prescribed in HKAG 5. These
consolidated financial statements include the financial position,
results and cash flows of Huayin as if Huayin had been in existence
throughout the year, or since its date of incorporation. Comparative
figures as at 31 December 2010 and for the year ended 31
December 2010 have been presented on the same basis. Before the
Group gained control of Huayin’s 100% equity interest on 17
January 2011, the non-controlling interests of Huayin from the view
of Midea has been presented in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Midea’s acquisition of the then non-
controlling interests of Huayin has been regarded as Midea’s
contribution to the Group.

2.1

2.1.1
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

2.1

(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Merger accounting and discontinued operations

74

(Continued)

These consolidated financial statements also include the assets,
liabilities and results of operations of a disposed business. In
accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations” issued by HKICPA, the results and cash
flow of the operations of the disposed business have been presented
as discontinued operations. The comparative figures in the
consolidated income statement and consolidated cash flow
statement were restated to reflect the disposal of the disposed
business accordingly (Note 36).

The following are reconciliations of the effects arising from the
common control combination and the disposal of the disposed
operations on the consolidated statement of financial positions as at
31 December 2010, consolidated income statement and
consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended 31 December
2010.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBRRMEE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 FEE:BEHMEZ

(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEEE)
2.1.1 Merger accounting and discontinued operations 21.1 8 HEFHERMBILEF (E)
(Continued)
Effect on the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 HoZ-—TF+_A=+—RH 205K
December 2010: MERHTE
Elimination
As of the
previously Merger of intercompany
reported Huayin balance As restated
ERZEED ATE &
ZHiRE af# EF | =3
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT BETT BT BT
(i) (i (iii
Non-current assets EMBNE EE 1,326,604 9,149 - 1,335,753
Current assets MEEE 4,929,041 70,426 (3,544) 4,995,923
Total assets BEE 6,255,645 79,575 (8,544) 6,331,676
Non-current liabilities JEMBBE 155,137 - - 155,137
Current liabilities mEBaE 4,192,742 12,037 (3,544) 4,201,235
Total liabilities FEN=Ri 4,347,879 12,037 (8,544) 4,356,372
Total equity and liabilities EmkEEEE 6,255,645 79,575 (8,544) 6,331,676
Net current assets MEVEEFE 736,299 58,389 — 794,688
Total assets less current liabilities 42 & ERMTBI & & 2,062,903 67,538 — 2,130,441
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AV HRRME

(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Merger accounting and discontinued operations

(Continued)

2

2.1

FEETBRBIE(E)

RREEE)

2.1.1 EHEF A RZILEF (E)

The consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December

BHE_ZT-ZTF+_A=+—HIEFEZ&

2010: Bl
Elimination
As of the
previously Merger of intercompany Discontinued As
reported Huayin transactions operations restated
EREEED ATERS mibEE
ZHiRE & ESE E 7
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
(i) (i (iii (iv)
Continuing operations:  {HFEEE L :
Revenue WA 7,798,886 133,512 (4,378) (692,660) 7,235,360
Profit for the year from SEREEB 2 FE
continuing operations FE 532,230 841 - (20,692) 512,379
Discontinued operations: B#RIFEFEEEFE
Profit from discontinued IR B E TS 2 T
operations — — — 20,692 20,692
Profit for the year FEFHE 532,230 841 - — 533,071
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Merger accounting and discontinued operations

2 FEEBREIEE)

21 HREEE(E)

2.1.1 EHEF A RAZILEF (E)

(Continued)
The consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended 31 HEZZ—TF+_A=+—HLEFEZLK
December 2010: BHRERERX
As
previously Merger
reported of Huayin As restated
ZHisRE  EHEENEH 53|
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT BT BT
i) (i
Net cash generated from operating activities & /EBIEA 2 IR & 54 523,495 36,970 560,465
Net cash used in investing activities WEESACHE 58 (271,907) 218 (271,689)
Net cash generated from financing activites B & EENE A 2 IR & /F5E 241,132 — 241,132

(i)

(i)

(iv)

The amount previously reported by the Group are the same
as those published in the Group’s audited financial statements
as at 31 December 2010.

The financial information of Huayin as at 31 December 2010
and for the year ended 31 December 2010 were included by
using the principles of merger accounting as prescribed in
HKAG 5 as stated above.

The intercompany transactions, receivable and payable
balances between the Group and Huayin were eliminated.

The revenue and profit related to the operating results of the
discontinued operations for the year ended 31 December
2010 were presented under “profit from discontinued
operations”.
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2.1

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

/8

@

®)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The following new standard is mandatory for the first time for
the financial year beginning 1 January 2011 that adopted by
the Group:

HKAS 24 (Revised), “Related Party Disclosures” is effective for
annual period beginning on or after January 2011. It
introduces an exemption from all of the disclosure
requirements of HKAS 24 for transactions among government
related entities and the government.

New and amended standards have been issued but
are not effective for the financial year beginning 1
January 2011 and have not been early adopted

The Group’s and parent entity’s assessment of the impact of
these new and amended standards is set out below.

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ addresses the classification,
measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities. HKFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and
October 2010. It replaces the parts of HKAS 39 that relate to
the classification and measurement of financial instruments.
HKFRS 9 requires financial assets to be classified into two
measurement categories: those measured as at fair value and
those measured at amortised cost. The determination is made
at initial recognition. The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing its financial instruments and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the instrument. For
financial liabilities, the standard retains most of the HKAS 39
requirements. The main change is that, in cases where the fair
value option is taken for financial liabilities, the part of a fair
value change due to an entity’s own credit risk is recorded in
other comprehensive income rather than the income
statement, unless this creates an accounting mismatch. The
Group is yet to assess HKFRS 9’s full impact and intends to
adopt HKFRS 9 upon its effective date, which is for the
accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)

®)

New and amended standards have been issued but
are not effective for the financial year beginning 1
January 2011 and have not been early adopted
(Continueqd)

HKFRS 10 ‘Consolidated financial statements’ builds on
existing principles by identifying the concept of control as the
determining factor in whether an entity should be included
within the consolidated financial statements of the parent
company. The standard provides additional guidance to assist
in the determination of control where this is difficult to assess.
The Group is yet to assess HKFRS 10’s full impact and
intends to adopt HKFRS 10 no later than the accounting
period beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 12 ‘Disclosures of interests in other entities’ includes
the disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in other
entities, including joint arrangements, associates, special
purpose vehicles and other off balance sheet vehicles. The
Group is yet to assess HKFRS 12’s full impact and intends to
adopt HKFRS 12 no later than the accounting period
beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 13 ‘Fair value measurement’ aims to improve
consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise
definition of fair value and a single source of fair value
measurement and disclosure requirements for use across
HKFRSs. The requirements do not extend the use of fair value
accounting but provide guidance on how it should be applied
where its use is already required or permitted by other
standards within HKFRSs. The Group is yet to assess HKFRS
13’s full impact and intends to adopt HKFRS 13 no later than
the accounting period beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
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2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

80

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over
which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one
half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls another entity. The
Group also assesses existence of control where it does not have
more than 50% of the voting power but is able to govern the financial
and operating policies by virtue of de-facto control. De-facto control
may arise from circumstances such as enhanced minority rights or
contractual terms between shareholders, etc.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Profits and
losses resulting from inter-company transactions that are recognised
in assets are also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

@

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations not under common control. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is
the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred and the fair value of non-
controlling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If this consideration is lower than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference is recognised in profit or loss.
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2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

82

@)

Business combinations (Continued)

For acquisition under common control, the Group has been
using the principles of merger accounting as prescribed in
Hong Kong Accounting Guideline 5 ‘Merger Accounting for
Common Control Combinations’ issued by the HKICPA
(‘HKAG 5’). The net assets of the subsidiaries acquired under
common control were combined using the existing book
values from the controlling parties’ perspective. No amount
was recognised in consideration for goodwill or excess of
acquirers’ interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost at the time
of common control combination, to the extent of the
continuation of the controlling party’s interest. The adjustment
to eliminate the share capital of entities acquired under
common control and the investment cost has been recorded
as merger reserve in the consolidated financial statements.
The consolidated financial statements include the financial
position, results and cash flows of the companies comprising
the Group as if the current group structure had been in
existence throughout the year, or since their respective dates
of incorporation/establishment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 FES:BFEHEZ

(Continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued) 22 MIBASI(E)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued) 221 8HKE (&)
(b)  Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries (b)  TEHKXLIEHERINTE L aIE
without change of control mEE)
Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result REEEEEIET SRR ET - T8
in loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — BMAEZEFENRIAEAEEZERS
that is, as transactions with the owners in their capacity as — B AENEEREBER S HE
owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration TS » T NAERAREN AL EE
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of ELAERA FE (L FTUC BT /B A B F B EERRTE
net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or ENERELEEAER o [MFEEHEER
losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also R E B M iEmT -

recorded in equity.

(c)  Disposal of subsidiaries © HEKEBAA]
When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest EARSETEFEEGIRE  EEROE
in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when AREBERN ARG AEHHE
control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised ERREE - REENESHERSTE
in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for R AR BERMREERNRZEANR
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained &= HYIREREE - (ERME - Ag %
interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In SREE o I ZATEREMRE R E
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other RRERN I HEBRNASED BZE
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted ERREEMARE - EEREZAEH
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets e ER ST R BBEN D EEE

o

B

or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements 222 B
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less BiE A RRERKAHBRIRETIER o AL
impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration FAEARRIARBETEENEZLE
arising from contingent consideration amendments. Cost also RANBERENEEFRBRA - HIERQA
includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of GOESTRAYNCIE AR SR RSP S

subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend and receivable.
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2.2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements (Continued)

84

2.3

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognised at
cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to
recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss of the investee
after the date of acquisition. The Group’s investment in associates
includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in
the income statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements
in other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interests in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If
this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as
the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of
profit/(loss) of an associate’ in the income statement.

Welling Holding Limited Annual Report 2011

2 EEBREE(Z)

22 MEBAS(E)

222 BB (E)
MR BEAT RREBANBRRNESE
W - SINTEE S B I SRR M IR 4 BRI (E AR
Bl AMEREPHIRE DA FEE(BIER
E)WIREE - B SELHBRFREERE
B, o

2.3 HEAST

BEABEMEASEHERBERFEIM
FITHIEN T  BEMEE 20%-50%% %
%mh% BRI EUEREAR - R
Bk B VIRUKARER  MEEE
WIEMSR PN ERIEEEZAWRESER
U B EIE MBS 1058 - NEMMPNEEE N A
MITEBIEEERCHRNEE -

GnEE & R RIS B HR B DR E &R
TEN E?ﬁttﬁﬂﬂ%ZﬁﬁEﬁ@%ﬁ%é
EPEEWE’@%EE%E HEERm(EE)

AREBEEEBZRRBERNBEHEENH
HRAER > MEGEBERNEMEEK
mEERINE 2w AR - AR EH
BREREE - MAKBERE-RBE QR
MEE SR BB AR & R B m s
BREEMEGEEREYGR  AEET S
RE—TEE - RIFAEBEHBERRCE
ERESEEEBRCABE A REHIR -

ZIKE@Etﬂ#&iEIHEFE%Eﬁ%%ﬁ B &
FERBENRREDRE - WREDAIE -
ZISEIqu DRE - BEE AR E AR AT E
HEHEMEMNEZR  TERSRPERR

[MEBE A BFIE, (B1R))E -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRME

23

24

25

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Associates (Continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associates are recognised in
the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in associates are
recognised in the income statement.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the board of Directors that makes strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”), which
is different from the Company’s functional currency of
Renminbi (“RMB”), in view of the shares of the Company listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

2.3

24
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBHRRMEE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

b)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at
year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
income statement, except when deferred in equity as
qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the income
statement within ‘finance income or cost’. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the income
statement within ‘other gains — net .

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated
in foreign currency classified as available for sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of the security and other changes in the
carrying amount of the security. Translation differences related
to changes in amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss,
and other changes in carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available for sale,
are included in the available-for-sale reserve in other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

©)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of end of the reporting period;

(ii) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

@iy all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRMEE

2.6

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 FES:TBFEHEZ
(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment 26 Y% BERRE
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less Y - RE KR EIRE L AR ITE RBE
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes BRI FEERABEREZSZEREE
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. FEiE 2R -
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or Hig KAEERZIE B2 RREEN =
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is BRI ERAAEE - MZIEEB 2 KR 5
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will FERN FeeRrEEZEEESERA
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. By EE(ER) - WEBRHBS 2 REEH
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other THEER - IEHMEERRELERNES
repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement 2 BB AR R e E R R o
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using Y BEERERBIERAUTEEAIE
the straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual values over RFRBRAREREDBEFHREAETE
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Estimated useful lives

fhEt T EFAER

Buildings 1g=x 10-30 years 4
Furniture and fixtures RAREE 3-5 years 4
Plant and machinery R Rty 10-20 years 4
Motor vehicles B 5-10 years 4
Electronic and other equipment BF REAMRE 3-5 years 4

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Construction-in-progress represents the direct costs of construction
incurred and machinery pending to installation plus interest
capitalised up to date of completion of the construction of property,
plant and equipment less any impairment losses. No provision for
depreciation is made on construction in progress until such time the
relevant assets are completed and put into use. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRME

2.6

2.7

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within ‘Other
gains — net’ in the consolidated income statement.

Intangible assets

2.7.1 Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures and represents the excess of the consideration
transferred over the Group’s interest in net fair value of the net
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree
and the fair value of the non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units to
which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the
entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair
value less costs to sell. Any impairment is recognised immediately as
an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

2.7.2 Technology

Technology acquired are initially measured at the purchase costs
and amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AV HRRME

2

2.7

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

2.7.3 Research and development

90

(@)

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the
prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge and
understanding, is recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred. Expenditure on development activities
(relating to the design and testing of new or improved
products) is capitalised under the category of development
cost if the product or process is technically and commercially
feasible, the Group has sufficient resources and the intention
to complete the development, and if the cost can be reliably
measured. Upon the commencement of the commercial
production of a product, the expenditure on development cost
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of its
expected benefit. Research and development costs comprise
costs that are directly attributable to research and
development activities or that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis to such activities.

Subsequent expenditure on development activities after its
completion is recognised as an expense when it is incurred
unless it is probable that this expenditure will enable the asset
to generate future economic benefits in excess of its originally
assessed standard of performance and this expenditure can
be measured and attributed to the asset reliably. If these
conditions are met, the subsequent expenditure is added to
the cost of the intangible asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRME

2.8

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries or associates is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
or associate in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements
of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.9 Financial assets

2.9.1 Classification

g2

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at

fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivable, and available

for sale. The classification depends on the purpose for which the

financial assets were acquired. Management determines the

classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

@

®)

(©

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial
assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this
category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
short-term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category
are classified as current assets if expected to be settled within
12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They are included in current assets, except for
the amounts that are settled or expected to be settled more
than 12 months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s loans and
receivables comprise ‘trade and other receivables’ and ‘cash
and cash equivalents’ in the statement of financial position
(Notes 2.14 and 2.15).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. They are included in non-current assets
unless the investment matures or management intends to
dispose of it within 12 months of the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

2.9.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the income statement. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value.
Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss’ category are presented in
the income statement within ‘other (losses)/gains — net’ in the
period in which they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the income statement
as part of other income when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities
classified as available for sale are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRMEE

2

29

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

2.9.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

2.10

2.11

When securities classified as available for sale are sold or impaired,
the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are
included in the income statement as ‘gains and losses from
investment securities’.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the income statement as part of
other income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the income statement as part of other income when
the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the statement of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable rights to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

(@) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

@)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation, and where observable data
indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a
variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the
group may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRMEE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.11 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

b)

Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. For debt securities, the
Group uses the criteria referred to in (a) above. In the case of
equity investments classified as available for sale, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such
evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or
loss — is removed from equity and recognised in profit or
loss. Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated
income statement on equity instruments are not reversed
through the consolidated income statement. If, in a
subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument
classified as available for sale increases and the increase can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated income
statement.

2.12 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a

derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured

at their fair value. Changes in the fair value of these derivative

instruments are recognised immediately in the consolidated income

statement within ‘other gains — net’.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRME

213

2.14

2.15

2.16

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods and work-in-progress comprises design costs, raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRMEE

2

2.17

2.18

98

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payable are classified as current liabilities if payment
is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has

an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.

Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that

it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

@)

®)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences
Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method,

on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AV HRRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(b)  Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

(c)  Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the

balances on a net basis.
2.20 Employee benefits

(a)  Retirement benefits obligation

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”),
a defined contribution scheme managed by an independent

trustee.

The Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC make
contributions to a state-sponsored defined contribution
scheme for the Group’s local staff on a monthly basis
pursuant to laws of the PRC and relevant regulations issued

by local social security authorities.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution

retirement schemes are expensed as incurred.

The Group has no further payment obligations once the

contributions have been paid.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRME

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

b)

(©

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date, or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to a
termination when the entity has a detailed formal plan to
terminate the employment of current employees without
possibility of withdrawal. In the case of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are
measured based on the number of employees expected to
accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period are discounted to their
present value.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRMEE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

2.21 Share-based payments

@)

Equity-settled share-based payrment transactions
The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for equity instruments
(options) of the Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised
as an expense. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of the options
granted:

° including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

° excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period);
and

° including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options that are expected
to vest. The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied. In addition, in some
circumstances employees may provide services in advance of
the grant date and therefore the grant date fair value is
estimated for the purposes of recognising the expense during
the period between service commencement period and grant
date. At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of options that are expected to
vest based on the non-marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in the income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRME

2.21

2.22

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)
(a)  Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new
shares. The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium.

(b)  Share-based payment transactions among group
entities

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in
the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair value of
employee services received, measured by reference to the
grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a
corresponding credit to equity in the parent entity accounts.

Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRMEE

2.23

104

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and other bodies
on behalf of subsidiaries or associates to secure loans, overdrafts
and other banking facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given. The
fair value of a financial guarantee at the time of signature is zero
because all guarantees are agreed on arm’s length terms and the
value of the premium agreed corresponds to the value of the
guarantee obligation. No receivable for the future premiums is
recognised. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company’s
liabilities under such guarantees are measured at the higher of the
initial amount, less amortisation of fees recognised in accordance
with HKAS 18, and the best estimate of the amount required to
settle the guarantee. These estimates are determined based on
experience of similar transactions and history of past losses,
supplemented by the judgement of management. The fee income
earned is recognised on a straight-line basis over the life of the
guarantee. Any increase in the liability relating to guarantees is
reported in the consolidated income statement within other operating

expenses.

Where guarantees in relation to loans of the associates are provided
for no compensation, the fair values are accounted for as
contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the investment in
the financial statements of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRME

2.24

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods supplied,
stated net of discounts returns and value added taxes. The Group
recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each of
the Group’s activities, as described below. The Group bases its
estimates of return on historical results, taking into consideration the
type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

(@)  Sales of finished goods and raw materials

Sales of finished goods and raw materials are recognised
when a Group entity has delivered products to the customer,
the customer has accepted the products and collectibility of
the related receivables is reasonably assured.

(b)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method. When a receivable is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flow discounted at original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the
discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired
loans and receivables are recognised using the original

effective interest rate.

(c)  Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the rights to receive
payment is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRMEE

2.25

2.26

2.27

106

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are expensed in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in
the income statement over the period necessary to match them with
the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRME

3.1

(a

Financial Risk Management

Financial risk factors
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market

risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest

rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s

overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability

of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects

on the Group’s financial performance. The Group uses derivative

financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures.

Market risk

()

Foreign exchange risk
The Group exposes to foreign exchange risks as certain
portion of its business activities are denominated in foreign
currencies, primarily with respect to HK$, United States dollar
(“USD”) and Euro (“EUR”).

To manage their foreign exchange risks arising from future
commercial transactions, entities in the Group enter into
forward contracts, transacted with the commercial banks. The
Directors are of the view that the Group’s exposure to foreign
exchange risk is manageable.

At 31 December 2011, if HK$ has weakened/strengthened by
5% against the RMB with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been HK$1,435,000
(2010: HK$5,890,000) higher/lower, mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of HK$-
denominated cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables and borrowings.

At 31 December 2011, if USD has weakened/strengthened by
5% against the RMB with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been HK$13,762,000
(2010: HK$7,422,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of USD-
denominated cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables and borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRMEE

3.1

(a)

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

()

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2011, if EUR has weakened/strengthened by
5% against the RMB with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been HK$9,194,000
(2010: HK$8,439,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of EUR-
denominated cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables and trade and other payables.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets, the
Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from long-term
borrowings. All the borrowings issued at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. During 2011 and
2010, the Group’s long-term borrowings at variable rate were
denominated in HK$ and USD.

The Company’s loan to a subsidiary and amounts due from/
(to) subsidiaries were issued at fixed rates and interest free
respectively, and expose the Company to fair value interest
rate risk.

The Directors are of the view that the interest rate risk is not
material as at 31 December 2011.

At 31 December 2011, if interest rates on long-term
borrowings had been 50 basis points higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been HK$31,000 (2010: HK$199,000) lower/
higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest expense on
floating rate borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRME

3.1

(a)

(b)

Financial Risk Management (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i) Price risk

The Group exposes to commodity price risk, mainly due to
the fluctuations in prices of copper and aluminium, which are
key raw materials to the Group’s products. The price risk due
to copper and aluminium is reduced through the derivatives
market, and through certain clause in contracts with our

customers to enable the Group to have the flexibility to pass
the increases in raw material costs to the customers.

At 31 December 2011, if the copper and aluminium price had
been 5% higher/lower with other variables held constant, the
pre-tax profit for the year would have been of HK$8,807,000
(2010: HK$5,196,000) higher/lower, representing the change
in fair value of copper and aluminium derivatives at the end of
the reporting period.

The Group is not exposed to equity securities price risk.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. Credit risk
arises from cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits with
maturity period over 3 months, derivative financial instruments, due
from related parties and trade and other receivables.

For cash and cash equivalent, pledged bank deposits with maturity
period over 3 months and derivative financial instruments,
management manages the credit risk by transacting with state-
owned financial institutions and reputable commercial banks which
are all high-credit-quality financial institutions. The maximum
exposure to the credit risk before collateral held or other credit
enhancements relating to cash and cash equivalent, pledged bank
deposits with maturity period over 3 months and derivative financial
instruments were their carrying value as disclosed in Note 15, Note
14 and Note 21 respectively as at 31 December 2011 and 2010.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRMEE

3.1

(b)

(c)

110

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

For trade and other receivables and due from related parties, the
credit quality of the counterparties is assessed by taking into account
their financial position, credit history and other factors. Individual
credit limits are set based on the assessment of the credit quality.
Given the constant repayment history, the directors are of the view
that the risk of default by these counterparties is low.

For financial guarantees contracts provided for the associates, the
Group monitors the credit quality of the associates by taking into
account their financial position and business development plan. As
at 31 December 2011, the directors are of the view that the risk of
default by the associates is low. The maximum exposure to the
credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements
relating to financial guarantee was the face value as disclosed in
Note 34 as at 31 December 2011 and 2010.

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash
balance, the availability of funding from an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market
positions.

Welling Holding Limited Annual Report 2011
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMIBBHRRMEE
3 Financial Risk Management (Continued) 3 MBREREEE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 EHEEBEEZE)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) HEIEZEEE)
The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative financial THROMAEENR RSB TEES D2 HA
liabilities and net-settled financial derivative financial liabilities into B THEIE AR AR ZIETAE S/
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the BENFEESRUTEMEAEERE - XT
end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date. The iR B IA R ERE -
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows.
Less than Between Over
The Group XEE 1year 1and?2years 2 years
—EUT —SEEWME mELE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT BT
At 31 December 2011 W_E——%+-"A=+—H
Borrowings EE 247,538 95,821 =
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERR 3,012,053 = =
Due to related companies JERAEE A RIFE 130,376 — —
Derivative financial instruments PTESRTA 240 - -
At 31 December 2010 (restated) RZZE—ZEF+=-A=+—H
(&%)
Borrowings & 246,035 98,812 7,037
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERR 3,421,344 — —
Due to related companies Ji& 1~ S /2 I KIE 481,476 — -
Less than Between Over
The Company AAT] 1year 1 and2years 2 years
—FUTF —EEME MEULE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T BT T
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+ZA=+—H
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A R EMER R 2,591 = =
At 31 December 2010 RZZE—ZEF+=-RA=+—H
Accruals and other payables TEIRE M KA MR 2,184 — —
For the drawn down component of the bank loans guaranteed by AEERRBITERNE O H A IERR
the Group, the contractual maturity dates of the maximum amount B AB 143,703,000 7L (—FLATR) »
that can be called is that HK$143,703,000 being less than 1 year B 326,878,000 T(—FEZRF)(ZE—F
and HK$326,878,000 being between 1 and 5 years (2010: 4 1 B% 58,761,000 L (—FUAT) » B
HK$58,761,000 being less than 1 year, HK$75,802,000 being 75,802,000 t(—FE2RF)RABE
between 1 and 5 years and HK$170,408,000 being over 5 years.) 170,408,000 C(RFLA L)) »
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AV HRRME

3 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
return for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to

maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on
the basis of the gearing ratio. The Group’s strategy for the year
ended 31 December 2011 was to maintain a gearing ratio under
75% or had a net cash position. This ratio was calculated as net
debt divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total
borrowings less pledged bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents. As the Group was in a net cash position as at 31
December 2011 and 2010, gearing ratio was not applicable.

3

3.2

MEER(E
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AEBZEREEBER - DREASE RS
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RERFYPBERER  AEBEREHRITH
Befn s ih & B & LUREET

HEERNHMAR % AEEFNRELRAE
HEREREER - AREERE_FT——F+
“A=Zt-BLFENKBARBELAAE
HEERRR 756% SEEFIREMM © TR
REBFHEGARSERTE - EEFEA
fERBBRECERRITERMAE LIRS
FEY  ARAEER _T——FR_FT—
FET_A=ZT—HENFRENRN - BX
BELRILTEM -

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2011 2010

N=T——=% R-T—TF

+=HA=+—H +=—A=+—8H

(Restated)

==l)

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETFT BT

Total borrowings (Note 18) ez (Mi7E18) 333,516 345,810
Less: Pledged bank deposits with maturity & @ ={E 5 A _FZIH 2 24K

period over 3 months (Note 14) HRITIFR(FE14) (77,767) (118,000)

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 15) ReRRSEEW(HFE15) (972,923) (805,079)

Net cash & 58 (717,174) (577,269)

Total equity R 2,552,174 1,975,304

Gearing ratio (%) BEARE B R %) N/A N/A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBRRMEE

3.3

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value,
by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as
follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

3

3.3

I EEEE(E)

ATEE

TREREMEETE  2WERITAZAF

BE - TRIREEWT

HREESRBEZERTIZRECRE
HE)NFE M) °

BEERES —RZREI BEXEE
ZABEER(AER) REE(BRE
EBERE)BAER(E_R -

WIFRBEABRETSENMEE 2 EE
SREZHAER(AITABEREZBHA
BEED(E=/) -

The following table presents the Group’s assets that are measured

TREINAEER -_F——F+-A=1+—

at fair value as at 31 December 2011. HIE AN EHAEZEE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—R - ~fad 1} £=4 st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BT BETx BEETR EETR
Assets BE
Derivative financial instruments PTESmMTA
— Commodity futures contracts — HEEREY 1,682 = = 1,682
— Foreign exchange forward contracts — RAERINES L - 15,110 - 15,110
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESREE
— Equity investment — R E - - 97,307 97,307
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-8R -t £=4 45t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BRIt EBETx EETxT EETR
Liabilities BfE
Derivative financial instruments PTEeMTAE
— Commodity futures contracts — HEEmAY 240 - - 240
REZRERAT —T——£5%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRMEE

3.3

114

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Fair value estimation (Continueq)
The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that
are measured at fair value as at 31 December 2010.

3.3

IR EE (E

AFEEE(E)
TR2FIAEER -_F—FF+-A=+—
BRATE Bz EERAME -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ik -t ] =4 fast
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BEETT BT BT BETT
Assets &E
Derivatives financial instruments PTESRMIA
— Commodity futures contracts — HEEmAY 9,808 — - 9,808
— Foreign exchange forward contracts — REPINEE L — 16,114 — 16,114
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESREE
— Equity investment — RERE - - 29,381 29,381

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. A
market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group
is the current bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.
Instruments included in level 1 comprise commodity futures
contracts.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, the foreign exchange forward contracts) is
determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

There were no significant transfers of financial assets between level 1
and level 2 fair value hierarchy classifications.

Welling Holding Limited Annual Report 2011
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRME

3.3

4.1

(a

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Fair value estimation (Continueq)

The financial assets of level 3 fair value hierarchy classification as at
31 December 2011 and 2010 were the available-for-sale financial
asset, of which the changes for the year ended 31 December 2011
and 2010 are presented in Note 11.

The available-for-sale financial asset represents the capital
contribution made by the Group into a private finance company as
detailed in Note 11. The Directors assessed the fair value of the
equity investment and are in the opinion that the fair value
approximates its carrying value as at 31 December 2011 and 2010.

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgments

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note
2.7.1. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
require the use of certain key assumptions (Note 8). Changing such
key assumptions selected by management, including the discount
rates or the growth rate assumptions, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment test.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRMEE

4.1

(a

(b)

(c)

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgments (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

Impairment of goodwill (Continued)
If the estimated pre-tax discount rate applied to the discounted cash
flows for the CGUs of the micro motors business had been 1%
higher than management’s estimates, the recoverable amount of
goodwill would still be higher than its carrying amount and no
impairment of goodwill would be recognised.

If the estimated gross margin of the CGUs had been 1% lower than
management’s estimates, the recoverable amount of goodwill would
still be higher than its carrying amount and no impairment of goodwiill
would be recognised.

If the growth rate of the CGUs had been 1% lower than
management’s estimates, the recoverable amount of goodwill would
still be higher than its carrying amount and no impairment of goodwiill
would be recognised.

Income Tax

Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for
income tax. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such difference will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provision in the period in
which such determination is made.

Current income tax liability of the Group as at 31 December 2011
and 31 December 2010 are HK$37,262,000 and HK$56,969,000
respectively.

Useful lives adopted for the calculation of
depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The estimate of useful lives of property, plant and equipment was
made by the management with reference to the established industry
practices, technical assessments made on the durability of the
assets, as well as the historical magnitude and trend of repair and
maintenance expenses incurred by the Group. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and competitor
actions in responses to severe industry cycles.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRME

4.1

(c)

(d)

(e)

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgments (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

Useful lives adopted for the calculation of
depreciation of property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

If the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment
higher/lower by 10% from management’s estimates, the
depreciation charge would decrease/increase by HK$9,635,000 and
HK$11,777,000 respectively.

Impairment of inventories

Impairment of inventories is based on the net realisable value which
is the selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses. The calculation of the net realisable value
is determined based on management’s estimates of the selling price
and variable selling expenses according to prevailing market
conditions.

Provision for impairment of inventories of the Group as at 31
December 2011 and 31 December 2010 are HK$20,723,000 and
HK$16,816,000 respectively.

Impairment of trade receivables

Management reviews its trade receivables for objective evidence of
impairment. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, the
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy, and default or
significant delay in payments are considered as objective evidence
that a receivable is impaired. In determining this, management
makes judgments as to whether there is observable data indicating
that there has been a significant change in the payment ability of the
debtor, or whether there have been significant changes with adverse
effect on the market and economic environment in which the debtor
operates in. Where there is objective evidence of impairment,
management makes judgments as to whether an impairment loss
should be recorded as an expense.

Provision for impairment of trade receivables of the Group as at 31
December 2011 and 31 December 2010 are HK$35,162,000 and
HK$17,189,000 respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AV HRRME

5 Segment Information
The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing, distributing
and selling motors and electronic and electric components for
electrical household appliance and trading of raw materials in the
PRC and overseas.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker, the board of Directors, who is
responsible for allocating resources, assessing performance of the
operating segments and making strategic decisions, the
management considers the business from both business and
geographical perspective. From business perspective, the Group
organised into the following main business segments:

Micro motors business — manufacture and distribution of
motors for air-conditioner and
refrigerator compressor

Washing motors business ~ — manufacture and distribution of
motors for washing machine,
dish washer and food
processing machines

Raw material business — trading of raw materials

Others — manufacture and distribution of
reactors and other businesses;
subsequent to the disposal of
the assets as disclosed in Note
36, the remaining assets and
liabilities of this business have
been grouped under the
segment of the micro motors
business in the year ended 31
December 2011.

Discontinued operations — manufacture and distribution of
transformers and shaded pole
motors

The chief operating decision-maker assesses the performance of the

operating segments based on the profit before income tax for the
year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBRRMEE

5.1

Segment Information (Continued)

SEER(E

Primary reporting format — business segments 51 FEREER — £B9E0
The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2011 are HE_ZE——Ft+_A=1t—"HIFEZH
as follows: HERNT :
Micro Washing Raw Continuing
motors motors material  Segment Corporate operation Discontinued Group
business business business Total function Total operations Total
MEH  RBER R#H S BRGEER RibEE FKE
E3E) 3] 3] @ At @ E3E] a5
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BRTT ESTRT BT EETn B%TR ERTT ERTT ESTR
Gross segment revenue BHIKA 7,060,608 3,365,503 3,867,034 14,293,145 - 14,293,145 432,050 14,725,195
Inter-segment revenue SERIRA (11,312)  (16,121) (3,775,339) (3,802,772) - (3,802,772) (113) (3,802,885)
Revenue (from external customers) WA (REINEEF) 7,049,296 3,349,382 91,695 10,490,373 — 10,490,373 431,937 10,922,310
Operating profit/(loss) ST,/ (B8) 497,763 228,843 53,487 780,093 (9,617) 770,476 17,579 788,055
Finance income/(cost) — net BB/ (AA)—F5 13,537 (16,648) (39,612) (42,723) (8,819) (51,542) 134 (51,408)
Share of profit of associates 1EEE D RFIE - - - - 19,204 19,204 - 19,204
Profit before income tax MBRETS T ATFIE 511,300 212,195 13,875 737,370 768 738,138 17,713 755,851
Income tax expense Frg B (80,766) (34,471) 336 (114,901) (31,229) (146,130) (5,130) (151,260)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEAE/(FE) 430,534 177,724 14,211 622,469 (30,461) 592,008 12,583 604,591
Segment assets DEEE 3,585,801 1,949,028 305,503 5,840,332 28,915 5,869,247 — 5,869,247
Deferred income tax assets RIEFSHEE 38,853 - 38,853
Investments in associates BEARRE 254,352 - 254,352
Total assets BEE 6,162,452 - 6,162,452
Segment liabilities HEEE 2,138,728 1,070,552 182,631 3,391,911 144,818 3,536,729 - 3,536,729
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFEHAR 73,549 - 73,549
Total liabilities “wam 3,610,278 — 3,610,278
Addition of property, NEVE  BERE
plant and equipment 241,104 137,077 - 378,181 21 378,202 692 378,894
Material non-cash EXFREME
expenses/(income) (A)
Amortisation of leasehold land and  FHE& T ith 2 + 3 FRRERE 85
land use rights 1,842 1,818 - 3,660 - 3,660 - 3,660
Depreciation of property, plant and ~ #1% « BB L& ETE
equipment 66,199 39,770 - 105,969 20 105,989 1,139 107,128
Provision/(reversal) for inventory FEREREEERE,
obsolescence (Bm) 3,765 (8,700) - (4,935) - (4,935) - (4,935)
Reversal for impairment of trade B 5 REMEYIRERE
and other receivables 6,865 9,529 - 16,394 - 16,394 - 16,394
Fair value gain on derivative financial #7448 T A A FEMRE
instruments — not settled — K (2,578) (13,974) - (16,552) - (16,552) - (16,552)
REZRERAT —T——£5R
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Segment Information (Continued)

Primary reporting format — business segments

(Continued)

The restated segment information for the year ended 31 December

5 SEER(E

51 FEREWX — EHHEWME)

BE-T—26+-A=t—HLEEE

2010 are as follows: S| pEERMT
Washing motors business
TREREY
Micro Raw Continuing
motors Merger of material Segment  Corporate operations  Discontinued Group
business Original Huayin ~ Sub-total  business Others Total function Total  operations Total
e B [RAE 2 RRGEED El KEE
2% RE Abt N 1% Hft #E  EEm it %% At
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT BT ATt A¥Tr  B¥Tr ¥t #ETr AT BETL BEFT AT
Gross segment revenue BB 4,399,496 2,584,810 129,134 2,713,944 3,835,557 122,767 11,071,764 - 11,071,764 694,332 11,766,096
Inter-segment revenue SEHEEA (4457)  (2.379) - (2.378) (3,829.569) — (3,836,404) - (3836,404) (1,672) (3,838,076)
Revenue (from external WA (REINREF)
customers) 4,395,039 2,582,432 129,134 2,711,566 5,988 122,767 7,235,360 - 7,235,360 692,660 7,928,020
Operating profit/(loss) wENE/ (FR) 389,518 216,432 1,730 218,162 42,443 9733 659,856 (8,140) 651,716 27405 679,121
Finance income/(cost) — net BEBRA/ (FRA)
- 5B 11,956 5,448 159 5,607 (34,257) (17) (16,711) (9,271) (25,982) (98) (26,080)
Share of profit of associates EBENRFIE - - - - - - - 9,269 9,269 - 9,269
Profit/(loss) before income tax B SR ATFIE,/
(E18) 401,474 221,880 1,889 223,769 8,186 9,716 643,145 (8,142) 635,003 27,307 662,310
Income tax expense Frsmims (58,919) (35,186) (1,048 (36,234) (2,493) (1,162) (98,808) (23,816) (122,624) (6,615) (129,239
Profit/(loss) for the year FEANE/(BIE) 342,555 186,694 841 187,535 5,693 8554 544337 (31,958) 512,379 20692 533,071
Segment assets (restated) HEEE(ET) 3,456,536 1,731,582 76,031 1,807,613 461,129 320,749 6,045,027 3,011 6,048,038 27,733 6,075,771
Deferred income tax assets ETHEHEE 32,254 - 32,254
Investments in associates BENTRE 223,651 — 223651
Total assets (restated) wEE(E) 6,303,943 27,733 6,331,676
Segment liabilties (restated) HEBEEES 2,588,400 1,090,675 8493 1,099,168 430,000 185747 4,303,414 2185 4,305,599 — 4,305,599
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFERAE 50,773 - 50,773
Total liabilities (restated) “arEE) 4,356,372 — 4356372
Addition of property, REDE  BER
plant and equipment B 127,614 127,837 91 127,928 - 1,626 257,068 26 257,094 13,872 270,966
Material non-cash EXFREFHR/
expenses/(income) (BA)
Amortisation of leasehold land Tk TR
and land use rights T 1,689 1,328 - 1,328 - 225 3,242 - 3,242 - 3,242
Depreciation of property, plant 1%  FiE RiRfE
and equipment e 51,601 32,460 1,447 33,907 - 3,794 89,302 47 89,349 3,258 92,607
Provision for inventory FEHERERER
obsolescence 3,467 2,397 2,350 4,747 - 114 8,328 - 8,328 562 8,890
(Reversal)/provision for B 5 RE AWK
impairment of trade and other  JHE(EE), B
receivables (1268) (4,434 191 (4,243) - (149)  (5,660) - (5,660) 845 (6,508)
Fair value gain on derivative TESRIAATA
financial instruments — not Wiz — REE
settled (6,164) (19,758) - (19,758) - - (25,922) - (25,922) - (25,922)
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REMTBHRRME

5 Segment Information (Continued) 5 9EWERGE
5.2 Secondary reporting format — geographical 5.2 REBHREFR — HESE
segments
The Group is domiciled in the PRC. The Group’s revenue from AREBE AR o NEBREDEERLE
customers located in the PRC and outside PRC are presented as SNEEZIEA - 2RI ¢
follows:
Micro Washing Raw Continuing
motors motors material operations  Discontinued Group
business business business Others Total operations Total
ST
B HIRE s 2% Bk REE
ES e ZE T £ Hith k] %75 &5t
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BEFT BT B¥Tr B%TrT  BEFT BETT BT
Year ended HE-T—ZTF
31 December 2010, +=A=+—AH
as restated IEFE(E)
Revenue from REFEER
customers in the PRC TP ZWA 3,745,254 1,627,569 5,988 110,121 5,488,932 648,778 6,137,710
Revenue from customers & & /R EIE )
outside the PRC BEPZBA 649,785 1,083,997 — 12,646 1,746,428 43,882 1,790,310
4,395,039 2,711,566 5,988 122,767 7,235,360 692,660 7,928,020
Micro  Washing Raw Continuing
motors motors material operations Discontinued Group
business business business Others Total operations Total
HEEE
HEH RS FE#re ES ®ibEeE AEE
E3E 3 S Hity k] ES] &t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EETRT #BETn BETr BETT BT EETT BETT
Year ended HE-_T—F
31 December 2011 +-—A=+—8
IFEE
Revenue from REFEBER
customers in the PRC BEEZHBA 6,208,822 1,795,238 91,695 — 8,095,755 409,736 8,505,491
Revenue from customers 2 &5 7 BI3E 4h
outside the PRC P ZBA 840,473 1,554,145 - — 2,394,618 22,201 2,416,819
7,049,295 3,349,383 91,695 — 10,490,373 431,937 10,922,310

No geographical segment analysis on non-current assets is prepared
as substantially all of the Group’s assets were located in the PRC,
except for financial instruments and deferred income tax assets.

Turnover represented revenue from external customers and is the
same as revenue in the consolidated income statement.

HREERTAMEERSHEEI A%
E@EAMOEESUNPE  HABFHIE
MBVEE IR DB

)

BEBRERBIRELHMBA - BERS IS
RE WA B[R]

REZBERAT —F——F5K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GFEMRRMEE
5 Segment Information (Continued) 5
5.2 Secondary reporting format — geographical 5.2

segments (Continued)

Revenue of approximately HK$1,791,443,000 (2010: HK$816,323,000)
was derived from a single customer, which is a related party,
contributed to the revenue of operating segment of micro motor
business.

Leasehold Land and Land Use Rights 6
The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent
prepaid operating lease payments and their net book values are
analysed as follows:

SEREF (&
HEREENX — WESE(EZ)
U A PR #7578 %51,791,443,000 T ( — B —F4

7% 816,323,000 70) R B — & & P (&R
77) 0 FIATREBHEREEED BPAUA -

FHE TR 1 it i R4E
A EBNAE TR T 2 AR
HSHRERE - HREFEAFOT -

Group
FEH
2011 2010
—ET——5F —E—TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BB BT T
Outside Hong Kong, held EELAIN - BA10E50F 2
on leases of 10 to 50 years HERE 171,367 125,509
Group
&R
2011 2010
—E——fF —T-ZTF
HK$000 HK$'000
BT BB T
Opening net book amount FHREFE 125,509 124,496
Additions NE 31,609 —
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 35) Wi fis Ff 8 22 &) (PH5E35) 11,029 —
Amortisation of prepaid operating lease B SR ERURE
payments (3,660) (8,242)
Exchange differences EHER 6,880 4,255
Closing net book amount FIEREFE 171,367 125,509

At 31 December 2011, leasehold land and land use rights with net
book value of approximately HK$46,102,000 (2010: HK$60,429,000)
have been pledged as security for the Group’s short-term bank
borrowings (Note 18).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMTBHRRME

- 7 &
7 Property, Plant and Equipment 7 Y% BERRE
(@) Group (a) AEE
Furniture Electronic
Construction- and Plant and Motor and other
in-progress Buildings fixtures machinery vehicles equipment Total
1RER BER EFR
H#EIRE ¥ K B RE HSRE &t
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AB¥T B¥T B¥Txr A%t BB TT BT
At 1 January 2010, R=ZE—TF—A—HB
as restated (&%)
Cost (2% 63,697 272,611 62,153 687,740 10,769 54,970 1,151,940
Accumulated depreciation R2itiE — (36,706)  (48,287)  (318,946) (4,737) (33,218)  (441,894)
Net book amount BREDFE 63,697 235,905 13,866 368,794 6,032 21,752 710,046
Year ended 31 December 2010, BE—ZT—ZF+=A
as restated =t+t—BLFE
(&51)
Opening net book amount FYREFE 63,697 235,905 13,866 368,794 6,032 21,752 710,046
Additions NE 122,956 2,236 16,000 110,372 4,075 15,327 270,966
Exchange differences EHER 2,216 7,855 269 11,556 162 477 22,535
Disposals e (5,957) (264) (129) (18,896) (126) (2,133) (27,505)
Transfers L8 (60,047) 12,033 473 47,184 - 357 -
Depreciation e — (14,996) (9,128) (54,357) (2,006) (12,120) (92,607)
Closing net book amount FRREFE 122,865 242,769 21,351 464,653 8,137 23,660 883,435
At 31 December 2010, as restated HKZZ—ZF+_A
=+—H(EH)
Cost AR 122,865 328,875 52,662 785,103 13,952 65,396 1,363,853
Accumulated depreciation ZiHinE — (81,106) (31,311)  (320,450) (5,815) (41,736)  (480,418)
Net book amount BRHEFE 122,865 242,769 21,351 464,653 8,137 23,660 883,435
Year ended 31 December 2011 BE-T——%+=A
=t+—HILFE
Opening net book amount FYRREFE 122,865 242,769 21,351 464,653 8,137 23,660 883,435
Additions wNE 117,918 30,417 14,163 180,552 9,500 26,344 378,894
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 35) YB& i &&= (MiFE35) 3,948 12,651 - 9,320 209 1,532 27,660
Exchange differences BN ER 6,116 11,775 863 21,720 338 875 41,687
Disposals e (1,509) - (41) (50,263) (3,346) (7,130) (62,289)
Disposal — discontinued operations i — #IFACEER - - - (22,750) - (1,939)  (24,689)
Transfers 234 (112,400) 43,359 - 69,041 - - -
Depreciation e —  (15,966) 9,158)  (64,732) (3,093) (14,179) (107,128)
Closing net book amount FREREFE 136,938 325,005 27,178 607,541 11,745 29,163 1,137,570
At 31 December 2011 R-T——%+=A
=+—8
Cost RA 136,938 426,437 68,853 954,973 19,836 69,003 1,676,040
Accumulated depreciation 2t e —  (101,432)  (41,675) (347,432) (8,091) (39,840) (538,470)
Net book amount BREFE 136,938 325,005 27,178 607,541 11,745 29,163 1,137,570

Depreciation expense of HK$88,475,000 (2010:
HK$76,746,000) has been charged in cost of sales,
HK$121,000 (2010: HK$95,000) in selling and marketing
costs and HK$18,532,000 (2010: HK$15,766,000) in
administrative expenses.

PrER B 88,475,000 L ( —E—=
G B¥76,746,000T) Bt AEE S W

FRAS - 85 121,000 T (Z 2 —FF 5
#95,000 7T ) B AT ASHE RS HEEK
A TS 18,632,000 T( — T —T4F ¢
75115,766,00070) BIIE T ATTE I ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBIRRMEE
7 Property, Plant and Equipment (Continueq) 7 Y% BERREE
(@) Group (Continued) (a) AEEZE)

At 31 December 2011, property, plant and equipment with
net book value of HK$43,253,000 (2010: HK$97,891,000)
were pledged as security for the Group’s short-term bank

borrowings (Note 18).

(b) Company

(b)

RZEBE——F+_A=+—H  REF
B/ 43,253,000 T(ZZE—TF : &
& 97,891,000 7T) 2 M3 « B K&
EE AN S BE BRI THE R 2 I (Ff
F£18) °

F07]

Electronic and
other equipment

EFRHEMEE
HK$’000
BT T
At 1 January 2010 RZZE—FTF—H—H
Cost BN 284
Accumulated depreciation 2EtiE (240)
Net book amount BREFE 44
Year ended 31 December 2010 HEZ_Z-ZF+-A=+—HLFE
Opening net book amount FHRREFE 44
Additions NE 14
Depreciation e (35)
Closing net book amount FREEMFE 23
At 31 December 2010 RZE—TF+ZA=+—H
Cost B AR 298
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (275)
Net book amount REFE 23
Year ended 31 December 2011 BHE_Z——F+A=1T—HLFE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 23
Additions NE 6
Disposals e 4)
Depreciation e (10)
Closing net book amount FIREEEFE 15
At 31 December 2011 RZZE——F+-HA=+—H
Cost PR 275
Accumulated depreciation 2EHTE (260)
Net book amount BREFE 15
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REMTBHRRME

8 Intangible Assets 8 HREE
Development Group
Goodwill Technology cost Total
XEE
[ Fe i BHEERLA &3
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT BT T
At 1 January 2010 RZT—FF
—A—H
Cost and net book amount A K AR EFE 22,408 - — 22,408
Year ended HE-ZT—TF
31 December 2010 +=-A=+—H
1EFE
Opening net book amount FHRREFE 22,408 - - 22,408
Exchange differences ERER 780 - — 780
Closing net book amount FIEREEFE 23,188 — — 23,188
At 1 January 2011 R —F
—A—H
Cost and net book amount KA R EREDRE 23,188 — — 23,188
Year ended 31 December 2011 HEZZT—F
+=A=+—R
IHFE
Opening net book amount FYEREFE 23,188 = = 23,188
Additions NE - — 5,608 5,608
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 35) W&} & A 7]
(MI3E35) 4,757 30,879 - 35,636
Amortisation charge BiERY - (757) - (757)
Exchange differences ERER 1,177 46 119 1,342
Closing net book amount FIREREFE 29,122 30,168 5,727 65,017
At 31 December 2011 R ——F
+=-—A=+—8
Cost PR AR 29,122 30,925 5,727 65,774
Accumulated amortisation R - (757) - (757)
Net book amount REFE 29,122 30,168 5,727 65,017

REZRARAT —B——F5R
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AV HRRME

8 Intangible Assets (Continued) 8
The goodwill is attributable to the synergies expected to arise upon
the Group’s acquisition of the non-controlling interests of the cash-
generating units (“CGU”) in micro motor business segments located
in the PRC. A summary of the goodwill allocation is presented below:

B EE(E

7B TR AT AR B R A 2 B
BEBH B2 RSELER(REEESBR )
IR B 2 RN - DT
25T -

As at 31 December

m+=-RA=+—8
2011 2010
—T——F —E—TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
AT BT
Guangdong Welling Motor Manufacturing EREESHEEERAT
Co., Ltd. (“Guangdong Welling”) (TERERED 24,338 23,188
Changzhou Welling Motor Manufacturing BMNEEEREEERAT
Co., Ltd. (“Changzhou Welling”) (TEMNEEE D) 4,784 -
29,122 23,188

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as

B A A2 B & 88 TR R (B
BT UEE - AW EEABRIRSRER
AR 8 ek 2 7 SR R ) 1
i o FE UGN 2 RS T E I T XA 2
CHEESS R

EREEFEZEZ2REET :

follows:
Guangdong Changzhou
Welling Welling
EREE HINEE
As at 31 December 2011 WZE——%+-_A=+—H
Gross margin (budgeted gross margin) FHERGBEEEFR) 10% 24%
Growth rate HRE 1% 25%
Discount rate (pre-tax discount rate applied to  BiIRZE (AR RETEN 2
the cash flow projections) FHATELIR &) 15% 15%
As at 31 December 2010 RZE—TF+-A=+—H
Gross margin (budgeted gross margin) EFE(BEENE) 10% N/A
Growth rate BRX 1% N/A
Discount rate (pre-tax discount rate applied to  BiIR R (FARB & REFEA~
the cash flow projections) TRATALRIRE) 15% N/A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRME

8 Intangible Assets (Continued) 8 MMREESEE
Management determined the budgeted gross margin based on past EREERBBTRANEEMIGER AR
performance and its expectations for the market development. The ETBEEENE - BREWARBMMEMLE
growth rates do not exceed the long-term average growth rate for BREAEHASKHEM S 2 RATHER
the respective markets of micro motors business and the commercial % o FTERAR 2 BRI K AT AT L R R G
air-conditioning motor. The discount rates used are pre-tax and DEZKFERE o

reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments.

9 Investments in Subsidiaries and Loan to a 9 MEBATSRERERF—FKME

Subsidiary 2A5]
The details of the investments in subsidiaries and loan to a subsidiary THEARBMBEBRARRENRERT KM
of the Company are as follows: BRRZFFE
(@) Investments in subsidiaries (@) MBATRE
Company
EAT
2011 2010
—T——5 —E—EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Investments in equity interests RS E
— at cost, unlisted, exchanged at date of — BRRAME - FELET
investment RiIsEZHER 4,500,000 4,500,000
— subsequent exchange differences dueto ~ — HEFBREAZIE
translation into presentation currency e 2 BB = R (M
(Note 2.5(c)) 2.5(c)) 471,736 236,538
Investments arising from share-based R HEEZ
payments (i) E() 7,846 6,553
Amounts due from subsidiaries (i) JFE LB /BB 1 R R A i) 397,938 363,349
5,377,520 5,106,440
() The amount represents share-based payments arising ()  FZFIEREMME LT ZEE R
from the grant of share options of the Company to J& A FIHR HLAR TS i M 1 4% AR
employees of the subsidiaries for their services provided NEIBREE & 2 AR I
to the subsidiaries. e
(i) The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, (i)  FEUREBARFIAAEER - U
denominated in HK$, interest-free and with no fixed BEIIME REMERTER
term of repayment, non-trade related and not past due. H - JEE S AR A Ay -

BEZRERAT —T——F5R) 127



128
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FEMBHRFTMEE
9 Investments in Subsidiaries and Loan to a 9 MBATSRERERF—KMEB
Subsidiary (Continued) AT (E
(b) Loan to a subsidiary (b) ERF—KMEBAT
Company
¥ /N
2011 2010
—T——F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Non-current FERNER - 100,940
Current BIHA 60,143 —
60,143 100,940

The loan to a subsidiary is unsecured, interest bearing,
denominated in HK$ and repayable on 28 December 2012.
The fair value of the loan to a subsidiary approximate its
carrying value, which is based on cash flow discounted using
a rate based on the borrowing rate of 3%, which has no
material difference to the market borrowing rate determined
by HIBOR plus appropriate credit rating.
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Investments in Subsidiaries and Loan to a 9

Subsidiary (Continued)

The particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2011 are:

Place of incorporation and
operation/establishment and

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRME

MEBASRERERT—RMEB
AT (&
MEBARR-Z——#F+-A=t+—Bz#
BT -

Particulars of issued
share capital/registered

Name kind of legal entity Principal activities capital Interest held
MR REE ERTRE
=1 FRIE R A EERER FEER HMERZFE FRistE
Directly held:
HiEHR:
Welling Holding (BVI) Ltd. British Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding 10,000 ordinary shares of 100%
liability company USD1 each
AEERRBVVERAR EWMELHS BEREERRA REER 10,0008 B EE1E T2 100%
il
Indirectly held:
EERHF
Foshan Welling Electronic & Electric Co., Ltd. PRC, limited liability company  Manufacture and trading Registered capital 100%
(“Welling Electronic and Electric”)* (foreign investment of motors USD15,000,000
enterprises)
BUTRBEEFERERARN(RBEEFER]) TE EREEARGMERE) REREETHE #Hff & 4815,000,000% 7T 100%
Foshan Welling Material Supply Co., Ltd.” PRC, limited liability company  Trading of raw materials Registered capital 100%
RMB20,000,000
BT REM R EER AR HE - BREMERR BERME & 100%
AR #20,000,0007T
Foshan Welling Washer Motor Manufacturing PRC, limited liability company  Manufacture and trading Registered capital 100%
Co., Ltd. (“Welling Washer”)” (foreign investment of motors USD6,400,000
enterprises)
BT RBERREREEER AR FE BREFARGNELE) EUEREEEH & 76,400,000 7T 100%
(TRESE )
Guandong Welling Motor Manufacturing Co., Ltd. PRC, limited liability company  Manufacture and trading Registered capital 100%
(“Guandong Welling”)® (foreign investment of motors uSD48,810,000
enterprises)
ERBRBERMEERAR(ERAE] FE BREFARGNELE) SUEREEEH 14 74548,810,000% 7T 100%
Hefei Welling Motor Manufacturing PRC, limited liability company  Manufacture and trading Registered capital 100%
Co., Ltd.» of motors RMB50,000,000
AIEHBEERREERAAF FE - BREFEAR EERERE AEfEAR 100%
AE#50,000,0007C
Huaian Welling Motor Manufacturing Co., Ltd. PRC, limited liability company  Manufacture and trading Registered capital 100%
(“Huaian Welling”)* (foreign investment of motors USD5,000,000
enterprises)
AZRBERBERFRAR (ELRE]) TE - BREFRRIGMNELE) NERETEH #EfB 4 455,000,0003% 7T 100%
Welling International Hong Kong Ltd. Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holding 10,000,000 ordinary shares 100%
("Welling HK”) company of HK$1 each
BERREEERAR(HERTE]) & ARAEAF REER 10,000,000/% & A% E & 100%
BT MR
Welling Macao Commercial Macao Special Administrative Offshore trading Registered Capital Macao 100%
Offshore Limited Region, limited liability Pataca 100,000
company
AERPIBREERBERAR RPVSBITRE - ERAELRR BERS #H & AR FI#5100,0007T 100%
BEZRERLAR —ZE——FFR
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130

Investments in Subsidiaries and Loan to a

Subsidiary (Continued)

Plac

operation/establishment and

e of incorporation and

9 MEBASKRERERFT—KME

AT (&

Particulars of issued

share capital/registered

Name kind of legal entity Principal activities capital Interest held
M REE ERTRE
&5 RIE R A EERER FTEER HMERZ S PR
Welling (Wuhu) Motor Manufacturing Co., Ltd. PRC, limited liability company ~ Manufacture and trading Registered capital 100%
(“Wuhu Welling”)* (foreign investment of motors USD17,680,000
enterprises)
BRI (FEH) ERBLERR AR (HHERE ] FE BREERRGMNEDRYE) BEREEEH & Z4517,680,000% 7T 100%
Midea Welling Motor Technology (Shanghai) Co., PRC, limited liability company  Providing technical Registered capital 100%
Ltd.2* consultancy services RMB10,000,000
EHBE BRI (D8 BRAR" HE - BREERA R R AR HMER 100%
AER#10,000,0007T
Changzhou Welling Motor Manufacturing PRC, limited liability company ~ Manufacture and trading Registered capital 70%
Co., Ltd. (“Changzhou Welling”)** (foreign investment of motors USD25,650,000
enterprises)
FMNHEEREEFR AR (EIMEED" TR BREFEARGMNERE) SLEREEEH 1 Z4°25,650,000% 7T 70%
Wuxi Little Swan Huayin Electrical Appliances PRC, limited liability company ~ Manufacture and trading Registered capital 100%
Co., Ltd.2** of motors RMB49,673,470
E NRIBENBRER DA HhE - BREERA BUER B EEHE HmER 100%
AR #49,673,4707C
Changzhou Honglu Huate Electric Co., Ltd.2** PRC, limited liability company ~ Manufacture and trading Registered capital 70%
of motors RMB40,622,545
EMEAEERERARA R FE - BREFEAA BUER EEEHR HMER 70%
AR¥40,622,5457C
Wuhu Welling Motor Sales Co., Ltd.%* PRC, limited liability company  Trading of motors Registered capital 100%
RMB50,000,000
MR EEREEERAR FE - BREEARA BEEREH HMEAR 100%
AR #50,000,0007C
B Company name in English is for identification purpose only. “ NAEMEETHEMRBR -
* This subsidiary was incorporated during the year ended 31 December - HHBRARNEE-F——F+=-A=1+—H
2011. IFFEAFEMASL -
* This subsidiary was acquired during the year ended 31 December o HMBEARNEZE - E——F+-_A=+—H
011 L4 RS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRRME

10 Investments in Associates

10 EEATIRE

Group

FEE

HK$'000

BT T

At 1 January 2010 RZE—FF—HA—H 206,966
Share of associates ' profit after tax fhEE A RINBRT & FE 9,269
Exchange differences ERER 7,416
At 31 December 2010 RZE—ZFF+ZA=1+—H 223,651
At 1 January 2011 RZZE—F—H—H 223,651
Share of associates’ profit after tax {hEsE N R HBRB RS 19,204
Exchange differences ERER 11,497
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+-_A=+—H 254,352

The summarised financial information of the Group’s principal
associates as at 31 December 2011, all of which are unlisted,
including the aggregated gross amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenues and profit, is as follows:

S
g

AEA/

E——F+-A=t—H FAEHEIZ
RE(2EERIELT) ZHBER (B

BE - AfF - WARFBRSE) ST -

Effective
Place of incorporation/ interest
Name establishment Assets Liabilities Revenue Profit held
PSR
=1 EEMARIL, PRSI MRS &E B [ 9N FIE T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Shanxi Huaxiang Group Co., Ltd. PRC 1,603,712 1,068,467 1,328,124 43,045 49%
(formerly known as Shanxi
Huaxiang Investment Co., Ltd.)
IR EMNEBEBR AR AR
(AT AILFEENREFRAT)
Linkgo-HK Limited Hong Kong 33,097 119 - 10,763 49%
ERMAERLDF 3
BEZRERLAR —ZE——FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRMEE

11 Available-for-sale Financial Assets

11 OHtHESRMEE

Group

FEE

HK$’'000

BT

At 1 January 2010 RZZE-ZTF—H—H 28,393
Exchange differences ERER 988
At 31 December 2010 RZE—ZFE+_A=+—H 29,381
At 1 January 2011 RZZE—F—H—H 29,381
Addition (b) HE (D) 60,394
Net gains transfer to equity (Note 17(a)) U R E s (MRE17(a) 4,694
Exchange differences EHER 2,838
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+_A=+—H 97,307

@)

In April 2009, the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Guangdong Welling entered into an investment agreement
with Midea and GD Midea Holding Co., Ltd. (*GD Midea”, a
company of which 41.17% interest is held by Midea) for the
purpose of incorporation of Midea Group Finance Co., Ltd.
(the “Finance Company”). The initial registered capital of the
Finance Company is RMB500 million. The Finance Company
shall provide a range of financial services as approved by the
China Banking Regulatory Commission (“CBRC”). The Finance
Company was mainly engaged in taking of deposits from and
borrowing of loans to Midea and its subsidiaries and
placement of short-term deposits with domestic recognised
banks.

Welling Holding Limited Annual Report 2011
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRME

11 Available-for-sale Financial Assets
(Continued)

12

(b)

On 18 November 2011, Guangdong Welling entered into a
capital increase agreement with Midea and GD Midea,
pursuant to which each of Guangdong Welling, Midea and GD
Midea agreed to increase its capital contribution to the
Finance Company in an aggregate amount of RMB1,000
million in proportion to each of their respective equity interests
in the Finance Company by way of cash . According to the 5%
equity interest of Guangdong Welling in the Finance Company,
RMB50 million (equivalent to approximately HK$60,394,000)
cash should be made by Guangdong Welling to the Finance
Company. The capital increase in the Finance Company was
approved by the CBRC on 30 December 2011 and the
payment of capital contribution was completed on the same
date. Upon completion of the capital increase, the registered
capital of the Finance Company was increased from RMB500

11 SHHESMEEE

b)) WHZE——F+—A+/\B EREE
BENRENBRITLILERZ - &
It BREE  ENRENERSAR
BEMVBARESS BRMIBARAM
IERFELLPIAR I EBER/ARE
1,000,000,000 7T * ERBHER I B A
AR 5% R - EMPEARIEE A
R #50,000,000 7t (4 SR B
60,394,000 0) & « RZT——F+
ZA=1+A - FEFESIERTHA
BIGE WA A FEREEA K o TR
WE%  MBARMNEMEANSE
AR 500,000,000 TiEE AR
1,500,000,000 7T * MEREE - EH)
REMNBESAD AR A BT

million to RMB1,500 million while the respective equity H5% * 55% K 40% [
interests of Guangdong Welling, Midea and GD Midea in the
Finance Company remained at 5%, 55% and 40%
respectively.
Inventories 12 58
Group
F %
2011 2010
—T——% —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BRI BETFIT
(Restated)
(E7))
Raw materials JRAH 187,835 313,150
Work-in-progress fr2m 40,862 72,697
Finished goods (Note) SUpK om (P EE) 384,354 1,557,903
613,051 1,943,750

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost of

goods sold amounted to HK$7,254,782,000 (2010: HK$5,301,245,000).

FEKAEET,254,782,000 T( ZT—T4F :
7 5,301,245,000 70) B ER B AT A
HEEMEANR °

REZBRERAT —Z——FFR§
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBRRMEE

12

13

Inventories (Continued)

During the year, the Group reversed a provision for inventory of
HK$4,935,000 (2010: charge of HK$8,328,000). The charge/reversal
has been included as an increase/reduction of cost of goods sold in
the consolidated income statement.

Note:

rewards have not been passed to the customers until the customers

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had finished goods which were
delivered and kept in stores at customers’ location amounted to
approximately HK$230,359,000 (2010: HK$1,147,063,000). No sales
have been recognised for these finished goods as the risks and

have confirmed the receipt of those goods.

Trade and Other Receivables

12 ZFE(E
RER » AEERETTEEEB 4,935,000
TL(ZZE—TF - T HE#8,328,0007T) °
HBEIBEN, R GRERERZHER
YN

BiRE -

R-E——F+-_A=+—8 " 2£BZIR
17 BUFE 3 = 10 B 9 UK am 49,8 6 230,359,000
TL(ZZ—Z4F : ¥ 1,147,063,0007T) ° A
REBREERAEGETES - MZSRAMN
HEWARERR  HAERPRRKEZEEMN
@A .

13 BESRHEAEKER

Group Company
FEE FaF
2011 2010 2011 2010
ZE——F ZT-TF ZT——% ZT-ITF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT ABETT BETT BT
(Restated)
(&%)
Trade receivables (Note (a)) B 5 UK (K@) 1,022,211 886,118 - -
Less: provision for impairment (Note (c)) A ORERR () (35,162) (17,189) - —
Trade receivables — net BHEWR — 58 987,049 868,929 - —
Notes receivable (Notes (a), (d)) FEWE & (k@) ~ (d) 345,442 385,601 - —
Prepayments SEEREN 133,875 173,305 - —
Other receivables H b MR 146,712 195,229 485 1,302
Less: provision for impairment of other W E RN RORE B
receivables (Note (c)) (Mf3E(c)) (104) (461) = -
Prepaid value-added tax-net (Note (e)) TaftigER — FEE(EE) 34,121 116,355 - —
1,647,095 1,738,958 485 1,302
Less: non-current portion B FEBNEREE S
— Prepayment for property, plant and — TENWE - BE REER
equipment 18 (11,981) (18,335) - —
1,635,114 1,720,623 485 1,302

Welling Holding Limited Annual Report 2011



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMTBHRRME

13 Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)
As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the fair values of trade and
other receivables of the Group and the Company approximate their
carrying amounts.

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, other receivables of the
Company are denominated in HK$. Trade and other receivables
other than prepayment of the Group are denominated in the
following currencies:

13. ESRHMEKRK(E

RZE——FR-_Z—ZTF+_A=+—
B AEERAARZES REMBERZKZ
ATEREREERES ©

RIE——FR—E-TF+-_HA=+—
B RNARZ HMERFIABETIE - &
B2 85 REAMEURRIERRIMNA T E
¥IIE

Group

XEE
2011 2010
—F——%F —E—TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
(Restated)
(&%)
RMB AR 978,025 1,131,261
usb E7T 395,934 301,545
EUR BT 138,929 131,529
Others Hib 332 1,318
1,513,220 1,565,653

REZRAERAT —B——E£R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AV HRRME

13 Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

(@) The majority of the Group’s export sales are on letter of credit
or documents against payment, or covered by customers’
standby letters of credit or bank guarantees. The remaining
amounts are with credit terms of 90 days. As at 31 December
2011 and 2010, the ageing analysis of the gross trade

receivables and notes receivable respectively are as follows:

13

BoRHAMEBKRE

@ AEEZEOBEABHAEAERN
HZEHRET - HUEP 2 BREM
BRBTRRERE - HBLBLEH
#8908 - R=B——5R=F—F
E+ZA=1+—0 - BREKRREK
BIEBBLRRATIT -

Group
XEE
2011 2010
—E——%F —E-EF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
(Restated)
(&%)
Gross trade receivables: A E L
Within 3 months = EPE AN 872,258 790,596
3 to 6 months =z=XEA 140,659 88,974
Over 6 months ANMEAK E 9,294 6,548
1,022,211 886,118
Group
XEE
2011 2010
—F——F —TTF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T
(Restated)
(&%)
Notes receivable: RS -
Within 3 months —{EARAUA 98,157 230,007
3 to 6 months =EREA 247,285 155,594
345,442 385,601

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the trade and other
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are fully

performing.

Welling Holding Limited Annual Report 2011
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRME

(0)

13 Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 13 B RHMEUWRR(Z
As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the ageing analysis of the b)) RZE——FR_ZT-ZTF+-_A=+
past due but not impaired trade receivables were as follows: —A - B Ee A R E 2 BRER
DT

Group

Xx&E
2011 2010
—F—F —TTF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BETT PR T
(Restated)
(&%)
3 to 6 months ==NEA 80,401 68,753
Over 6 months NERLAE 2,707 447
83,108 69,200
As at 31 December 2011, trade and other receivables of © HZE—F+=ZA=+—H EHK
approximately HK$69,091,000 (2010: HK$26,322,000) were Ho A FE MR A7 5 69,091,000 7T (=&
potentially impaired. The provision in relation thereto was — =4 26,322,000 70 ) BER
approximately HK$35,266,000 (2010: HK$17,650,000) at 31 B -RZE——F+-A=+—HZA
December 2011. The individual impaired receivables mainly BRI 4B 35,266,000 T( ZE—F
relate to past due receivables from customers. There is no F : B 17,650,000 7T) ° {ERIEERE
recent history of default for most of the customers, it was Wk E 2T R EERFIEER - X
assessed that a large portion of the receivables is expected to AR EE /RS - BFEX
be recovered. The ageing of these receivables is as follows: o EMGRTE BB AT IS - 1t R

ZERERINT -

Group

&R
2011 2010
—ET—%5 —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
(Restated)
(&%)
Within 3 months =@EANUA 2,246 —
3 to 6 months =Z=[EA 60,258 20,221
Over 6 months NE A 6,587 6,101
69,091 26,322

REZRERAT —T——55%#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRMEE

(©

13 Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 13 B RHMEWRR(Z
(Continued) © (&)
Movements on the provision for impairment of trade B 5 REMUR S ELAh FE IR 2 (B B
receivables and other receivables are as follows: EJ NN
Group
AEH
2011 2010
—T——% —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT BT T
(Restated)
(E31))
Beginning of the year F1 17,650 23,798
Provision for impairment SR B 18,205 10,259
Bad debts written off AR - (1,913)
Provisions written back BEEE (1,811) (16,764)
Exchange differences EHER 1,222 2,270
End of the year FR 35,266 17,650
The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables RGN R 2 PR TR B R B B 5T ALR
have been included in administrative expenses in the AR ZITHASZ A FE24) i
consolidated income statement (Note 24). Amounts charged TEEI BRI EESNR & - BIFT ABHEIR
to the allowance account are generally written off when there R R -
is no expectation of recovering additional cash.
The provision written back represented the subsequent BORERZRIE EEREEHES
collection of previously provided impaired amounts. B o
The other classes within trade and other receivables do not B 5 MEARUG z AR BEE
contain impaired assets. HEEE -
The balance represents bank acceptance notes with maturity o) BEGSRASNEARNIIEZRITELE
periods within six months. The maximum exposure to credit 1B RlE Bz RAEERRE & L
risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of BHEEWRZ ATFE - AEETEFE
receivables mentioned above. The Group does not hold any IR R -
collateral as security.
The Group has paid input value-added taxes (“VAT”) to the e AEECEEHERNERAERT

State Tax Bureau for the goods purchased from its suppliers.
In accordance with the relevant PRC tax regulations, these
VAT can be offset with the output VAT arising from the sales

in the future but are not refundable. The balances at 31
December 2011 and 2010 represented net input VAT after
offsetting the output VAT payable by the Group for the
domestic sales made during the year.

Welling Holding Limited Annual Report 2011
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRRME

14 Pledged Bank Deposits with Maturity Period
Over 3 Months

Certain bank balances were pledged against bank acceptance notes
issued by the Group and these deposits will be released upon the
maturity of the bank acceptance notes issued. These pledged bank
deposits bear interest at bank saving rates of 3.07% per annum
(2010: 1.91% per annum). All pledged bank deposits are
denominated in RMB.

14

*Ehﬂilﬁ K LEIH 2 EHIFRITE

TA

BT RITEBRIIERAEE I H Z RITK
AEBZER > MEFFRMNE D ZIRT
AR REFHARR - RFDEARITER
RIBITEREFNE3.07% (ZE—FF : FF|
E1.91%)5TE - MACEMRITERIURAR
BEHE

Group
AEHE

2011 2010

—T——% —E-EF

HK$’000 HK$’000

AT BT

Total pledged bank deposits BRI R TIF BB 58 192,887 232,555
Less: Maturity period within 3 months (Note 15) & @ =& A AR EIEI(FI:E15) (115,120) (114,555)
Maturity period over 3 months =&AL 77,767 118,000

- il
15 Cash and Cash Equivalents 15 BRERBREFED
Group Company
AEHE AAT

2011 2010 2011 2010

—ET——F —T-ITF ZFT——F —T-ITF

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

BT BT BT BT

(Restated)
(&%)
Bank deposits and cash on hand RITERRFHEES 857,803 690,524 13,457 1,560
Pledged bank deposits with maturity =1 8 AR R 2 B 3K 3H

period within 3 months (Note 14) RITFER(PITE14) 115,120 114,555 — —
972,923 805,079 13,457 1,660

At 31 December 2011, cash at banks and pledged bank deposits
with maturity period within 3 months of the Group in the total amount
of HK$911,200,000 (2010: HK$765,978,000) were kept in bank
accounts of PRC banks of which the remittance of funds were
subject to foreign exchange control.

The effective interest rate on bank deposits was 1.24 % per annum
(2010: 0.88% per annum).

M-ZB——F+-"A=+—0 AEBHZH
TEFE=ZEAANE R B ERIRITFRE
B 911,200,000 L (= —ZF : Bl
765,978,0007T) * IF A EFR BEAIRTTZ
IRITIRPH ZEE S 2 EHAEZINEE S
PR -

BITERZEBRENEE1.24% (ZE—F
F  FF]E0.88%) °

REZRER A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AV HRRME

16 Share Capital and Share Options

16 IRAEREEARIE

(a) Share capital (@) M=&E
Authorised
Ordinary shares
EERA 2 EER
Number of shares
('000) HK$’000
B
(Fh&) BT
At 1 January 2010, R-_E—ZTF—H—H-
31 December 2010, —E-TF+_HA=+—H
at HK$0.1 each BREEA®01T 20,000,000 2,000,000
Share consolidation (iii) & 17 & i) (16,000,000) —
At 31 December 2011, RZE——F+ZA=+—H
at HK$0.5 each HRRMEB0.57T 4,000,000 2,000,000

Issued and fully paid
Ordinary shares

ERTRYEREZTER
Number of shares
('000) HK$’000
&R
(F5) BT T
At 1 January 2010, RZZE—TF—H—H
at HK$0.1 each GREEBE01T 13,479,314 1,347,931
Issue of ordinary shares (i) FITEBAR() 600,000 60,000
Shares issued under the employee EEBRETEIT 2
share option scheme (i) A& 19 317 (i) 11,250 1,125
At 31 December 2010 and R-ZZE—ZEF+=-A=+—AH
1 January 2011, ;=T —F—H—H
at HK$0.1 each SREESE0AT 14,090,564 1,409,056
Share consolidation (iii) &1 & B (i) (11,272,451) =
Shares issued under the employee share B BBERREETEIT 2
option scheme (iv) Bt BE 1T (v) 3,500 1,750
At 31 December 2011, R-_ZET—F+-_A=+—H
at HK$0.5 each BREEAR0.5T 2,821,613 1,410,806

Welling Holding Limited Annual Report 2011



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRRME

16 Share Capital and Share Options (Continued)

(a)

Share capital (Continued)

)

(i)

On 29 March 2010, Midea Holding (Cayman Islands)
Limited (“Midea (Cayman Islands)”), the parent company
of the Company) entered into a placing agreement with a
placing agent and the Company, pursuant to which,
Midea (Cayman Islands) agreed to place, through the
placing agent, 1,200,000,000 existing shares of the
Company to not less than six independent investors at a
price of HK$0.42 per share. On the same date, Midea
(Cayman Islands) entered into a subscription agreement
with the Company, pursuant to which, Midea (Cayman
Islands) conditionally agreed to subscribe for 600,000,000
new shares of the Company at a price of HK$0.42 per
share. Such 600,000,000 new shares were issued for the
subscription on 9 April 2010 raising net proceeds of
approximately HK$245 milion which were intended to be
used for the development of motor business of the Group
and for general working capital of the Company. The net
price raised per share was approximately HK$0.41. These
shares rank pari passu with the then existing issued
shares of the Company.

The share options exercised by a Director of the Company
and certain employees of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2010, resulted in 11,250,000 shares being
issued at HK$0.157, yielding proceeds after transaction
costs of approximately HK$1,740,000. The weighted
average closing price of shares of the Company at the
time of exercise of share options was HK$0.39.

16 BRARBIRIEE)

(a)

REZBRERAT

B (E)

U

(i)

R-ZZE—FF=ZA=-+AhB " K
REIFRRENER(FHESHS)
BRAR(EN(HeiS))HE
Ao R IE R AR A E] S B & 1
B EN(FERS)RE
BBRERBRIBRRKRGEE
0.42 7T » AP PRANEE T IRE
% F2 5 1,200,000,000 & AR &
WERD - FAA - E(FRSE
E)VEARRRFIVRERZ &
It EWN(FERS)BERERE
RERBRMDEB .42 TRE
600,000,000 IR AR A RIFT AR ©
600,000,000 ikt B =&
—ZFENANBET - AER
88 - BE4% 245,000,000 7T
WETS I F R AEERA
EENEREBRADT —MRE
BEG FRFEBBO BB
0.417C o ILEMRD BAR DB E R
BEITRGO KRR o

BHE_Z-ZF+_A=+—H
FE AAR—REERAEE
B oERE/TEERE -
11,250,000 & & 19 12 B I B 1
0.157 THIBERET - KX S
BRONMBRELNAER
1,740,0007T °fEARAEMES TR -
RARRME INEFHRTER
0,397 o

—2——FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AV HRRME

16 Share Capital and Share Options (Continued)

(@) Share capital (Continued)

(b)

(i)

V)

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
26 May 2011, every five issued and unissued shares of
HK$0.1 each in the capital of the Company were
consolidated into one share of HK$0.5 each (“Share
Consolidation”) and the share consolidation became
effective on 27 May 2011. The weighted average of
ordinary shares for the purposes of calculating basic
and diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31
December 2011 and 2010 have been retrospectively
adjusted for the effect of share consolidation completed
on 27 May 2011.

The share options exercised by a Director of the
Company and an employee of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2011, resulted in 3,500,000
shares being issued at HK$0.785 per share, yielding
proceeds after transaction costs of approximately
HK$2,714,000. The weighted average closing price of
shares of the Company at the time of exercise of share
options was HK$1.23.

Share options

The Company adopted a share option scheme as approved

by the shareholders of the Company at an extraordinary

general meeting held on 27 June 2003 (the “Share Option

Scheme”).
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(a)

(b)
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(i)
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AZ+tREM - AtEstE#EZ
ZE—FRZT-TF+=A
T BIEFESRERNREE
Bz LB miETHE B
AR URMR—T——FAA
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IFFE  ARR—REBERAE
E-ZEETEBERE B
3,500,000 & f% 15 1= G B & 15
0.785 THIERETT - IR S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRRME

16 Share Capital and Share Options (Continued)

(b)

Share options (Continued)

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is for the Company
to attract, retain and motivate talented participants to strive for
future developments and expansion of the Group and to
provide the Company with a flexible means of giving incentive
to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing
benefits to the participants. Eligible participants of the Share
Option Scheme include the Directors (including executive
Directors and non-executive Directors) of the Company or
employees of the Group, consultants or advisors of the
Group, substantial shareholders or employees of substantial
shareholders of the Company, associates of Directors or chief
executives or substantial shareholders of the Company,
employees or directors of suppliers or customers of the
Group, discretionary objects of a discretionary trust
established by employees or directors of the Group, as to be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion within the
above categories.

The maximum numbers of shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes adopted by the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to
time. The total number of shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue as at the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme, but the Company may seek approval of its
shareholders in general meeting to refresh the 10% limit under
the Share Option Scheme.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company to
each participant in any 12-month period up to the date of grant
must not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
the date of grant. Any further grant of share options in excess of
such limit is subject to the approval of shareholders in general
meeting of the Company.

16 BRARBIRIEE

(b)

REZBRERAT

RERziE(E)
BRUEEIZ B BEADRRS]
BBELABET R Z2EERREE L
ARERLBREGS D - XERRF]
EERETEZ T A RS EERHER
BRE S - IR RART - B
FEZAEARSEEREARRES
(BRATESLIFNTES) IAEHE
ZEE  AEBZERREEZAA
T ARFRZEBERLHES A2
AIZEF  ZRTHRABSTFEERRZ
EABEA AEBEHERXES 2E
BYEE AEEEEBREEMRILZ
ERERAZEAERIEA(REFTS
FELMALTH2ERERE) -

FE R AERT Bl R AR RIR AN 2 AT E At
MerEsT BB T AT A R EE RARITE 28
IRREETTIER - A TR T 2 RN
B A& HTBBBRARRTREZEITRGD
Z.30% ° FERERT &I AR RME(T E A
PR RERT BITH T PIA A8 T I 2 PR
BEATERR - Al FEITZRMAEA T
SHBAR RN ERER M B AR 31T
M0 2 10% » HARRRIAIRIRERAE &
SSRRFEAE - AEFERAERT BT 2
10%MREE ©

RBZER S BB e+ — (@A 8 -
RIBRIME A B R AR R 2 (B E M
PRt B 2 B R T TR - B3
TRBETTEE2EE ZBRHBHT
SEBARANELBHEETRO
1% ° E— T RHBBURE BRI
TREBRNARBBRR KRS LHE -

—2——FFH

143



144

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBHRRMEE

16 Share Capital and Share Options (Continued)

(b)

Share options (Continued)

Share options granted under the Share Option Scheme to
Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to approval
of the independent non-executive Directors of the Company
(excluding any independent non-executive Director who is also
the grantee of the options). In addition, any share options granted
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time or
with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
Company’s shares at the date of each grant) in excess of
HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month period up to and including
the date of such grant, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
general meeting of the Company.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28
days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
Directors and ends on a date which is not later than 10 years
from the date of the offer of the share options.

The exercise price of the share options will be at least the highest
of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in daily
quotations sheet of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of the offer for grant, which
must be a business day; (i) the average closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the offer for grant, which must be a
business day; and (i) the nominal value of the Company’s share.

On 30 July 2007, 9,500,000 share options were granted to
certain Directors and employees at an exercise price of
HK$0.78 per share. The share options were exercisable
immediately on the date of grant and will expire on 29 July
2017.

Welling Holding Limited Annual Report 2011

16 BRARBIIEE)

(b)

RERRHE(2)

RIRERAEFT BIRAARRES « ZmfT
EA B sk ERRER i S 2 A%
B2 B - BREANRENIEITE
F(TREFABEREFRAZEME
SMIEMATES)BLE o 1IN REBER
PHB(REZE) AR+ =@EA S
M AARREEERRIBILIERNITE
R IR E B AL 2 AR
- WEBBAR BB T
192 01% + RBEREBEARRRE
BEBBAZBROETESE)BBEE
5,000,000 7T, + RIZELEARRA A A FIR
BAE A -

ERAARE D EREE B 28 A
A INSREEREEE 1 TRAER
Bt BEREZITENIRESRE
E o BREERER AR 105FRE

BEREZTEEHIMER T 2&aE
(IREHBERERR(ZRVARER
B ARRIBRNERAMERHME
RAR(BRANERBERPHAIIZ
W(E : (i) BRREBERERHGZA
PVAREEBRAAEEERE » AQA
B An OB 32 P B B B R P AT DI 2 F49
Wi{E ¢ KA R R 2 HfE

MN-ZB+ELA=+R BETEER
& B &# 9,500,000 A BB #E « 1T1H(E
REIRABH0.787T - ZEBIREREH
2 RBAATE - WK =T —tFt
ARZ+hBEIH-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRRME

16 Share Capital and Share Options (Continued)

(b)

Share options (Continued)

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company at an extraordinary general meeting held on 9
December 2008, the 10% limit under the Share Option
Scheme was refreshed (“Refreshment”). Upon the approval of
the Refreshment, a maximum of 1,347,931,411 shares of the
Company, being 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of approval of the Refreshment, may
be issued upon exercise of the share options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and all other share option
schemes of the Company.

On 9 January 2009, 375,000,000 share options were granted
to certain Directors and employees at an exercise price of
HK$0.157 per share subject to a vesting scale in four tranches
of 25% each and the achievement of the Company’s
performance target as set out in the Note below and these
options will expire on 31 March 2017.

On 27 May 2011, the Company implemented a share
consolidation on the basis that every five issued and unissued
shares of HK$0.1 each in the share capital of the Company
were consolidated into one share of HK$0.5 each. As a result,
the exercise price and the number of outstanding share
options granted under the Share Option Scheme were
adjusted to reflect the effect of the Share Consolidation on 27
May 2011.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, 3,500,000 share
options were exercised by a Director of the Company and an
employee of the Group and 3,500,000 share options were
lapsed upon termination of employment of a Director and an
employee. The weighted average closing price of the shares
of the Company immediately before the dates on which the
options were exercised was approximately HK$1.24. As at 31
December 2011, a total of 56,000,000 share options granted
to certain Directors of the Company and employees of the
Group were outstanding (2010: 315,000,000 share options).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AV HRRME

: : : n n =
16 Share Capital and Share Options (Continued) 16 BIRAREBIRIE(E
(b) Share options (Continued) (b) FBERRHE(ZE)
No share options were granted during the year ended 31 HE-E——F+-A=1T—HILFE
December 2011, I B AR o
Movements of the share options granted under the Share REBEZZ—F+ZA=1+—HLF
Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2011 R - IRIREAR T 815 2 Ak i
were as follows: g
Adjusted
Adjustment Options Options held exercise price
Options held  made during exercised Options at 31 per option
Date of at 1 January the year during the lapsed during December HK$ Exercisable
Name Grant 2011 (Note ii) year the year 2011 (Note ii) period
L
SRk
Rog——% Rog——% i
-A-B GRAfEEE  RAEER RAEER +-R=t-8 ot
4] BEHES REZERE (Mitii)  ECRRE SRBRE HEZRRE (Ptii) TTEHR
Directors 3
Mr. Cai Qiwu BERGE 09/01/2009 68,000,000  (54,400,000) - - 13,600,000 0.785 01/04/2010-31/08/2017
Mr. Jiang Deqing ZEERE 09/01/2009 36,000,000  (28,800,000) - - 7,200,000 0.785 01/04/2010-31/03/2017
Mr. Qu Fei EREE 09/01/2009 22,000,000 (17,600,000) - - 4,400,000 0.785 01/04/2010-31/03/2017
Mr. Lam Ming Yung HHBELE 30/07/2007 2,000,000 (1,600,000) - - 400,000 3.900 30/07/2007-29/07/2017
09/01/2009 5,000,000 (4,000,000 - - 1,000,000 0.785 01/04/2010-31/03/2017
Ms. Chen Chunhua BELLL 30/07/2007 2,000,000 (1,600,000) - - 400,000 3.900 30/07/2007-29/07/2017
09/01/2009 5,000,000 (4,000,000) - - 1,000,000 0.785 01/04/2010-31/03/2017
Mr. Gao Fazhong iy 09/01/2009 25,000,000 (20,000,000) (2,500,000) (2,500,000) - 0.785 01/04/2010-31/08/2017
(resigned on (R=F——#F
15 March 2017) ZA+EA
FH)
Employees &8
In aggregate A% 30/07/2007 3,500,000 (2,800,000) - - 700,000 3.900 30/07/2007-29/07/2017
09/01/2009 146,500,000  (117,200,000) (1,000,000) (1,000,000) 27,300,000 0.785 01/04/2010-31/03/2017
Total At 315000000 (2520000000 (3500000 (35000000 56,000,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRRME

16 Share Capital and Share Options (Continued)

(b)

Notes:

Share options (Continued)

(i) The consideration for each of the grants above was HK$1.

The options granted on 9 January 2009 shall be exercisable

during

the option period subject to a vesting scale in four

tranches of 25% each and the achievement of the performance

target

of the net profit attributable to the owners of the

Company of the relevant period as set out below:

The first 25% of the options granted to each grantee
shall be exercisable within seven years after 31 March
2010 provided that the net profit attributable to the
owners of the Company for the financial year ended 31
in the final
announcement of the Company is not less than 100%

December 2009 as disclosed results
of the net profit attributable to the owners of the
Company for the financial year ended 31 December
2008 (excluding the results from discontinued business)
(“Net Profit of 2008”);

The second 25%
grantee shall be exercisable within six years after 31
March 2011 provided that the net profit attributable to
the owners of the Company for the financial year
ended 31 December 2010 as disclosed in the final
results announcement of the Company is not less than
150% of the Net Profit of 2008;

of the options granted to each

The third 25% of the options granted to each grantee
shall be exercisable within five years after 31 March
2012 provided that the net profit attributable to the
owners of the Company for the financial year ended 31
December 2011 in the final
announcement of the Company is not less than 200%
of the Net Profit of 2008; and

as disclosed results

The remaining 25% of the options granted to each
grantee shall be exercisable within four years after 31
March 2013 provided that the net profit attributable to
the owners of the Company for the financial year
ended 31 December 2012 as disclosed in the final
results announcement of the Company is not less than
280% of the Net Profit of 2008.

The performance target for the financial years ended 31
December 2009, 2010 and 2011 had been achieved. The first
and second 25% of the options had been granted to the

Directors and employees respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBHRRMEE

16 Share Capital and Share Options (Continued)

(b)

Share options (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii) Adjustments were made to the number of outstanding share
options and the exercise price upon the Share Consolidation
becoming effective on 27 May 2011. Details of the Share
Consolidation and the adjustments to the share options were
set out in the Company’s circular dated 11 May 2011 and
announcement dated 26 May 2011.

The fair value of the options granted on 9 January 2009 are
determined using the “Binomial Valuation model” (the
“Model”). Key assumptions of the Model are set out below:

Risk-free rate: 1.299%
Expected dividend yield: 3%
Expected volatility of the market price

of the Company’s shares: 52.34%
Expected option life: 8.2 years
Fair value as at the date of grant

(approximately): HK$25,229,000

The Model requires the input of subjective assumptions,
including the volatility of share price. As changes in subjective
input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate,
in the directors’ opinion, the Model does not necessarily
provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of share
options.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

17 Other Reserves 17 HifiE
(@) Group (a) AEE
Available-
Statutory General  Enterprise Share for-sale
Share reserve reserve  expansion option  revaluation  Exchange Merger
premium fund fund fund reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
ETEGE —& % AHHE
B R (E ¢ HEEe LRES BRERE ERRERE ERRE  S0ES At
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKE000  HK$000  HK$000 — HK$'000
BETT ABTr BT A%t BT A%t B¥Tr A%t BETx
Note (c) Note (c) Note (c) Note (d)
Bzt () Ki3E(c) HtsE(c) L)
Balance at 1 January 2010, n=%-%%£-HF-A
as restated SR (ET) 3,336,373 2140 80464 71441 17,847 - (1331) (3228415 278,519
Issue of ordinary shares BITLER
— proceeds from shares issued — — BRGHBITAIEFHE 192,000 - — - - — - - 192,000
— share issuance expenses — BIABTREY (6,557) - - - - - - - (6,557)
Employee share option scheme {8 Bk ##at &l
— value of services provided — PR 2 BE
(Note 25(a)) (P&F25()) - - - - 5,841 - - - 5,841
— proceeds from shares issued ~ — RIDVEATATEFE 641 - - - - - - — 641
— share issuance expenses — B EITES (26) - - - - - - - (26)
Currency translation differences ~ EH¥EHZE - - - - - - 60,478 - 60,478
Deemed contribution from ultimate  FAIRI A AIREEFEHE
holding company arising from PRI FTE A0
its acquisition of non-controling ~ {EEE
interests — — — — — — — 4,792 4,792
Transfer to statutory reserve BREETRE - 71 23,865 23,735 - - - - 48,311
Balance at 31 December 2010, W=F—-F&+=f
as restated =+-—B%&8
(E31) 3,502,431 0851 104329 95176 23,688 — 50147 (3223623 583,999
BEERERAE —Z——FFRK
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G EMBHRRMEE

17

Other Reserves (Continued)

17 Hwiw (2

(@) Group (Continued) (a) AEEE)
Available-
Statutory  General Enterprise Share  for-sale
Share reserve reserve expansion option revaluation Exchange Merger
premium fund fund fund reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
EERE —& ES N E
i ¢ fiFEe BRES BRERE ERRE ERRE  SHEE Ait
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
BETT  BETT ATt BETR A%t TR B%Tn  #ETR B%Tn
Note (c)  Note (c) Note (c) Note (d)
fizE(c) Fit&E(c) e )] Bit&E(d)
Balance at 1 January 2011, RZ=F——%f—-F—H
as restated E8(E) 3,522,431 2851 104329 95176 23,688 — 5947 (3223623) 583,999
Employee share option scheme {8 B Rk H#st 2
— value of services provided — FRtRBZEE
(Note 25(a) GEZED) - = = - 2,499 = - = 2,499
— proceeds from shares issued — RAHETTHIEHE 998 - - - - - - - 998
— share issuance expenses — B EIEE (34) - - - - - = = (34)
Change in value of available-for- At K ESREEEE
sale financial assets 28 - - - - - 4,694 - - 4,694
Currency translation differences SWEH & - - - - - — 104,459 — 104,459
Consideration paid for merger of &4t £EHEHI T 2 M E
a subsidiary under common ARBARE
control - - - - - - —  (88,694)  (88,694)
Deemed contribution from BRI AR
ultimate holding company RS FTEE £ AR
arising from its acquisition of fEE RS
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - 54,304 54,304
Transfer to statutory reserve BRELTHE - 302 18,797 18,797 - - — — 37,896
Balance at 31 December R=¥——%+=A
2011 =+-—-B4&h 3,523,395 3,153 123,126 113,973 26,187 4,694 163,606 (3,258,013) 700,121
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRME

17 Other Reserves (Continued) 17 HibfEE (2
(b) Company (b) EFAT
Other
Share Share option Exchange reserve Retained
premium reserve reserve Total earnings Total
Hitf#iE
Iinita(E  FERERERE BE Sttt @ REEF &t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BEFT BETFT BT BEFT BETFT
Balance at 1 January 2010 N-T-—-F&F
—RA—B463 3,336,373 17,847 69,674 3,423,894 104,785 3,528,679
Profit for the year FEFHE - - - — 90,577 90,577
Issue of ordinary shares BITE R
— proceeds from shares issued — — EE1TAX RS FIE 192,000 — - 192,000 — 192,000
— share issuance expenses — BHBITHX (6,557) — - (6,557) — (6,557)
Employee share option scheme & 8 BT 2
— value of services provided — FiRERBZEBE
(Note 25(a)) (FF&E25(a)) — 5,841 — 5,841 — 5,841
— proceeds from shares issued — — ZEITHD FTEFKIA 641 - - 641 — 641
— share issuance expenses — BHPBTHEX (26) — — (26) — (26)
Dividend relating to 2009 ZEThFERE — — - (70,422) (70,422)
Currency translation differences EkiE N R — — 178,292 178,292 — 178,292
Balance at 31 December 2010 WZ=-Z—F#+=H
=+—B4& 3,622,431 23,688 247,966 3,794,085 124,940 3,919,025
Balance at 1 January 2011 N-E——f&
—RA—B %tk 3,522,431 23,688 247,966 3,794,085 124,940 3,919,025
Profit for the year FEFHE - - - 109,316 109,316
Employee share option scheme  {& 8B ETEl
— value of services provided — FREARIE 2 (EE
(Note 25(a)) (Fi3E25(a)) = 2,499 - 2,499 - 2,499
— proceeds from shares issued — — F{DEITHTEFK 998 - - 998 = 998
— share issuance expenses — BROHBITRX (34) - - (34) = (34)
Dividend relating to 2010 —E-THEERS = = — (112,725)  (112,725)
Currency translation differences EMENER - - 264,144 264,144 = 264,144
Balance at 31 December 2011 WMZ-F——%F+=H
=+—B48 3,523,395 26,187 512,110 4,061,692 121,531 4,183,223
REZRERAT —B——F5HK 151



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AV HRRME

17 Other Reserves (Continued)

17 Hith

il (&

() The Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to follow the € ARREFRBRZHBAREETHRE
laws and regulations of the PRC and their articles of BIER - IR E 2 BEEIRE) -
association. These subsidiaries are required to provide for ZEMBARAREETEEES  »
certain statutory funds, namely, general reserve fund and AlAE—MEEESROERERES B
enterprise expansion fund, which are appropriated from net BRI ERTRED K2 4R R
profit after taxation but before dividend distribution based on B o ZAFIRBIEFBE A SRR 2
the local statutory accounts prepared in accordance with S RA BB ERMAER 2 BR
accounting principles and relevant financial regulations EERBFE - WEFEMBARER
applicable to enterprises established in the PRC. These PRC HANZD10% 0 EZFHEES - 55
subsidiaries are required to allocate at least 10% of its net FREESEHREEEFMEARZ50%
profit to the reserve fund until the balance of such fund has Bl WEBRBAESMEETE - —%
reached 50% of its registered capital. Such appropriations are REESETCHEBE RBILEERBRABE
determined at the discretion of the directors. The general 8 R AT E IR A A -
reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by the relevant
authority, to offset accumulated deficit or increase capital.

(d)  Merger reserve represents the difference between the d) EotEEEEREESITREMS 2R
consideration paid for the acquisition under common control, BRANRRHEA N EARNEERK S HE
and the aggregate nominal value of share capital/paid-up RNEIZIRA, BRBAZ ERRE =
capital of the subsidiaries comprising the Group contributed ¥ o
by the owners of the Company.

18 Borrowings 18 f&=
Group
XEE
2011 2010
—g——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
EETT BT T

Non-current FEENHA

Long-term bank borrowings, unsecured RERITER — EIEHF 94,395 104,364

Current BPHA

Short-term bank borrowings, unsecured MERT TR — S 239,121 190,346

Short-term bank borrowings, secured FEEIRITER — B - 51,100

239,121 241,446
333,516 345,810
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBHRRME

18 Borrowings (Continued)

At 31 December 2011, the Group’s bank borrowings were repayable

18

fa(E
R-Z——F+-A=+—F  ARERT

as follows: BRZEFIBERAT

Group

*%H
2011 2010
=8——-% -T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
Within one year —FR 239,121 241,446
1to 2 years —EWE 94,395 97,359
2to 3 years ME=F - 7,005
333,516 345,810

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate changes

and the contractual repricing dates are as follows:

AEEZERERZNEZEPRAMIRANE
MEBHBNT

Group
FEHE
2011 2010
—F——% —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Borrowings with fixed rate subject to EEERENRTERE
repricing date as:
6 months or less NMEASAT 12,335 —
6 months to 1 year NEARZE—F 49,340 —
Over 1 year —F LA 74,010 —
135,685 -
Borrowings with floating rate as: REER
6 months or less ANMEASAT 97,627 345,810
6 months to 1 year NEAE—F 79,819 —
Over 1 year —F 20,385 —
197,831 345,810
333,516 345,810
RELRERAT —FT——F5H
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18 Borrowings (Continued)

The effective interest rates of the above floating rate borrowings at
the end of the reporting period were 2.39% per annum (2010: 1.90%
per annum).

Leasehold land and land use rights with net book value of
HK$46,102,000 (2010: HK$60,429,000) and property, plant and
equipment with net book value of HK$43,253,000 (2010:
HK$97,891,000) have been pledged as security for the Group’s
short-term bank borrowings (Notes 6 and 7).

The carrying amounts of short-term bank borrowings and the long-
term borrowings approximate their fair values. The fair value of long-
term borrowings is based on cash flows discounted using a rate
based on the borrowings rate of 3.01% (2010: 1.52%). The carrying
amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the following

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBHRRMEE

18 & (&)

RS B AR - FIUZBERZER
MEE2.39% (ZF—FF : FFIFE1.90%) °

BRELFEB M 46,102,000 T( — T — T4 ¢
?H%Z60,429,000E)Z%ﬂfﬁii@&iﬂ’g@iﬁﬁ% '
AR BREFE S 43,253,000 L (—ZF—F
& ¢ 15 97,891,0007T) 2 W% - BB REE
EfEAASEEERITERZEE(Ee &
7)

REBRITERRERBRERZ REERA QT
BEEE - REBERZATETDRERE *ﬂJ$
3.01% (ZE—FF : 1.52%) - AL REM
WEtE - BRZEMEUTYIEESE -

currencies.

Group

FEE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETIT BT T
RMB AR 140,619 —
HK$ T 60,000 160,000
Usb =TT 132,897 185,810
333,516 345,810
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAMEHRME
19 Deferred Government Grant 19 EEBAFHEAG
Group
Xx&E
2011
—F——%
HK$’000
BT
At 1 January 2011 RZZE——F—H—H -
Government grant relating to purchase of leasehold fE BT E Lt [ 3t R 2 U B
land and land use rights 23,757
Credit to income statement AN EEF (475)
At 31 December 2011 R_ZT——F+=-HA=+—~H 23,282
The amount represented subsidy granted by local government EHSBEETRHEMBUNKE AREHEE L
authority in the PRC relating to acquisition of leasehold land and land R T RAERE R SBEAARE
use rights amounted to RMB19,260,000 (HK$23,757,000) (2010: 19,260,000 T (&% 23,757,000 T )( —Z—=
Nil). FmE) e
20 Trade and Other Payables 20 B REMEMNTR
Group Company
AEH EATFH
2011 2010 2011 2010
—ET——§ —_T-TF ZFT——F —_TITF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETIT EBETT  B%T
(Restated)
(&E751))
Trade payables (Note (a)) Z SN (M @) 1,201,394 1,724,081 - —
Notes payable (Notes (a), (b)) JER SR (M) - () 1,407,935 1,356,659 - —
2,609,329 3,080,740 - —
Provision for staff welfare and bonus 8 T&7| R fEAL & s 145,087 136,571 - —
Accruals TEIREH 41,682 26,002 2,591 2,184
Advances from customers TERE PR 12,584 10,348 - —
Other payables A FERTK 202,821 167,510 - -
Others A 550 173 - —

3,012,053 3,421,344 2,591 2,184
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FEUMTEHRFRMEE
20 Trade and Other Payables (Continueq) 20 ESRHEMEMRRE
(@  The ageing analysis of the trade payables and notes payable @ AEBEZEFENRLENEE KRR
of the Group was as follows: DT -
Group
AEH
2011 2010
—F——% —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BETT BT
(Restated)
(&%)
Within 3 months ={EALR 1,540,416 2,313,040
3 to 6 months == NEA 1,051,116 756,607
Over 6 months NMEAL L 17,797 11,093
2,600,329 3,080,740

(b)  The balance represents non-interest bearing bank acceptance

notes issued by the Group with maturity periods of less than

six months. As at 31 December 2011, certain notes payable

were pledged by bank deposits of approximately
HK$192,887,000 (2010: HK$232,555,000) (Note 14).

b) AREEHAREEE LT BRITER
FiE - DIEEIRAORNER c RZE—
—F+ZA=+—8 " HBTENAEEN
$RIT1F KB 192,887,000 L (=&
—Z4F B 232,555,000 7T ) 1E AR
H(ME14) ©

21 Derivative Financial Instruments 21 $THEE£RTH
Group
AEE
2011 2010
—ET——%F —E-TF
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE EfE BE afE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT BT BETFT
Commodity futures contracts (a) EmEIE A #() 1,682 240 9,808 —
Foreign exchange
forward contracts (b) SN R R A #I(0) 15,110 - 16,114 —
16,792 240 25,922 —
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21 Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued)

@)

The Group has entered into various copper and aluminum
futures contracts to manage the fluctuation of copper and
aluminum price which did not meet the criteria for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of the non-hedging
copper and aluminum futures contracts amounted to
approximately HK$3,181,000 (Note 23) were credited to the
consolidated income statement during the year (2010:
HK$6,637,000).

The notional principal amounts of outstanding commodity
futures contract as at 31 December 2011 were
HK$174,706,000 (2010: HK$96,543,000).

The Group has entered into various foreign exchange forward
contracts to manage the fluctuation of foreign currencies
which did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting. Changes
in the fair value of non-hedging foreign exchange forward
contracts amounted to approximately HK$22,391,000 (Note
23), were credited to the consolidated income statement
during the year (2010: HK$35,865,000).

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding forward
foreign exchange contracts as at 31 December 2011 were
HK$1,095,902,000 (2010: HK$831,803,000).

The carrying amounts of the commodity futures contracts and

foreign exchange forward contracts are the same as their fair values.

The above transactions involving derivative financial instruments are

with credit worthy banks with no recent history of default.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair

value of the derivative assets in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

21

4=

171
(@)

EERMTAGE

REEC L ZEARIBHESL - #
LAE IR R AR EERE) - BTRHEER
VESREETIE IR o JEVES R 2 fR R 8RR
BEEH A EZELEE 3,181,000
(M 23) « RERFFALZE K&K
(ZZ—=4F : B%6,637,0007T) °

Ro-E——F+_-A=+—BURGEE
HRBEANZAERSSEREN
174,706,000 T (=& —ZF : B
96,543,0007T) °

REBOF L ZEINERREL - A
EIZINERE) - BT EBREE g
FTIEIE o JEMEEIR ZINERIAHZ A
FEE B 47 % 22,391,000 7T (P 5
28) RFRFFASRAE R EER(ZE—F
4 ¢ 7B%35,865,0007T) °

RZZE—F+-_A=+—BIREE
INERBENZBERNSSBABE
1,095,902,000 (= ZE—F4F : B
831,803,0007T) °

BmBEA N RIINEERS O REEER

RFERE -

NEFBTESRIAZRS

AEHAE BT A R AR SRR IRITHETT -

REBMZBEANEERRRITEEENER
BHBIRRKZ AFE -

REZBRERAT

—2——FFH
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FEUMTEHRFRMEE

22 Deferred Income Tax — Group 22 BMEFFEH — AEE
Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary differences BEFEHRERABEENEREZE2EAEE
under the liability method using taxation rates applicable to the ETARIEAZ REEBHETH -

companies comprising the Group.

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax RIEFGHEERBEEMSHEBE 2> TN
liabilities is as follows: T
Group
FEE
2011 2010
5 —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT IT BT T
(Restated)
(&%)
Deferred income tax liabilities: BT AR
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be — R+ &8 B LA EfERR 2 IEIE
released after more than 12 months Fsfia’E 47,823 26,555
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be — R+ 8 B ARER 2 IR
released within 12 months FiStiaE 25,726 24,218
73,549 50,773
Deferred income tax assets: BIEFBHEE
— Deferred income tax assets to be — R+ E AR E ZEE
recovered within 12 months FiSti&E 38,853 32,254
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22 Deferred Income Tax — Group (Continued) 22 EIEFFRH — AEE(E

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during RIEEEBEEARARIE AR N HE L&
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances Al BEEFEHAERAERFRAZEEH I
within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: T
Deferred income tax liabilities: IEEFRSBAE
Undistributed
profits
of PRC Fair value  Revaluation
subsidiaries gain of assets Total
FEMBAT
ZRSIRFE AF{E BELEE ast
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BT BETT  BETT  BETR

At 1 January 2010, RZZE—TF

as restated —A—R(&E3) 21,882 3,353 - 25,235
Charged to consolidated income WA MKEERR

statement EilliS 23,817 401 — 24,218
Exchange differences EHER 1,194 126 — 1,320
At 31 December RZT—TF

2010, as restated +=-—A=1+—8©

(E51) 46,893 3,880 - 50,773

Payment of withholding tax BISTEINFL (13,613) - - (13,613)
Acquisition of a W RE BT /8 A )

subsidiary (Note 35) (FfF5E35) - - 7,714 7,714
Charged/(credited) to RERE =R AT

consolidated income statement B (GEA) 27,436 (1,521) (189) 25,726
Exchange differences ERER 2,749 160 40 2,949
At 31 December RITE——%F

2011 +=-A=+—H 63,465 2,519 7,565 73,549
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22 Deferred Income Tax — Group (Continued) 22 REFTRB — AEE(E
Deferred income tax assets: IEEFRBBEE -
Deferred
Impairment Fair value Unpaid government
losses losses accruals grant Total
E 30 BT
BEEE ATEESE RiREHR BUFF#RE ait
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BB T T BETT BETT
At 1 January 2010, RZZT—TF
as restated —H—H
571)) 5,738 136 17,194 - 23,068
Credited/(charged) RERE W
to consolidated Tt A
income statement (30B%) 496 (137) 7,833 — 8,192
Exchange differences EHER 212 1 781 - 994
At 31 December 2010, RZZE—TF
as restated TZA=+
—R(&E7)) 6,446 - 25,808 - 32,254
Credited/(charged) RiRE W
to consolidated =t A
income statement ($B%) 2,976 35 (3,815) 5,700 4,896
Exchange differences ERER 382 1 1,199 121 1,703
At 31 December RZT——%F
2011 +=ZA=+
—H 9,804 36 23,192 5,821 38,853

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not
recognise deferred income tax assets of HK$648,000 (2010:
HK$852,000) in respect of losses amounting to HK$2,590,000
(2010: HK$3,410,000) that can be carried forward against future
taxable income. Such losses will expire in 2016.

Deferred income tax liabilities have been recognised for the

withholding tax and other taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of all subsidiaries.

Welling Holding Limited Annual Report 2011
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FEMBHRRME

23 Other Gains — Net

23 Hftslas — FER

2011 2010
—T—F —T-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
AT BT
(Restated)
(E51)
Government grants (i) BRATAERE () 9,802 7,487
Derivative financial instruments: PTHESRTA
— fair value gain on commodity futures contracts not — NEEEBRELRgE
qualified for hedge accounting: not settled BEZEARHAEEL
(Note 21(a)) NEENE  REE
(MiEE21(a)) 1,442 9,808
— fair value gain/(loss) on commodity futures contracts ~ — A BEIEL @t
not qualified for hedge accounting: settled BEZARHAEEL
(Note 21(a)) AEWE (F18) |
EEE(HIF21() 1,739 3,171)
— fair value gain on foreign exchange forward contracts ~ — A& BEIEL T @+
not qualified for hedge accounting: not settled FRIR 2 R ERNE & £
(Note 21(p)) NFENE  REE
(MF5E21(0)) 15,110 16,114
— fair value gain on foreign exchange forward contracts ~ — & ERIEL P&t
not qualified for hedge accounting: settled IR 2 R ERINE & £
(Note 21(b)) N EWRE - BEEE
(FF5E21(0)) 7,281 19,751
Exchange loss I 5 518 (24,309) (14,127)
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment HEWME - BEMREEE (4,569) (13,709)
Penalty income HIENN 6,534 4,881
Others Hity 1,779 260
14,809 27,294
() The amount represents the subsidy granted by and received () AR EIERD TR E BT E S

from local government authorities in the PRC for encouragement

of export.

REZRER A

By R Z fBRL o

—2——FFH
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FEMIBBRRMEE
24 Expenses by Nature 24 ERMESEZEX
Expenses included in cost of goods sold, selling and marketing BEEHEEEMKA - B8 RMiGHEKAK
costs and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: MITHASZ MR STOT
2011 2010
—g——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
(Restated)
(&%)
Cost of inventories recognised as expense RARZ 2 FERARIE12)

(Note 12) 7,254,782 5,301,245
Employee benefit expenses (Note 25(a)) 1B B AIFT 2 (Ff7E25(a)) 796,209 603,209
Depreciation e 105,989 89,349
Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights F8& 4 ith [ + sty {i F 42 # 85

(Note 6) (Kt7Ee) 3,660 3,242
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 8) EIAERHE(MHES) 757 —
Provision/(reversal of provision) for impairment of & 5 K& E i fE U ZORE R &,

trade and other receivables — net (BO) — 558 16,394 (5,660)
(Reversal)/provision for inventory obsolescence 1558 KRE X ERE (BE),/

(Note 12) R (E12) (4,935) 8,328
Operating leases rental for land and buildings THREFEEHERS 16,323 5,152
Auditors’ remuneration TN S 3,800 2,992
Research and development costs f7E R A AR 14,140 16,649
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25 Employee Benefit Expenses

(a)

25 EEEFIFEX

(a)
2011 2010
—T——%5 —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
(Restated)
(&%)
Wages and salaries TERF® 656,095 498,013
Pension costs (i) RIRERAR() 33,964 23,862
Medical benefits BB ET 17,653 12,562
Share options granted to directors and employees & FE = N (& 8 7 BEIHE 2,499 5,841
Other allowances and benefits H 2B R AR 85,998 62,931
796,209 603,209

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
to join the MPF Scheme. Under the MPF Scheme, each
of the Group companies (the employer) and its
employees make monthly contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Legislation. The
contributions from each of the employers and
employees are subject to a cap of HK$1,000 per month
and thereafter contributions are voluntary.

The Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC
participate in the local retirement schemes of the PRC.
Pursuant to the relevant regulations, the Group is
currently required to make a monthly contribution
equivalent to 156% to 28% of the monthly salaries in
respect of its full-time and temporary employees.

REZRER A

AEBERHETERERBESMM®
et o BEARESTE - &
EETEEAR(EE) MEES
BIRAHIEAERIEGIETE - 8
Bi8EE ABZ 5% {EAEIH
FeoREREESH ZHHKER
AT ABEEA1,000T 0 HiEHA
BRI

RRBRR B 2 M A R
SEABEAMRKSETE o RIE
BB - AEERBET AL
HERZBLERES A% 15%
F28% 2 K ©

—2——FFH
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FEMIBBRRMEE
25 Employee Benefit Expenses (Continued) 25 ESEMEXZE)
(b) Directors’ and senior managements’ (b) EERSREEASHE
emoluments
The remuneration of the Directors for the year ended 31 EEREE_ZT——F+=-A=1+—H
December 2011 is set out below: LEFEZHMESEFHNNNAT -
Employer’s
contribution
Discretionary Other to pension
Name of Director Fees Salary bonuses benefits (i) scheme Total
BAREEE
EEME e 7 BIEEd  HaER) ZEEHR &%

HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
EETT AT EETRT #RTRT E%TT  EETR

Executive Directors ~ H{TEE

Mr. Cai Qiwu BEHREE - 1,272 2,416 1,150 6 4,844
Mr. Jiang Deqjing ZEERE - 495 1,209 609 6 2,319
Mr. Qu Fei ERTE - 404 869 372 6 1,651
Mr. Chen Jiahong (il PR 722 41 9 A (i) - 435 841 - 6 1,282
Ms. Yuan Liqun RANE LT - - - - - -
Mr. Li Jianwei RERELEE - - - - - -
Mr. Zheng Weikang EMERAAE - 60 - - - 60
Mr. Gao Fazhong (ii) ik e e (1) - 7 - 423 1 431
Independent BILFERIT

non-executive EE

Directors
Mr. Tan Jinsong EEIIAVHS 180 - - - - 180
Mr. Lam Ming Yung INEE 180 - - 85 - 265
Ms. Chen Chunhua BREELT 180 - - 85 - 265

540 2,673 5,335 2,724 25 11,297
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25 Employee Benefit Expenses (Continued)

(b)

Directors’ and senior managements’
emoluments (Continued)

The remuneration of the Directors for the year ended 31
December 2010 is set out below:

25 EEEFIFEZ(E

(b) EEREREEBASWE(E)

EFNHE-T-TFT-A=1—A
ILFEZBEHAIMT :

Employer’s
contribution

Discretionary Other  to pension
Name of Director Fees Salary bonuses  benefits () scheme Total
RikeatE
BEAZ ik e MBI EMRER)  ZEEHE E
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
AETT AT A%t BB Tr BB Tr B%Tr
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Cai Qiwu BEHRES - 1,020 2,297 1,140 8 4,465
Mr. Jiang Deging EEERE - 427 1,478 604 8 2,517
Mr. Qu Fei EREE - 353 504 369 8 1,234
Mr. Gao Fazhong (ii) B R A (i) - 352 563 419 8 1,342
Ms. Yuan Liqun RAELL - - - - - -
Mr. Li Jianwei RERSLE — — - — — —
Mr. Zheng Weikang EMERAAE — — - — — -
Non-executive Directors FEHITESE
Ms. Tan Xuemei (iv) EEL (V) - - - 84 — 84
Independent non- BILFERIT
executive Directors EE
Mr. Tan Jinsong EEIIS e 180 - - - - 180
Mr. Lam Ming Yung R 180 - - 84 - 264
Ms. Chen Chunhua BREELL 180 - - 84 - 264
540 2,152 4,842 2,784 32 10,350

(i) Other benefits include leave pay and share based payments.

(ii) Mr. Chen Jiahong was appointed on 15 March 2011.

(iii) Mr. Gao Fazhong resigned on 15 March 2011.

(iv) Ms. Tan Xuemei resigned on 18 April 2010.

(i

(iii)

(v)

HABMBER H R RARS XX
Yo
REaEER—_T——F=A+OR%E
ZiE-
MELAEENR-_T——F=ATHAH
Fo
BERZLIN_Z-ZTFENA+\BEH
o

BEZRERAT —F——F5H
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FEMBIRRMEE
25 Employee Benefit Expenses (Continued) 25 EESEFHEXZE
(c) Five highest paid individuals (c) ABREIHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the ARFEEEENAZHZESTMATEIE=
Group for the year include three Directors (2010: three) whose H(—E—TF  ZR)EE HMEE
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. HRLEXDT - KRFEEEMNBTME
The emoluments payable to the remaining two (2010: two) (ZZE—TF - MB/)ATZHE0T :

individuals during the year are as follows:

2011 2010
—T——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
Basic salaries, housing allowances, share options, EA#FH& - EEEEL - B
other allowances and benefits in kind 1 HEAphEEE R EMFIR 5,314 4,444
Contribution to pension schemes RIS FEIHR 61 55
5,375 4,499
The emoluments fell within the following bands: B B A T 4R 2 ABR T ¢
Emolument bands Number of individuals
EM &R 71 A&
2011 2010
—ET——%F —E-EF
HK$1,000,000- ##1,000,0007T-
HK$2,000,000 B2 000,0007T 1 1
HK$2,000,001- 7B 2,000,001 7T
HK$4,000,000 7B 4,000,0007T 1 1
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REMTBHRRME

26 Finance Costs — Net 26 RIERAE — FHE
2011 2010
—E——5F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BETT BT T
(Restated)
(E25)
Interest expense FERX (49,370) (30,895)
Exchange (loss)/gain — net MEH (E18), W — F58 (12,219) 453
Finance cost BB A (61,589) (30,442)
Finance income — interest BEWA — RITEFERZ
income on bank deposit FEWA 10,047 4,460
Net finance costs REE R A FEE (51,542) (25,982)
27 Income Tax Expense 27 FRBiHRX

() Macao and British Virgin Islands profits tax
The Group has not been subject to any taxation in these
jurisdictions for the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: Nil).

(i) Hong Kong profits tax

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group

did not have any assessable profit in Hong Kong for the year

ended 31 December 2011 (2010: Nil).

(i) PRC Corporate Income Tax

Group companies registered in the PRC are subject to PRC

Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”). According to the new CIT

effective from 1 January 2008, all PRC enterprises are subject

to a standard enterprise income tax rate of 25%, except for

enterprises under specific preferential policies and provisions

are discussed as follows.

() BRFIREBRELHSHEH

REERHE—"T——

FHZA=+—

AIEFRHAS NIt ERIAEERMNE

ARBE(—E—FF : &) -

(i) FHEFEH

HRAKERNEE—F——

F+-A=

T HLFETEERERNERTA
M(ZF—2F &) FETEELE

BMEHEE

(i) PEIEZEFFEHR

REEESFEEMN R BAESMPE L
EMEH(EEMERD - RIEH-F
ENF—A—HREMNFPESEM
B REEXBRA TR EE
BRERBREIN - FRETERRARR

D5% B EFTEHLE -
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FEMBIRRMEE
27 Income Tax Expense (Continued) 27 FhiSHiBRZ(2)
(i) PRC Corporate Income Tax (Continued) (iii) =F.::-.¥Fﬁ S8 (Z)
Welling Washer has been eligible to high technology BERKA T ——FET—=FH
enterprises CIT incentive starting from year 2011 to year ?%éﬂé%ﬁfr S EEE R B e RN
2013. The applicable preferential tax rate of high technology TEERER HEZT——F+A
enterprises is 15% for the year ended 31 December 2011. =T—HIEFE  S¥REGE TR
Welling Washer has been eligible to the “2-year-exemption BEEHEAE15% c HESKA-ZZ X
and 3-year-50%-deduction” CIT incentive starting from year FET-TFEFELEMGHER
2006 to year 2010. The applicable preferential tax rate after BRI MERe=FRao2H
reduction is 12.5% for the year ended 31 December 2010. THRFIZER B2 T —TF+_
A=1+—BItFE IERZE2TA
EEMRER12.5% °
Guangdong Welling and Wuhu Welling have been eligible to BREEHEEARER — TSN \FE
high technology enterprises CIT incentive starting from year T -=FRFECEMET RS RS
2008 to year 2013. The applicable preferential tax rate of high BestlbEBRER HE_ZT—
technology enterprises is 15% for the year ended 31 —F+_A=+—RALFE  aFRE
December 2011 (2010:15%). CEZAREERER15% (ZE—F
F:15%) °
Huaian Welling has been eligible to high technology ELBBER T ——FE-T—=FMH
enterprises CIT incentive starting from year 2011 to year HFETEMSH BT B SR
2013. The applicable preferential tax rate of high technology PEERER -BHEZT—F+A
enterprises is 15% for the year ended 31 December 2011. =+ —HIEEE SRS E AR
BEHER15% °
2011 2010
—ET——F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT PRET T
(Restated)
(E%))
Current tax BNEATR IR
— PRC corporate income tax — PREPEMESH 123,301 107,597
— Adjustments in respect of prior years — BAFEHE (1,000) (1,311)
— Tax paid for transfer of share — BT ERIR 3,335 —
125,636 106,286
Deferred income tax IEIEFTS A
— Deferred income tax assets recognised — BEERELEMEHIBEE (5,232) (7,880)
— Deferred income tax liabilities recognised — BRERELEMSHEAE 25,726 24,218
20,494 16,338
Income tax expense FriS B2 146,130 122,624
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HEMBRRMEE

27

Income Tax Expense (Continued)

(iii) PRC Corporate Income Tax (Continueq)
The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted

27 FieBiRX (&

(iii) PEERFEHE)
AR BLAT R BB SR R R
TR 2 A0TSR Tt B2 1B

average tax rate applicable to profits of the entities as follows: B2 Z8207T
2011 2010
—E——%F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BETT PEETIT
(Restated)
(&251)
Profit before income tax FOBRER A A E 755,851 662,310
Calculated at the PRC statutory tax R BDEFE B E25%H
rate of 25% (2010: 25%) (ZZE—FF : 25%) 188,963 165,577
Effect of difference in applicable tax rates EARERER 2R (28,596) (41,144)
Income not subject to tax BERT 2 WA (14,131) (3,364)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes AR 2 A2 5,376 7,318
Tax losses not recognised as deferred RERBIRIEFTSTHIEEE
income tax assets Z FiIEE 8 648 852
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses A BT AR IBEEE (1,000) —
Income tax expense FrSBiFsZ 151,260 129,239
Representing HER
Income tax expenses from continuing operations ~ EHEAR L ¥ 1% 2 A5 X 146,130 122,624
Income tax expenses from discontinued BRI EER
operations SR> 5,130 6,615
151,260 129,239
REZRERAT —T——FF%H 169
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27

28

29

170

Income Tax Expense (Continued)

(iii) PRC Corporate Income Tax (Continued)
PRC corporate income tax is provided for at 25% (2010: 25%)
of the profits for the PRC statutory financial reporting purpose,
adjusted for those items, which are not assessable or
deductible for the PRC corporate income tax purpose.

Profits tax for other locations has not been provided as the
Group did not have any assessable profits in those locations.

Profit Attributable to the Owners of the
Company

The profit attributable to the owners of the Company is dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
approximately HK$109,316,000 (2010: HK$90,577,000).

Earnings Per Share

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of
calculating basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2011 and 2010 have been retrospectively adjusted for
the effect of Share Consolidation completed on 27 May 2011 (Note
16(a)(ii).

(a) Basic
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit
for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

Welling Holding Limited Annual Report 2011

27 FieBiRx (&

28

29

(iii)

PEIEEMEHR(E)

B EMER VR BUAEM S 2
FE225% (ZZE—FF : 25%) 5"
8 WEHTARTEEEMEHE R
AR SINRLZ % FH B FHARBE T IA
B -

FR AN £ B LA b B A A (] JE AR AN
A B EEHRR F 1R 2 RIS
B -

FAEHE AEIEFIE

SFARRBTBIRE 2 ANABHEE AELF
A BB 109,316,000 L (ZE—F4F : B
#90,577,0007T) °

SEEF
BEtEBE_T——FR-F-FTF+=
A=+—ALFESRERREERT 2 E
BRMETHHCEBYPARE  URMHR =T
——FRAZTEAZEKBRGOEHHTE -
(HEEE16(a)(i))

(a)

X
BRERBNTHRFENERAFAD
BT R I BGEHHE -
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29 Earnings Per Share (Continued)

(a) Basic (Continued)

29 HwixEFI(E
(@) EX(E)

2011 2010
—F—F —B-2F
(Restated)
(&%)
Continuing operations IHEREET
Profit for the year from continuing operations RATER NEGISERE S

attributable to the owners of the Company BEEFEOEEF )

(HK$’000) 594,980 511,646
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for ~ Gttt E G EREF) 2 @A

the purposes of basic earnings per share N9 S (FR%)

('000 shares) 2,818,891 2,784,521
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FREEARZF) (BL) 21.11 18.38
Discontinued operations RIFEEEFE
Profit for the year from discontinued operations ViN/NET P SN e T

attributable to the owners of the Company HEEFEOEETIT)

(HK$’000) 12,583 20,692
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for ~ Ftit & EGREAREF 2 @A

the purposes of basic earnings per share IR E(FAR)

('000 shares) 2,818,891 2,784,521
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) GRRERZF|GEWL) 0.45 0.74
Profit for the year attributable to the RRREE NEIEFENE

owners of the Company (HK$’000) (BEEFIT) 607,563 532,338
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for ~ Fist & &R EAREF) 2 L@

the purposes of basic earnings per share hnETFHE(TR)

('000 shares) 2,818,891 2,784,521
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FIREARZF| (B 21.56 19.12

REZRARAT —B——F5R
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29 Earnings Per Share (Continued)

(b)

20 BREBA(E

Diluted (b) #F
For the year ended 31 December 2011 and 2010, diluted HE-ZE——FR-Z-FF+-_A=
earnings per share were calculated by adjusting the weighted T—HIEFE  SREEEN BB
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume BRTEBR 2 INETSEELAER
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The dilutive FE UHRRERMAETEELR
potential ordinary shares of the Company are performance- i o ARARZ2BEHELRRANURE
based share options. For the share options, a calculation is B BN - BEEIREMmE - B/
done to determine the number of shares that could have been R AR TR ARE 2 RN S
acquired at fair value (determined as the average annual KEELAEE B IR A TEAERQFIR
market share price of the company’s shares) based on the D FETSRERET)IEZ’RHD
monetary value of the subscription rights attached to HEZFE - EXFEZRMNEE B
outstanding share options. The number of shares calculated REREETEME BT ZRGEEE
as above is compared with the number of shares that would YEHIELER o
have been issued assuming the exercise of the share options.
2011 2010
—T——F —T-TF
(Restated)
(&%)
Continuing operations FEEEER
Profit for the year from continuing operations KAEIHEA AELFELEEE
attributable to the owners of the Company BEFEENEEET )
(HK$’'000) 594,980 511,646
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for FiatE SAREAREF) 2 L@k
the purposes of basic earnings per share  JEFHE(TAL)
('000 shares) 2,818,891 2,784,521
Adjustments for share options (‘000 shares) HREAREIEL 2 AR (TR 21,189 30,500
2,840,080 2,815,021
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) EFREERF (BL) 20.95 18.17
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29 Earnings Per Share (Continued)

29 BREF(E

V1

1=

(b) Diluted (Continueqd) (b) #HHE)
2011 2010
—F——F —E-EF
(Restated)
(E3)
Discontinued operations RIEEEER
Profit for the year from discontinued operations RATIEA ANEIERIHEE XK
attributable to the owners of the Company (HK$'000)  FEFE BT L) 12,583 20,692
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the HAEBREARFZ
purposes of basic earnings per share (000 shares) w8 (TR 2,818,891 2,784,521
Adjustments for share options (‘000 shares) HEREEL 2 AR (TR) 21,189 30,500
2,840,080 2,815,021
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) TREE 2R (BI) 0.44 0.74
Profit for the year attributable to the owners of the KARIHEA AEEFEFE
Company (HK$'000) (B¥FT) 607,563 532,338
Weighted average number of ordinary shares forthe ~ BiEtEEREAREFZ
purposes of basic eamnings per share (000 shares) Limi e (TR) 2,818,891 2,784,521
Adjustments for share options (000 shares) HEERRRE VR 2 AR (TR 21,189 30,500
2,840,080 2,815,021
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) SREERF (B) 21.39 18.91
30 Dividends 30 BE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BB TT
Proposed final dividend of HK4 cents per ordinary 5% R 2% B =A% I @A 47811
share (2010: HKO0.8 cent per ordinary share (ZZ2—ZF : FREBR0.8HE
before five-to-one share consolidation) WUERE—RHEEIED) 112,865 112,725

At a meeting held on 9 March 2012, the Directors proposed a final
dividend of HK4 cents per ordinary share (2010: HK0.8 cent per
ordinary share before five-to-one share consolidation). This proposed
dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in these consolidated

financial statements.

RZEBE——F=ZAFhBE8T2
BEERRAREGREBER4BL(ZE—
TF - FREERRKROSBIGERAE —KHEH
AIET) » WIEERER B RAE

RARRBEMNIS

REZRER A

gHL E=E

%2 EERE MR

—B——FEH
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FEMIBBRRMEE
31 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 31 ZERERERMEE
Cash Flows
(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to (a) IBRFIEHAIFIBAEEEEEZ
cash generated from operations: ¥R -
2011 2010
—T——% —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
HEETT BT
(Restated)
(&%)
Profit before income tax ORR RS BRI 755,851 662,310
Adjustments for: FEE
— Depreciation (Note 7) — & (MET) 107,128 92,607
— Amortisation of leasehold land and land use ~ — FR& b & b (s FA#E
rights (Note 6) BiH(ftzTe) 3,660 3,242
— Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 8) — B AEHE(MES) 757 —
— Deferred government grant (Note 19) — EIEBRAT AL (HI3E19) (475) —
— Gain on disposals of property, plant and  — HEKIFEEER
equipment of discontinued operations YIE - R MR ERE (2,490) —
— Loss on disposals of property, plant and — HEME  MEN
equipment HEEE 4,569 13,709
— Share-based payment expenses (Note 17) — BN HAE
(P&E17) 2,499 5,841
— Share of profits of associates (Note 10) — 1hEEE QB FE
(FM¥5E10) (19,204) (9,269)
— Interest income — FBUA (10,181) (4,471)
— Interest expense — FEMX 49,370 30,895
Changes in working capital: HEEEY
— Inventories - FE 1,352,693 (1,248,655)
— Derivative financial instruments — THETSRTA 9,370 (1,116)
— Trade and other receivables — BN HAME H&(’f” 156,561 (737,131)
— Due from related companies — FEUREEE AT (687,809) 293,586
— Trade and other payables — B REAME HW\ (489,115) 1,163,554
— Due to related companies — TR AR FIE (351,100) 409,346
Cash generated from operations KEEEZRS 882,084 674,448
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FEMBIRRMEE
31 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 31 HZERERERMEEE)
Cash Flows (Continued)
(b) Proceeds from sale of property, plant and (b) HEME -  BEXRRERBRE
equipment comprise: BiE:
2011 2010
—F——% —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT PR T
(Restated)
(E71)
Net book value disposed (Note 7) HE 2 EREFE M) 62,289 27,505
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment &% - HE L& EEIE
(Note 23) (Fff5E23) (4,569) (13,709)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEDE - BE R&E
plant and equipment PS50 57,720 13,796
32 Contingent Liabilities 32 HAEME
Save as the financial guarantees discussed in Note 34, as at 31 BRMFE34 s AR RF——F
December 2011 and 2010, the Group and the Company did not EZZ—TF+ZA=1+—0 AREEAX
have any material contingent liabilities. RAEEAERLAAIE -
33 Commitments 33 FkiE
(a) Capital commitments (@) BEFXiIE
Group
&R
2011 2010
—T——%5 —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BETT BT T
Contracted but not provided for EETHERE
— purchases of property, plant and equipment — BEWE  BEAE 89,776 116,102
— purchase of leasehold land and — BEHST LT
land use rights 1 P - 23,655
89,776 139,757
The Company does not have any capital commitment as at RIE——FN_E-FTF+-_A=1+
31 December 2011 and 2010. — B NR TR E A -
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33 Commitments (Continued) 33 EiE(E
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) EERERE
The future aggregate minimum lease payments of the Group REBEBRB AT LLEHEMRN AR
under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: RIER 2 SRR EFIBATEINT ¢
Group
FEE
2011 2010
—ET——%F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Not later than one year THE—F 8,176 1,974
Later than one year and not later than five years BB —FETBBRF 19,626 403
27,802 2,377
The future aggregate minimum lease payments of the ZANGILIES - SLIE - €l MEMRAR
Company under non-cancellable operating leases are as RER 2 REREFRAEMAT -
follows:
Company
AATF
2011 2010
% —E—EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Not later than one year TiBR—F - 799
Later than one year and not later than five years ~ #BiE—FETBBAE - —
- 799
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34

35

Financial Guarantees

The Group and the controlling shareholder of the associates have
jointly and severally guaranteed the drawn components of certain
bank loans of the associates as at 31 December 2011 and 2010.
Under the terms of the financial guarantee contract, the Group and
the controlling shareholder of the associates will make payments to
reimburse the lenders upon failure of the guaranteed associates to
make payments when the bank loans are due.

Terms and face values of the liabilities guaranteed were as follows:

34

AU HER

AER B R g N R R B R AR R K M ) A gk
ERAR_F——FR_F-TF+_A=
T—BZETRITEEFER - RIERERE
REKVGT  AEBERBERARZERRRE
SRETHE(REE & R R EEERITERREER
B BEEEERA

BERAEBZGRREEDT

Group

AEE
2011 2010
—F——% —T-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BETT
Year of maturity Face value Face value
FIHER HiE EfE

Drawn bank term loans of the associates,
denominated in RMB 1 year to 6 years

BE N AR IRITEHER - LARKSIE —ERF 470,581 304,971

The method used in determining the fair value of these guarantees
has been disclosed in Note 2.23. The fair value of these guarantees
is nominal.

Business Combinations

On 17 May 2011, Welling HK entered into an agreement with two
other independent third parties for the establishment of Changzhou
Welling. Changzhou Welling was owned as to 70%, 18% and 12%
by Welling HK and the other two independent third parties. The
capital contribution of Changzhou Welling was made by Welling HK
in cash and by the independent third parties with their 100% equity
interest in a PRC company, ®/MNoAtkEFEERER QA A,
respectively. As a result, the business of commercial air-conditioning
motor was acquired by the Group after establishment of Changzhou
Welling in September 2011.

35

ARNEERRZ A FHETECRME2.23R
WE - ERZATFEEMTIRE -

E¥EH
RZZE——FRA+EA - BERBEAAM
MAB R =T e - DAL BN EE o
REEEREMMEBELE=F23EEE
INENERI70% ~ 18% K 12% 1w © BLED B
NBESHERMEBBYE = FUEEEN—
REBARBAFMAEERERER AR
BEANEZHERNEERTMNEAENE XK
A Al FNBERZZ——FNAKY
& RNEEBUSTE A= AEHAER o

REZBRERAT —Z——FFR§
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35 Business Combinations (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRMEE

35 XBEUHE

The following table summarises the consideration paid for TEBARKEASERENEBELZFOR
Changzhou Welling, the fair value of assets acquired, liabilities B BRBEENLTE  IEAENEEK

assumed and the non-controlling interest at acquisition date.

FEiER R o

At fair value

BATEE

HK$'000

R T
Identifiable assets and liabilities: EREERESE :
Leasehold land and land use rights (Note 6) FHE i Ko - Hb {5 A RE (T 3E6) 11,029
Property, plant and equipment (Note 7) Y - B KRB (HET) 23,712
Construction-in-progress (Note 7) HEETR(ME?) 3,948
Intangible assets (Note 8) mpAE(MEs) 30,879
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBSEZED 163,112
Inventories =FE 21,994
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E MR 42,913
Total assets BEE 297,587
Trade and other payables B 5 N EMERK (79,823)
Income tax recoverable AJ Y B TS AR 3,963
Borrowings B (17,169)
Deferred income tax liabilities (Note 22) RIEFTIS R B E(FIFE22) (7,714
Total liabilities NN (100,743)
Identifiable net assets BRI EEFE 196,844
Goodwill and cash flows: HERAERE
Non-controlling interest FEIERE R 59,053
Identifiable net assets acquired W MR EEFEE 137,791
Goodwill (Note 8) BEEER)) 4,757
Total consideration BRE 142,548
Less: Cash and cash equivalents in the subsidiary acquired i : WEEMB AT RS RELEEY (163,112)
Net cash inflow on acquisition for the year FEWERRESMAFE (20,564)
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36 Discontinued Operations

On 15 April 2011, Welling Electronic and Electric as the vendor and
Midea Microwave as the purchaser entered into the Assets Transfer
Agreement, pursuant to which Welling Electronic and Electric agreed
to dispose of certain machinery equipment and moulds, testing
equipment and office equipment (the “Assets”) owned by Welling
Electronic and Electric to Midea Microwave at a cash consideration
of RMB22,078,100 (equivalent to approximately HK$27,180,000)
(“Disposal”).

Upon completion of the Disposal, the Company disposed of the
Assets used for the business of transformer and shaded pole motor
of Welling Electronic and Electric and ceased the relevant business.
Accordingly, the consolidated results for the business of transformer
and shaded pole motor are presented as discontinued operations in
the consolidated financial statements. The presentation of
comparative information in respect of the year ended 31 December
2010 has been reclassified to conform to the current period’s
presentation.

(@) An analysis of the results of the discontinued operations is as

36

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G EMBRRME

"‘\ 2«(&4%?%
RZZE——FMNA+HB  BEETFERA
BEHHM)EENMEES(AEFFH )L
BEERGE Bt HEETERRZN
WEREARKE 22,078,100 T (FAH R LB
27,180,000 7T ) [AIZE YUK B 25 1 E B E S
BREANE THEBRERLER - BARE
ERAERE(LESE] -

HEFBETKE  ARRLEREEFER
MEREMBRERXGHEBNEE - TR
IEARE - Qi - BESMNBHEHER
m%Aiﬁ\wAWWﬁﬁﬂzﬂﬁﬂim
BEB -BE_FT-FTFET_A=1+—B81Lt
igmﬁﬁﬂmzﬂﬁéﬁ P AR
225 -

follows:

2011 2010
—F——F =
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Revenue WA 431,937 692,660
Cost of goods sold HEEmRA (397,616) (640,616)
Gross profit EF 34,321 52,044
Other gains — net HEs — F5E 2,707 207
Selling and marketing costs SHE K T m A AR (3,334) (6,674)
Administrative expenses TR (16,115) (18,192)
Operating profit FEFE 17,579 27,405
Finance income/(cost) — net BEWA S (RRAR) — F58 134 (98)
Profit before income tax IOBRFT R B AU FUH 17,713 27,307
Income tax expense FriS R (5,130) (6,615)

Profit for the year from RIFEEEBEL
discontinued operations FEENHE 12,583 20,692

REZBRERAT

—2——FFH
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FEMBIRRMEE
36 Discontinued Operations (Continueq) 36 #RILEBEIE(E)
(o)  Ananalysis of the cash flows of the discontinued operations is (b)) WRIMKEEBHRESRESTWT -
as follows:
2011 2010
—E——F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Net cash inflow from operating activities RS IR MR 11,259 23,950
Net cash generated from/(used in) WEEBEL(FTA)Z
investing activities RE 58 25,531 (13,555)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BeRIReEEIEINFEE 36,790 10,395
37 Related Party Transactions 37 FAEEARS
Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries have been AARIEEMBARBMIRIERGZEER
eliminated on consolidation. Transactions between the Group and WS o ANEE B EM B RN FAZ R
other related parties during the year are summarised below: Bhatan T
(@) Transactions with related parties (a) HARAEEAZR S
The following transactions were carried out with related parties LA T RS 7 E SR MRERE 2
in accordance with the terms mutually agreed by the BREITZ R
respective parties:
2011 2010
—F—% ZE-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BB T T
(Restated)
(&%)
Sales to related parties : R EEE T SHE ¢
— Controlled by the ultimate holding company — B4 ?*" NAEIPES 5,600,119 3,462,962
— Controlled by a substantial shareholder of the — H&RLIZER AR ZEE
ultimate holding company H&%&%M 458,809 615,788
6,058,928 4,078,750
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FEMBHRRME

37 Related Party Transactions (Continued) 37 FAMEARS(E
(@) Transactions with related parties (Continued) (a) EHHEABEAZXB(E)
2011 2010
—T——% —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT EET T
(Restated)
(&%)
Purchases from related parties: ) B 5 B
— Controlled by the ultimate holding company — HREIERR A RS 225,347 22,495
— Controlled by a substantial shareholder of the — — HR&EER AT Z
ultimate holding company F R 45,856 255,878
— Controlled by a close family member of the — ARKERAREE
ultimate holding company’s substantial IR 2 3 R
shareholder - 2,335
271,203 280,708
Logistics services received from related parties: A1 BAB: 5 EE Y7 BRFS -
— Controlled by the ultimate holding company — EERAREIR A A - 39
Rental expenses paid to a related party: M X REEHE
— Controlled by the ultimate holding company — SRR A FHES 4,038 —
Interest income on deposits received from EEIE VNI EIEEE S
Finance Company: MEWA
— Controlled by the ultimate holding company — MR A RIS 634 39
Interest expense for bills discounted paid to B R NS FdE
Finance Company: ERZAEBRE
— Controlled by the ultimate holding company — ASEIZERA RS 9,867 —
Bank charges paid to Finance Company: RS AR HIRITER -
— Controlled by the ultimate holding company — BERARIERR A BT 347 —
Consideration paid to a related party for the ) B8 5 S S g EE D
acquisition of Huayin: FRME -
— Controlled by the ultimate holding company — BRI RIS 88,694 —

Consideration received from a related party for

FIRARE T W &% - B

the disposal of property, plant and equipments: NEEERRE -
— Controlled by a substantial shareholder of the =~ — FFRAIZL AT Z
ultimate holding company F ERFIEH 27,180 —
REZRRERAT —B-——£5%
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HK$464,442,000(2010: HK$216,934,000).
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FEMBIRRMEE
37 Related Party Transactions (Continued) 37 FAEEARXS(E
(b) Key management compensation (b) FEZEEASME
Group
FEH
2011 2010
—E—— —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT R T
Salaries and other employee benefits e hEMESRER 13,149 11,160
Share-based payments AR S Z 1,868 4,190
15,017 15,350
(c) Balances with related companies (c) EHEABEASIZEER
Group
FEE
2011 2010
—E——% —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
(Restated)
(&%)
() Due from related companies: () FEUEREE A RIFRIA ¢
— Controlled by the ultimate holding company — RN A AR 1,063,490 345,181
— Controlled by a substantial shareholder of the ~— — FHFRARIEIR AR Z
ultimate holding company FERERES 5,714 36,482
— Controlled by a close family member of the — ARRIER AR EBRE
ultimate holding company’s substantial i 5 et vl
shareholder 1,154 886
1,070,358 382,549
As at 31 December 2011, the amount due from related RZE—F+_-_HA=+—8 " EKHA
companies including note receivables of approximately AR RNESEAERERNERN A

BEE 464,442 000 (ZE—F4F
7 #£216,934,0007T ) °
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37 Related Party Transactions (Continued) 37 FAARS(E)
(c) Balances with related companies (Continued) (c) HHEABtASIZEER(ZE)
Group
*5E
2011 2010
-5 —T-FTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
(Restated)
(E31)
(i) Due to related companies: (i) FETEEE A )
— Controlled by the ultimate holding company — BARKRERA RIS 123,158 407,696
— Controlled by a substantial shareholder of the — ARKIERARZ
ultimate holding company FERRIEH 4,045 70,389
— Controlled by a close family member of the — ABREERARFERR
ultimate holding company’s substantial shareholder pd i %E? il 3,173 3,391
130,376 481,476
As at 31 December 2011, the amount due to related pr a=——¢+ A=+—8 ' ErE
companies including note payables of approximately BARRBESESEENZENA
HK$27,778,000 (2010: HK$12,587,000). B 27,778,000 T(ZTE—F4F

The balances due from/to related companies are denominated
in RMB, unsecured, interest free and are repayable on

7 #£12,587,0007T) ©

FEUL,/ FE A5 REESE R R 45 BR DA AR 5 51
18 - WREEM - ﬁgﬂiﬁiﬁ’\giﬁﬁf#

demand. No balance due from related companies is past due 38 o M4 FE UG RA B N B 45 65180 B Bk O
or impaired. (=
Group
FEE
2011 2010
—E—fF —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
AT BT
(ii)y Short-term deposits in the Finance Company: (i) AT #A Bl 2 f2 HATF X
— Controlled by the ultimate holding company — BRI A TS 233,784 136,754
Save as discussed in Note 9, the Company does not have BREFEEQ BTl Al » AN =) B B Bt R m#8E
other balances with related companies. mEAMA
38 Ultimate Holding Company 38 mEXERAT
The Directors regard Midea, a company incorporated in the PRC, as EEREN(RPREEMAZLZ AR BHEK
being the ultimate holding company. AT -
BEZRERAT —ZE——FFH
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AERBRE
Year ended 31 December
BE+=-A=+—HILEE
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
ZE——F —T-TF ZITTINEF ZZTTN\F ZITTtF
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
BETT BT BT BT BT
Audited (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
HEZ (&%) (&%) (&%) (&%)
Results E3
Revenue WA 10,490,373 7,235,360 4,960,958 5,310,310 4,644,992
Profit attributable to the owners ZNAFIZEA A
of the Company FEAE T 607,563 532,338 353,823 196,429 224,385
Assets and liabilities BEREHE
Total assets wmEE 6,162,452 6,331,676 3,799,041 2,665,071 4,209,514
Total liabilities BEE (3,610,278) (4,356,372) (2,599,888) (1,830,524) (3,936,258)
Total equity T AERR 2,552,174 1,975,304 1,199,153 834,547 273,256
0] The consolidated financial statement for the year ended 31 (i) HEZZ—ZTF  —TTNFR-ZZTINF
December 2010, 2009 and 2008 were restated using the principles TZA=T—BIEFEHEMBHREENA
B EFHESI RSB EMNESH G RAIT A

of merger accounting, as prescribed in HKAG 5. Details refer to Note

2.1.1 of the consolidated financial statements.
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